
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, February 28, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.

Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael
Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson,
Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, and Scott Truehl

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM
(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the
meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email
lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:
 Cummins Community Involvement Team Recognition and Award

2. Minutes and Reports:
 Personnel Committee (8/22/2016, 9/12/2016, 12/15/2016, & 1/5/2017), Commission on

Aging (11/1/2017), Library Board (2/15/2017), Business Park North Committee (8/8/2016),
Landmarks Commission (1/12/2017), Planning Commission (1/9/2017), and Planning
Commission Open House (1/9/2017)

3. Public Comment Period:

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. February 14, 2017 Council Minutes
B. R-17-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated

position descriptions for Utilities Wastewater Operator, Utilities Basic Certified
Wastewater Operator, Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator, Utilities
Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator/Laboratory Technician, and Wastewater
Systems Supervisor. (Personnel Committee recommends approval 4-0)

OLD BUSINESS

NONE

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA- AMENDED
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.



NEW BUSINESS

5. O-2-2017- An ordinance amending the zoning classification of certain lands located at 1640 E.
Main Street in the City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business
(Planning Commission recommends approval 5-0) FIRST READING

6. O-3-2017- Amending Portions of the Erosion Control and Stormwater Management Code
Sections within Sec. 10-122, 10-127, 10-129, 10-130 and 10-131 of the Stoughton Municipal
Code (Public Works Committee recommends approval 4-0) FIRST READING

7. R-8-2017- Preliminary Resolution declaring intent to exercise Special Assessment Powers for
2017 Street Projects (Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0)

8. R-10-2017- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton Approving the
Park Place Condominium Plat (Planning Commission recommends approval 5-0)

9. R-9-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to continue using the professional
services of Angus Young & Associates in 2017 and 2018 for engineering and architecture
design, construction document development, as well as construction oversight for the proposed
Public Works Facility. (Public Works Committee recommends approval 4-1, with Boersma
voting noe and Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0)

10. R-11-2017- Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan – Public Works Facility (Public Works
recommends approval 4-0)

11. R-12-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a contribution up to
$450 from the Park Development Fund for assistance in having a new lighted flag pole installed
in Norse Park by Matt Krcma as an Eagle Scout project. (Parks & Recreation Committee
recommends approval 4-0 and Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0)

12. R-13-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Stoughton Bike
Transportation Plan. (Parks & Recreation Committee recommends approval 4-0 and Finance
Committee recommends approval 4-0)

13. R-14-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve using Park
Development Funds to pay for a site feasibility study for a building to be located in Mandt Park.
(Parks & Recreation Committee recommends approval 4-0 and Finance Committee
recommends approval 4-0)

*** The Council may meet in closed session per State Statute 19.85 (1)(c) considering employment
and compensation of a new Finance Director, and compensation for Police Department
Sergeants. The Council may reconvene in open session and proceed to consider the remaining
items on the agenda.

14. ***R-15-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the
compensation change for the Police Department Sergeants as outlined in the hiring



packet. (Personnel Committee recommends approval 4-0 & Finance meets February 28,
2017)

15. ***R-16-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve retro pay
in the amount of $6367.14 to be paid to the Police Department Sergeants. (Personnel
Committee recommends approval 4-0 & Finance meets February 28, 2017)

16. ***R-18-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the
appointment and hiring of the City of Stoughton Finance Director.

17. ***Discussion and possible action regarding an updated Tax Incremental Financing
request by Forward Development Group relating to the Kettle Park West Phase II
Development.

*** The council may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis Stat sec 19.85(1)(e), to
consider strategy to be adopted in connection with negotiating an agreement to purchase
certain property, and to consider strategy to be adopted in negotiating a development
agreement relating to Kettle Park West Phase II. The Council may reconvene in open
session and take action regarding Forward Development Group’s Tax Incremental
Financing Request.

18. ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For
information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley





Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, February 28, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.  


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael 


Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, 


Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, and Scott Truehl  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the 


meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 Cummins Community Involvement Team Recognition and Award 


 


 


2.   Minutes and Reports:  


 Personnel Committee (8/22/2016, 9/12/2016, 12/15/2016, & 1/5/2017), Commission on 


Aging (11/1/2017), Library Board (2/15/2017), Business Park North Committee (8/8/2016), 


Landmarks Commission (1/12/2017), Planning Commission (1/9/2017), and Planning 


Commission Open House (1/9/2017) 


 


 


3.      Public Comment Period:   


 


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. February 14, 2017 Council Minutes 


B. R-17-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated 


position descriptions for Utilities Wastewater Operator, Utilities Basic Certified 


Wastewater Operator, Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator, Utilities 


Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator/Laboratory Technician, and Wastewater 


Systems Supervisor. (Personnel Committee recommends approval 4-0) 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


NONE 


 


 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA- AMENDED 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us





NEW BUSINESS 


 


5. O-2-2017- An ordinance amending the zoning classification of certain lands located at 1640 E. 


Main Street in the City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business 


(Planning Commission recommends approval 5-0)   FIRST READING 


 


6. O-3-2017- Amending Portions of the Erosion Control and Stormwater Management Code 


Sections within Sec. 10-122, 10-127, 10-129, 10-130 and 10-131 of the Stoughton Municipal 


Code (Public Works Committee recommends approval 4-0)  FIRST READING 


 


7. R-8-2017- Preliminary Resolution declaring intent to exercise Special Assessment Powers for 


2017 Street Projects (Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0) 


 


8. R-10-2017- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton Approving the  


Park Place Condominium Plat (Planning Commission recommends approval 5-0) 


 


9. R-9-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to continue using the professional 


services of Angus Young & Associates in 2017 and 2018 for engineering and architecture 


design, construction document development, as well as construction oversight for the proposed 


Public Works Facility. (Public Works Committee recommends approval 4-1, with Boersma 


voting noe and Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0) 


 


10. R-11-2017- Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan – Public Works Facility (Public Works 


recommends approval 4-0) 


 


11. R-12-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a contribution up to 


$450 from the Park Development Fund for assistance in having a new lighted flag pole installed 


in Norse Park by Matt Krcma as an Eagle Scout project. (Parks & Recreation Committee 


recommends approval 4-0 and Finance Committee recommends approval 4-0)  


 


12. R-13-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Stoughton Bike 


Transportation Plan. (Parks & Recreation Committee recommends approval 4-0 and Finance 


Committee recommends approval 4-0)  


 


13. R-14-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve using Park 


Development Funds to pay for a site feasibility study for a building to be located in Mandt Park. 


(Parks & Recreation Committee recommends approval 4-0 and Finance Committee 


recommends approval 4-0) 


 


***  The Council may meet in closed session per State Statute 19.85 (1)(c) considering employment 


and compensation of a new Finance Director, and compensation for Police Department 


Sergeants.  The Council may reconvene in open session and proceed to consider the remaining 


items on the agenda. 


 


14. ***R-15-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the 


compensation change for the Police Department Sergeants as outlined in the hiring 







packet. (Personnel Committee recommends approval 4-0 & Finance meets February 28, 


2017)  


 


15. ***R-16-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve retro pay 


in the amount of $6367.14 to be paid to the Police Department Sergeants. (Personnel 


Committee recommends approval 4-0 & Finance meets February 28, 2017) 


 


16. ***R-18-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the 


appointment and hiring of the City of Stoughton Finance Director. 


 


 


17. ***Discussion and possible action regarding an updated Tax Incremental Financing 


request by Forward Development Group relating to the Kettle Park West Phase II 


Development. 


 


***  The council may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis Stat sec 19.85(1)(e), to 


consider strategy to be adopted in connection with negotiating an agreement to purchase 


certain property, and to consider strategy to be adopted in negotiating a development 


agreement relating to Kettle Park West Phase II. The Council may reconvene in open 


session and take action regarding Forward Development Group’s Tax Incremental 


Financing Request. 


 


18. ADJOURNMENT 


 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For 


information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley 








Cummins Community 
Involvement Team


Tyler Lorenz


Mark Mentink


02/22/2017


Cummins Confidential







Community Involvement Team
 3 Chapters: Environmental, Educational, Social Justice


– Environmental Strategy: “Conservation of species, habitat, and parkland in the 


Stoughton area”


 Employees expected to dedicate a minimum of 4 hours volunteering on 


company time


 Environmental Challenge: A Global Cummins competition that recognizes 


sites with outstanding impact to their local community and environment


– Stoughton submission titled “The Stoughton Parks Project”


– Selected as a local and global champion site 


– Resulted in a $15,000.00 grant awarded from the Cummins Foundation to our 


community partner


2Cummins Confidential







Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019


S
o


la
r 


K
il
n


-Funding for solar 


powered Solar Kiln 


granted through FFA 


donation and CIT 


budget


-Kiln designed in 


Stoughton Filtration 


Engineering Group


-Construction of wood 


drying kiln completed 


at Cummins 


Prototype Shop


-Kiln utilized and 


donated to Stoughton 


Street Department for 


drying of local wood


-Provided lumber to 


Sto. Senior Center, & 


FFA Alumni.


-Kiln used for 


outreach at Dane 


County Fair and 


Sustainable Atwood


-Innovation Award 


granted for 


“Stoughton Model” 


of urban wood 


reclamation


-Provided lumber to 


Stoughton Senior 


Center & local sale


-Kiln provides lumber 


for wildlife house


construction


-Harvested wood 


stockpiled for future 


CIT projects 


(boardwalk and pier)


-Kiln provides lumber 


for new wheel chair 


accessible Virgin 


Lake Park boardwalk 


trail


-Boardwalk 


constructed with


Stoughton High 


School students


-Kiln provides lumber 


for wheel chair 


accessible Virgin 


Lake Pier


-Pier constructed with 


Stoughton High 


School students


T
re


e
 P


la
n


ti
n


g -Community needs 


assessment: “Tree 


City USA” designation 


at risk w/Emerald Ash 


Borer invasive insect


-Planted 35 trees


-CISS Project 


complete with 3 


objective phases 


going forward in 


Stoughton


-Planted 150 diverse 


trees in local 


subdivision parkways


-Planted 25 fruit trees 


at Bjoin Park, 


Stoughton


-Planted 2 Oak trees 


at Virgin Lake Park, 


Stoughton


-Addition of mulch 


beds around Virgin 


Lake Park trees for 


drought resilience


-Tree planting at 


Racetrack Park,


Stoughton


-Tree planting at 


Farm House Park, 


Stoughton


-Tree Planting at 


Virgin Lake Park Trail


Head


A
d


o
p


t 
-


A
 -


P
a


rk


-Initiated Virgin Lake 


Adopt-A-Park: 3 


events w/136 


volunteer hours


-Constructed new


“Observatory Trail” to 


Virgin Lake shoreline


-Completed 3 Adopt-


A-Park trail 


maintenance and 


clean up events 


w/113.5 volunteer 


hours


-Trail extension to 


generate hiking loop 


around Virgin Lake


-Begin construction of 


boardwalk over low 


areas of hiking loop


-Install completed 


wheelchair accessible 


boardwalk to bridge 


low areas of hiking 


loop


-Construct and install 


Wheelchair


accessible pier onto 


Virgin Lake, linked to 


2015 Observatory 


Trail


S
p


e
c


ie
s


 


C
o


n
s


e
rv


a
ti


o
n


-Constructed and 


installed 10 Wood 


Duck houses in 


Stoughton Parks & 


wetlands, 50 


volunteer hours


-Construction and 


installation of 20 bat 


houses w/Kiln lumber 


to slow “White Nose 


Syndrome”


-Clean and maintain 


Wood Duck houses


-Clean and maintain 


Wood Duck and Bat 


houses 


-Build additional 


duck/bat houses at 


Stoughton Senior 


Center


-Clean and maintain 


Wood Duck and Bat 


houses 


-Build additional 


duck/bat houses at 


Stoughton Senior 


Center







“Stoughton Parks Project” Outcome


• Planted 212 trees and reclaimed Stoughton urban wood to combat losses from Emerald Ash Borer


• Species conservation – 10 Wood Duck houses built and installed in Stoughton wetlands


• Accessibility and beautification of Stoughton Parks through Adopt-A-Park program


• Kiln dried wood supply to Stoughton Senior Center & High School (~12,000 board feet since 2014) 


4Community Involvement Team


250 Volunteer Hours


50 Volunteer Hours


220 Volunteer Hours


200 Volunteer Hours


720 Total Hours







Virgin Lake Park Boardwalk


5Community Involvement Team


A


B


C
D


Pier 


Private – easement needed for “C” City Owned


 Creation of “Trail C” and construction 


of wheel chair accessible 


boardwalk/bridge solution over select 


wet areas [2 identified]


– Maintain boardwalk, replacing 


boards, railings etc.


– Built entirely with urban wood in 


collaboration with Stoughton High 


School


 Wheel chair accessible pier for 


patrons to spectate


– Urban wood and High School Shop 


Student involvement


 Cutting more trail/creating boardwalk 


to connect new northbound 


subdivision – Velkommen Way –


ultimately to Madison Trail System







Dane County Recommendation: 
Wickcraft, Inc.


6Community Involvement Team


• Recommended supplier from 


Darren Marsh, Dane County Parks 


Director


• 100% galvanized steel frame  


w/Stoughton “Treecycle” Ash/Oak 


decking 


• Cummins employees to assemble 


wood decking sections and help to 


assemble boardwalk in park


• Similar case completed in 


Minneapolis, MN w/local Ash


Installed Wickcraft boardwalk







Sustainability
• In the next 3 years, the following projects are to be completed:


• Q1 2017 Bat house build at Stoughton Campus and Senior Center – spring installation in Sto.


• WI Department of Natural Resources effort to fight White Nose Syndrome, a deadly fungus depleting native brown bat populations 


[contributes to undesired insect influx]


• 2017-2018 Wheelchair accessible board walk to complete new trail loop at Virgin Lake Park


• Utilization of reclaimed urban wood for construction


• Collaborate with Stoughton High School students for woodworking/construction


• Currently composing budget for sawyer [to break logs into planks] & necessary hardware


• 2019 Wheelchair accessible pier onto Virgin Lake 


• Also to use recliamed urban wood and Stoughton student resources


• Educational signage throughout park for middle school student field trips to a WI wetland


• Budget consideration for sawyer and design/components


• In the 5 year scope, the following objectives are in place:


• Maintenence and distribution of both wood duck and bat houses constructed by the Senior Center with reclamied local wood


• Up-keep of boardwalk, pier, and trail system at Virgin Lake Park and other Stoughton parks yet to be adopted


• Continuing and sharing of ”The Stoughton Model” of urban wood use


• Continuous planting of a diverse species of urban trees throughout Stoughton 


• Involvement in park creation opportunites – particularily in consideration of the City of Stoughton’s 5-year plan of connecting Stoughton trails to 


Dane County Trail System (Bike Madison)


7Community Involvement Team







Appendix


8Cummins Confidential







Solar Kiln – Stoughton “Treecyling”


 Solar Kiln built at Cummins Stoughton Campus in 2014


• Cummins bought kiln components ($3,700 out of local CIT budget over 2013/2014)


• Stoughton FFA Alumni donated trailer (up to $4,000 commitment)


• High school students helped build kiln with Stoughton CIT volunteers, supplementing technical education (in particular electronics, solar panels)


• Stoughton High School monitors wood and demonstrates item for education


• Kiln has processed ~12,000 board feet Stoughton urban wood since 2014 - Oak Wilt or the Emerald Ash Borer effected trees


• Kiln dried lumber used at Stoughton Senior center and available for purchase as reclaimed urban wood at local lumber yard 


• Received 2016 Wisconsin Arborist Association Innovation Award


• ~220 EEEC hours


9Cummins Confidential







Adopt-A-Park


10Cummins Confidential


 John Nygaard Virgin Lake Park


– 0.5 miles of scenic trail, 8 wooded acres, 2 


acre pond


– 5 open acres to south of Roby Rd


– Soccer field, playground, and shelter


– 250 EEEC Hours in 2015-16


– Additional 200 hours in Stoughton tree 


planting (2012 – present)







Stoughton Wood Duck Houses


11Cummins Confidential


• 10 houses built March 16 


• ~ 50 EEEC Hours in 2016


• 50% utilization rate (above 


average for new install)


• Averaged 6.6 eggs / used 


house


• 50% laid eggs hatched







Bat House Plans
 20 houses w/naturally resistant 


urban wood (ash)


– Grooves cut into interior surfaces


– Caulk seal at top of roof


– Dark color advised


 Cummins data tag 


– “Bats nesting, do not disturb!”


 Back to back installation on a 


street sign anchor and post


– One north facing, one south


 10-15 feet away from 


trees/shrubs, sheltered from 


wind


 Within a ¼ mile of water 


source


12Community Involvement Team








City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan – Public Works Facility


Committee Action: Public Works Committee recommends Council approval 4 – 0 with the Mayor
voting.


Fiscal Impact: $0


File Number: R-11-2017 Date Introduced: February 28, 2017


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton operates under the requirements State issued stormwater discharge
permit, and


WHEREAS, the permit requires certain criteria related to the operation and maintenance activities for
the Public Works facility, and


WHEREAS, an updated Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) has been prepared to meet the
requirements of the City’s permit, and


WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee met on February 21, 2017 to consider the draft SWPPP and
recommends approval; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby adopts the Stormwater
Pollution Prevention Plan attached as exhibit A for the Public Works Facility located at 515 S Fourth
Street to replace previous versions.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-2017 - Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan.docx







City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan – Public Works Facility


Committee Action: Public Works Committee recommends Council approval 4 – 0 with the Mayor
voting.


Fiscal Impact: $0


File Number: R--2017 Date Introduced: February 28, 2017


WHEREAS , the City of Stoughton operates under the requirements State issued stormwater discharge
permit, and


WHEREAS , the permit requires certain criteria related to the operation and maintenance activities for
the Public Works facility, and


WHEREAS , an updated Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) has been prepared to meet the
requirements of the City’s permit, and


WHEREAS , the Public Works Committee met on February 21, 2017 to consider the draft SWPPP and
recommends approval; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby adopts the Stormwater
Pollution Prevention Plan for the Public Works Facility to replace previous versions.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\R-2017 - Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan.docx







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  February 10, 2017 


 


To:  Public Works Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


 


The City of Stoughton operates under a DNR permit to discharge stormwater to water of the 


States.  One requirement of the permit is to update our Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan for 


the Public Works Facility.  I have attached the proposed Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


for your action. 


 


 


 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 


 


Attachment: Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


 


    



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





 


 


  


 


 
APPENDIX F 


STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP) 
 


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


1 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
Purpose 
 
The City of Stoughton (City) has prepared the following Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 
(SWPP) to provide the status of the City’s Public Works/Parks Department building. This report 
is prepared in compliance with the conditions of the NR 216 permit pursuant to Part II, Section 
F.7, of Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (WPDES) Permit Issuance No. WI-
S050075-2. This report provides information related to the daily operations and maintenance 
activities for the Public Works Department facility. 
 
A. Site Location and Contact Information 
 
Name of Facility: Stoughton Public Works/Parks Department Building 
Facility Address: 515 S 4th Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
Facility Contact: Brett Hebert 
Title:   Street Superintendent 
Telephone:  (608) 873-6303 
 
B. Air Photo/Map of the Yard 
 
Attached Figure F-1 includes the following: 
 


1. Locations of major activities and storage areas. 
2. Identification of drainage patterns and potential stormwater runoff source and 


discharge areas. 
3. Identification of any wetlands and/or waterways on-site or nearby. 
4. Identification of Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) connections 


and where this portion of the MS4 system drains. 
 
C. Overview 
 
This SWPPP covers the operations at the City of Stoughton’s Public Works/Parks Department 
facility. This SWPPP describes the facility’s and associated operations, identifies potential 
sources of stormwater pollution, recommends appropriate best management practices (BMPs) 
or pollution control measures to reduce the discharge of pollutants in stormwater runoff, and 
provides for periodic review of this SWPPP with the annual report. The Public Works 
Department has planned to move locations in 2018. The recommendations stated in this plan 
are intended to be incorporated into the design of the new site.  If the move to the new location 
is delayed, the City should implement the recommendations herein at the current location. 
 
The primary goal of the stormwater permit program is to improve the quality of surface waters 
in the City’s MS4 by reducing the amount of pollutants potentially contained in the stormwater 
runoff. The purpose of this SWPPP is to provide the following: 
 


1. Identification of potential sources of stormwater and non-stormwater 
contamination to the MS4 system from the facilities. 


2. Identification of and recommendation of appropriate “source area control” BMPs 
designed to reduce or prevent stormwater contamination. 


3. Identification of and recommendation of “stormwater treatment” BMPs to reduce 
potential pollutants within contaminated stormwater prior to discharging to the 
MS4 system and to Waters of the State. 


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


2 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
D. Information 
 


1. Inventory of Potential Sources of Contamination at the Public Works/Parks 
Department Facility 


 
The following have been identified as potential sources of contamination at the Public 
Works/Parks facility. 
 
a. Salt storage shed–The City’s deicing and snow removal operations are 


described in Section 3.01 F. 4. and Table 3.01-2.  The City applies salt to local 
roads to improve driving conditions. The salt is delivered in bulk to the site and 
loaded into the salt storage shed. The material is covered in the shed but is 
exposed to the elements during delivery. 


b. Used oil- One 300 gallon aboveground plastic storage tank stores used motor 
oil. The waste oil tank is protected and enclosed within a steel structure. Waste 
oil is removed from the tank by a private contractor every eight to ten months. 


c. Used oil filter container–Used oil filters are disposed of in a designated 
container. The oil filters are drained for one to two weeks and then disposed of 
by a licensed disposal company. 


d. Exterior materials storage area–A number of materials are stored on the site in 
uncovered areas of the parking lot. These include stone aggregate, wood chips, 
steel street sign posts, cast iron castings, electronic recyclable equipment, and 
miscellaneous equipment. 


e. Enclosed materials storage area–The Public Works Department Building is an 
enclosed facility with ten overhead doors for storing large equipment within the 
facility. Vehicle maintenance materials are also stored within the facility. These 
materials (shown in Table 1) are properly stored, used, and disposed of and are 
not a stormwater contamination threat. 
 


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


3 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
 


Various materials require a Material Safety Data Sheet (MSDS) such as brake cleaner, 
solvents, and lubricants. A full list of these items along with their MSDS is available at this 
facility. 
 
E. Recommendations to Prevent Polluted Runoff From Reaching Nearby Water 


Resources 
 
Stormwater management controls or BMPs will be implemented to reduce the amount of 
pollutants associated with the Public Works/Parks Department facility from entering the City’s 
MS4 from and reaching nearby water resources. 
 


1. Source Area Control 
 


To the maximum extent practicable and where cost-effective, source area control BMPs 
designed to prevent stormwater from becoming contaminated will be used. 


 
a. Erosion Control Measures 


 
Material storage areas prone to erosion shall be protected and the material 
prevented from entering the storm sewer and discharging from the site. 
Currently, the materials at the Public Works facility are stockpiled in a sloped 


Material Quantity 
New motor oil One 55-gallon drum, One 150-gallon tank 
Diesel fuel One 250-gallon tank 
Used motor oil One 300-gallon tank 
Hydraulic fluid One 150-gallon tank, two 10-gallon tank 
Hydraulic oil One 55-gallon drum 
Transmission fluid One 10-gallon tank, One 55-gallon drum 
Transmission oil One 55-gallon drum 
Antifreeze One 55-gallon drum 
Bar and chain saw oil One 55-gallon drum 
Used oil dry One 55-gallon drum 
Used antifreeze One 55-gallon drum 
Used oil filters One 55-gallon drum container 
Road striping paint Varies, 10-12 gallons stored at a time (30-40 gallons per 


year) 
Athletic field striping paint 10-gallon container 
Diesel fuel additive Two 5-gallon buckets 
Diesel exhaust fluid 20 gallon 
Hydraulic fluids 3 5-gallon buckets 
Gear lubricant One 30-gallon drum 
Vehicles and equipment with fuel tanks Eleven 
Oil dry  One 55-gallon drum 
Grease, lubricating 6 boxes 
Brake cleaner 24 cans 
Penetrating fluid 12 cans 
Degreaser One 5-gallon bucket 
Roundup 10-gallon container 
Sidewalk salt 20 bags depending on the winter season 
Cleaning supplies Varies, stored in closed cabinet 
Gas cans Varies, stored in closed fire proof cabinet 
 
Table 1 Stoughton Public Works/Parks Department Materials Summary  


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


4 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


area that drains toward the Yahara River.  Potential improvements are shown on 
Figure F-1 including perimeter sediment reduction devices (ie:  silt sock).   


 
b. Good Housekeeping 


 
Good housekeeping practices are designed to maintain a clean and orderly 
work environment. This will reduce the potential for significant materials to come 
in contact with stormwater. The following practices are included in the Public 
Works Department’s good housekeeping efforts. 


 
1) Routine sweeping is done weekly in the Public Works 


Department Building garage area. 
2) Oil dry is located in the Public Works Department Building and 


disposed of through a licensed disposal company. 
3) Used oil rags are collected and stored in a specific steel 


container and disposed of through a licensed disposal company. 
4) Used vehicle parts and scrap metal are recycled. 
5) Oil filters are stored in a drum container inside the Public Works 


Department building and are removed by a licensed contractor on 
an as-needed basis. 


 
c. Preventive Maintenance 


 
Preventive maintenance involves the inspection, testing, and cleaning of facility 
equipment and operational systems before use. These inspections will help to 
uncover conditions that might lead to a release of materials. The following 
equipment/activities are included in the inspection schedule outlined in 
Section H. 


 
1) Vehicles 
2) Equipment 
3) Catch basin sumps/oil separator 


 
d. Spill Prevention and Response Procedures 


 
Spills and leaks together are the largest source of stormwater pollution. Thus, 
this SWPPP specifies material handling procedures and storage requirements 
for significant materials. Equipment and procedures necessary for spill cleanup 
and prevention of spilled materials from being discharged have also been 
identified. All employees should be made aware of the proper procedures. The 
following procedures have been developed for spill response for the Public 
Works Department facility. 


 
1) Emergency–dial 911 (Major spills are defined as an emergency 


condition and generally include hazardous materials). 
2) Nonemergency–Utilize on-site materials to contain the spill and 


pick up (floor dry or oil sorb napkins). Dispose in an appropriate 
container and contact licensed contractor to remove from site. 


 
e. Bulk Storage 


 
At the Public Works Department facility, dry bulk storage is limited on the site. 
Salt is stored in a covered storage shed located on grass adjacent to the paved 


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


5 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 


 
 
Figure F-2 Example of perimeter sediment reduction 
device  


parking lot. The State of Wisconsin inspects the storage shed annually. Bulk 
storage of various stone aggregates are stored uncovered in the Public Works 
Yard. 


 
Liquid bulk storage at the Public Works Department site is utilized for used oil. 
Two 6,000 gallon silos located in the yard contain brine and a 1,000-gallon tank 
in the yard contains emulsion fluid. Tank containment is described in Section E 
(2) (c). 


 
2. Stormwater Treatment Best Management Practices 


 
Structural control measures may be necessary to control pollutants that are still present 
in the stormwater after the nonstructural controls have been implemented. These types 
of controls are physical features that control and prevent stormwater pollution. 
Structural controls can include a range of application such as preventive measures, 
collection structures, or stormwater treatment systems. Structural controls may require 
the construction of a physical feature or barrier. 


 
a. Preventive Measures 


 
Preventive measures are controls that are intended to prevent the exposure of 
stormwater to contaminants. The following preventive measures have been 
chosen for the Public Works Department facility. 


 
(a) Perimeter sediment reduction devices (ie:  silt sock) are 


recommended on the downhill side of external storage areas as 
shown on Figure F-1. 


 
 
 
 


 
 


 


b. Diversions 
 


Diversion structures (including grading and paving) are used to divert 
stormwater runoff away from high risk areas and prevent contaminants from 
coming in contact with stormwater runoff or to channel contaminated stormwater 


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


6 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


to a treatment facility or containment area. Diversions are currently not identified 
as an appropriate control at the Public Works Department Building site. 


 
c. Containment 
 
Containment areas are structures designed to hold pollutants or contaminated 
stormwater runoff to prevent it from being discharged to nearby surface waters. 
Currently, the City’s waste oil tank is protected and enclosed within a steel 
structure. Waste oil is removed from the tank by a private contractor as needed 
throughout the year.  


 
The floors of the Public Works Department Building are sloped toward the 
center of the building where trench drains and catch basins collect potential 
contaminants within the facility. These catch basins contain water/oil separators 
and are connected to the sanitary sewer system to prevent these 
contaminants from reaching the storm sewer system. The catch basin 
structures located in the Public Works Department Building are cleaned three 
times a year by a licensed contractor. The Public Works Department facility is 
not equipped with a clear water or gray water plumbing system.  
 
Vehicle washing operations are completed within buildings that drain to sanitary 
sewer or are washed at private vehicle washing companies in the City of 
Stoughton that have drains to sanitary sewer.  
 


F. Suggested Retrofits to Current Stormwater Practices 
 
No retrofits are currently recommended. 


 
G. Installation/Implementation of Recommendations Timeline 
 
It is recommended that the City Public Works/Parks Department implement the BMPs 
previously described and continue its current practices of preventing stormwater contamination 
from the site. Table 2 lists possible BMP activities and measurable goals the City may consider 
implementing.  
 


 
 


Activity Measurable Goal 
Existing Public Works Department Building pollution 
prevention activities. 


Continue to implement. 


Install perimeter sediment control devices on 
downhill side of external storage areas as shown on 
Figure F-1.   


Install by April 15, 2017. 


Review existing spill prevention and response 
procedures for improvements 


Document potential improvements in the March 
31, 2017, MS4 annual report. 


Review existing Public Works Department staff 
training for stormwater pollution prevention at the 
Public Works/Parks Department Building for 
improvements 


Document potential improvements in the March 
31, 2017, MS4 annual report.  Provide training 
annually on stormwater pollution prevention. 


 
Table 2 Public Works/Parks Department Building BMP Activities and 
Installation/Implementation Schedule  


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


7 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


H. Inspection Frequency 
 
Table 3 provides the current inspection schedule implemented by Public Works Department 
staff. It is recommended that all items are inspected a minimum of two times a year 
supplemented with a full inspection of the Public Works/Parks Department Building yard once a 
year. 
 


 
 
I. Employee Training 
 
The City’s Public Works/Parks Department employees receive instruction for good 
housekeeping procedures, material storage techniques, and related topics. It is recommended 
employees receive training on an annual basis for spill prevention and response procedures, 
erosion control, and winter road maintenance, illicit discharge detection and reporting, and 
stormwater management practices.  The City should review this existing program and consider 
improvements. 
 
J. Spills Prevention Plan and Response Procedures 
 
The City of Stoughton has a Spills Prevention Program. The existing program provides 
procedures to prevent, contain, and respond to spills that may discharge into the MS4 and 
downstream receiving waters. The City should review this program and consider improvements 
constituting an updated Spills Prevention Program in the following areas.  


 
1. Purpose 
2. Contact Information 
3. Spills Prevention 
4. Spill Containment 


 
  


Facility/Potential 
Source of Contamination 


Inspection Frequency 


Salt storage shed  Inspected annually by State. 
Drain oil and used oil Inspect regularly. 
Used oil filter container  Disposal by licensed contractor. Inspect regularly. 
Public Works/Parks Department 
Building  


Inspect regularly. 


Vehicles Wash vehicles indoors in areas that drain to sanitary sewer.  
Equipment As needed. 
Catch basin sumps Clean three times a year. 
Various bulk liquid storage 
containers 


Inspect regularly. 


 
Table 3 Public Works/Parks Department Building Inspection Frequency Schedule  


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


8 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


Public Works/Parks Department Facility 
 


 
Front of Public Works/Parks Department Building 
 


 
Public Works Department Garage and Heavy Vehicle Storage  


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


9 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
Cold Mix Stored in the Public Woks Garage 
 


 
Public Works Garage Floor Drain and Catch Basin Sump with an Oil Separator 


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


10 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
Brine Storage 
 


 
Waste Oil Storage 


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


11 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
Hydraulic Fluid Storage 
 


 
Vehicle Fuel Storage 
 


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


12 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
Transmission and Hydraulic Fluid Storage 
 


 
Various Vehicle Fluids Storage  


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


13 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
Salt Storage Shed 
 


 
Cold Storage Building 


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


14 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
Emulsion Storage Tank 
 


 
Cast Iron Casting Storage 
  


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


15 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
Stone Aggregate Storage behind Garage 
 


 
Miscellaneous Recyclables Storage Area 
  


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


16 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
Stone Aggregate Storage 
 


 
Stone Aggregate Storage 
  


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







City of Stoughton, Wisconsin   
WPDES Permit No. WI-S050075-2  Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan 


17 
Prepared by Strand Associates, Inc.® 
S:\MAD\1000--1099\1040\104\Wrd\Report\Appendices\Appendix F-Stoughton SWPPP.docx 


 
Salt/Sand Mixture Storage 
 


 
Wood Chips Storage 


DRAFT-(02/08/17)







Public Works Committee
Tuesday, February 21, 2017 @ 6:00 PM
Hall of Fame Room – 381 E Main St


Members Present: Alderpersons Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Kathleen Johnson and Mayor
Olson


Absent/Excused: Sid Boersm


Staff: Director of Public Works Brett Hebert and Vickie Erdahl


Guests: Streets Supervisor John Halverson, Alderperson Paul Lawrence, Residents Travis
Needham, Tom & Gail Gomach, Sheri Evans-Piper and Elaine Brenz


Call to Order: Majewski called the meeting to order


1) Communications: Hebert reported:


 That he had reached out to Strand to find out how they communicate with other utilities
when the street projects are going to move forward. Strand does reach out to the utilities to
see if they want to be involved as costs / access are more favorable when roads are
completely opened.


 The migration of Stormwater, plus the Tree and Sign Inventories has been completed by
MSA for GIS mapping.


 The Emerald Ash Borer RFP’s were sent to 13 vendors and are to be submitted by
Thursday, March 2nd.


 Cummins was awarded a $15,000 grant for environmentally sound projects which they will
be giving to the City to use for boardwalks.


2) Reports: Hebert stated there has only been 13 openings so far this year which is quite
normal for the season and that yard waste permits were just printed and will be on sale at the
beginning of March with the site opening on April 2nd – weather permitting.


Old Business:


3) Tree Planting Ordinance 10-2(d) Revised: Hebert made more changes to the Ordinance
removing the costs involved as each year they have the potential of changing, so will be stated
on the permit form. Also the developers will now be allowed to plant their own trees provided
the plan is approved and the arborist has reviewed the tree selections. Currently the
Ordinance is being reviewed by the City Attorney.


4) Public Works Facility Update: The Public Works has requested to continue working with
Angus Young and is waiting for Council review/approval on February 28 to move forward with
the next phase.


The Hub will be publishing an article with information for the public.


New Business:


5) Approve January 17, 2017 Meeting Minutes: Motion by O’Connor seconded by Johnson
to approve minutes. Motion carried 4-0 (w/Mayor voting yes).







6) 2017 Street Construction Plans / Sidewalk Installation Policy: Scheel stated that an open
house was held for the residents to review the plans. The streets presented are a total
reconstruction with curb, gutter and installation of sidewalks if none are present or
replacement of bad sidewalk sections. Streets reviewed were: Division St (Washington to just
beyond Forton), Brickson St (Page to dead end), Manilla St (Forton to Brickson), Henry St
(Ridge to Main), Park St (Lynn to Academy) & S Harrison St (Main to Hamilton). Scheel
stated that there was an adjustment made on S Harrison to move the sidewalk closer to the
curb and only have a four foot terrace area to address concerns raised by the adjacent
property owners. The adjustment does impact some terrace trees. Multiple residents were
concerned about safety. One property owner had installed a number of arborvitae shrubs in
the right of way and expressed interest in transplanting them. They also constructed a
retaining wall that extends into the right-of-way but the impact will be minimized by relocating
the sidewalk closer to the curb and gutter. Alderperson Johnson had looked at the area and
had a safety concern for a property. Scheel reported the City’s policy is to install sidewalks on
both sides of all streets that are being reconstruction and if there is interest to deviate from this
policy, the Common Council would need to take specific action to do so.


The property owner (Gomach) at 209 S. Harrison stated that they had their property surveyed
to find their stakes for the property lines. In discussions with the Planning Department about
five years ago, the property owner reported he had located the property lines and their
landscaping and retaining wall would be on private property; not in the right-of-way. It appears
from the City’s engineering survey that the property owner had not located the correct property
iron.


Residents in this area would like to not have the sidewalk installed stating that there is little
foot traffic and there is a sidewalk on the other side. Mayor Olson stated she understands
losing the greenspace but also meetings that she has attended state that studies show that
people want “walkability”.


Also discussed in more detail was the Henry St reconstruction where a resident has
arborvitaes in the terrace area which are not acceptable tress for that space and with the
installation of sidewalk it would be behind the trees. There is also, a triangle of vision problem
with the trees. O’Connor stated he had a safety concern with the shrubs in the right-of-way.


Alderperson Johnson would like to review the areas again


.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by the Mayor to approve the Street Constructions Plans
as presented. Motion carried 3-1 (with the Mayor voting yes and Johnson voting no).


Scheel discussed the concept to allow angle parking on Hoel Avenue adjacent to the future
Nordic Ridge Park. The group discussion included:


 Hoel Avenue will be a heavily traveled street
 Angle Parking does create concern about safety
 Traffic calming measures for the park and Hoel Avenue should be incorporated into the


construction plans for this region
 This neighborhood is planned to have normal the standard City speed limit of 25 MPH
 Protection of as much green space as possible is important to the group


There was not a consensus whether to allow this type of street design or not and no action
was taken.







7) Construction and Post Construction Ordinance Changes: Scheel discussed the changes
made to this Ordinance in order for the City to be in compliance and keep its stormwater
permit. The changes meet the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and Dane County
standards. Currently the City Attorney is reviewing the changes.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by Johnson to recommend to the Common Council to
approve the changes to portions of the Erosion Control and Stormwater Management
Code Sec’s 10-122, 10-127, 10-129, 10-130 1ne 10-131. Motion carried 4-0 (with Mayor
voting yes)


8) Stormwater TMDL – Status Report: Scheel provided an up on the status of the stormwater
study that has been in process for several months. Currently, the DNR is reviewing the draft
version. The remaining draft schedule was discussed


9) Yahara Wins – Participation Report: Scheel provided a report that highlighted the national
attention this program is achieving as we work with other municipalities and agencies to
address stormwater quality improvements on a regional basis. Stoughton is an active member
of the Yahara Wins program.


10) Pollution Prevention Plan: Scheel discussed and reviewed the draft Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the Public Work Facility. This plan will replace the previous
version and provides more guidance on appropriate housekeeping and maintenance
requirements for the facility than the previous version. This updated plan is a necessary
component of the City’s stormwater discharge permit. Hebert stated that the staff will have
more training on the practices outlined in the document. This document will also be
incorporated into the City TMDL Study that is currently underway.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by Mayor Olson to recommend to the Common Council
replace the previous policy and adopt the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan.
Motion carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes).


11) Tiered structure for street opening repair: Hebert submitted a draft of the new street
opening permit in which a PASER rating will now be recorded on the permit and if the rating is
a seven (7) or higher there will be more criteria required when replacing the roadway which
are stated in the Special Provision section of the permit. The charges for the permits remains
unchanged.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by Johnson to approve the changes to the Street
Opening Permit. Motion carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes)


12) Bridge Inspection Report: Hebert provided the committee with the report from the State
from the 2016 inspections. Each bridge has some repair work that needs to be done and the
Jefferson St footbridge was recommended to be replaced. Alderman Majewski suggested that
the footbridge project be put into the CIP due to the cost of meeting the recommended
requirements and would also like to see some different options.


Item will be placed on March’s agenda.


13) Downtown Improvements (Crosswalks, Drinking Fountains, Flowers): Hebert presented
some information on costs for installing drinking fountains which he was directed to research
into at a previous meeting. The costs of a drinking fountain and installation would be







somewhere between $18,000 - $25,000 per fountain. At this time the committee feels the
costs are high and won’t pursue. Hebert also explored the costs to have stone planters
(downtown area) and costs for soil and plants. The issue still remains, once the planters were
filled who would pay for the products and also maintain them. The committee would like to
have more discussion on the subject and look into the possibilities of volunteers – such as
Garden Clubs, Chamber etc.


Item will be placed on March’s agenda.


Also the Lazzaros’s, who maintain the Memory Garden Park on S Page St have asked if there
is anyone who can volunteer to help with the park as they are elderly and it’s becoming harder
for them.


14) Discussion of Tree Pruning Procedures: Tabeled.


15) Stoughton Community Farmers Market: Hebert stated he received an email from Kevan
Bard a board member for the Stoughton Community Farmers Market requesting that the
farmers market be able to continue using Forrest St {Main to north alley} on Saturday
mornings from 8am-1pm for the period {May 27 – Oct 28, 2017}. Mr. Bard still needs to
submit a street closing form signed by the surrounding businesses that will be affected by the
closure and a valid insurance certificate of liability insurance as part of the process.


Motion by Mayor Donna Olson, seconded by Johnson to allow the closure of Forrest St
(Main to north alley) to accommodate the Stoughton Community Farmers Market on
Saturdays May 29 – October 28, 2017. Motion carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes)


16) Future Agenda Items: Bridge Inspections, Planters/Flowers, Annual Stormwater Report,
Pruning Policies


Moved by O’Connor seconded by Johnson to adjourn the meeting at 7:45 pm. Motion
carried 3-0. Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative Assistant – 2/22/17





		9a-R-11-2017 - Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan.pdf

		9b-Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan.pdf

		9c-PW MinFebruary 21, 2017 - Copy.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a contribution up to $450 from the
Park Development Fund for assistance in having a new lighted flag pole installed in Norse Park by
Matt Krcma as an Eagle Scout project.


Committee Action: Approved by the Parks and Recreation Committee 4-0 & Finance Committee 4-0


Fiscal Impact: Not to exceed $450


File Number: R -12-2017 Date Introduced: February 28, 2017


WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department has been working with Matt Krcma on a flag pole
improvement at Norse Park, and


WHEREAS, his fund raising effort has resulted in over ¾ of the project costs, it was decided by the Parks
and Recreation Committee that contributing $450 from the Park Development Fund would help make sure
the project would be completed, and therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to use $450 of Park development Funds towards the completion of the lighted
flag pole project at Norse Park.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote ? - ?







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a contribution up to $450 from the
Park Development Fund for assistance in having a new lighted flag pole installed in Norse Park by
Matt Krcma as an Eagle Scout project.


Committee Action: Approved by the Parks and Recreation Committee 4-0


Fiscal Impact: Not to exceed $450


File Number: R - ? - 17 Date Introduced: February 14, 2017


WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department has been working with Matt Krcma on a flag pole
improvement at Norse Park, and


WHEREAS, his fund raising effort has resulted in over ¾ of the project costs, it was decided by the Parks
and Recreation Committee that contributing $450 from the Park Development Fund would help make sure
the project would be completed, and therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized use of Park development Funds not to exceed $450 to be used for assistance
in improving the flag pole at Norse Park as an Eagle Scout project.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote ? - ?


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote ? - ?







PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday January 25, 2017
4:30 PM
Ed Overland Room


Present: Alderpersons: Dennis Kittleson, Regina Hirsch, Paul Lawrence, Matt Bartlett, Mayor
Donna Olson and Parks and Recreation Director Tom Lynch
Guests: Matt and Todd Krcma


1. Call to Order
Selsor called to order at 4:30 PM


2. Approval of the Minutes from December 28, 2016
Motion by Kittleson, seconded by Bartlett, to approve the minutes of December 28, 2016. Motion
carried 4-0.


3. Communications
Lynch shared his 2017 Sponsorship Program materials with the committee


Old Business
4. Bike Transportation Plan
The committee reviewed the plan with the updates from the River and Trails Task Force
Committee.


Motion by Bartlett, seconded by Lawrence to recommend to Council approval of the Stoughton
Bike Transportation Plan. Motion passed 4-0.


5. Nordic Ridge Splash Pad
After analyzing the proposed park costs compared to the fees required from the developer, they
asked for more information of the build out time table, the amount in the park development fund
and any extra contributions from the developer for the park. Lynch will provide this information as
soon as possible.


New Business
6. Friluftsliv Center
The committee reviewed the details of the proposed Friluftsliv Center in Mandt Park.
There are possible issues with sewer and water pipes under the ground near the area and DNR
questions that need to be flushed out before moving forward with a site feasibility study.


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Bartlett to recommend to Council to use Park development
Funds to pay for a site feasibility study, not the exceed $6,000, after reviews of the underground
utilities and DNR questions have been positively resolved. Motion passed 4-0.


7. Fair Contract
Due to a change in a meeting with the representatives of the Fair Board, this agenda item will be
tabled until the next meeting.


8. Skate Park Improvements
This item will be tabled until next meeting.


9. Eagle Scout Norse Park Flag Pole Request
Matthew and Todd Krcma presented a plan for Matthew to replace the flag pole at Norse Park,
light it and create a decorative garden around the pole. He has fundraised about $1,600 so far
and needs about $450 to complete the project. He has a couple other fundraising opportunities to
explore.


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Kittleson to recommend to Council to contribute up to $450
from the park development fund for assistance in having a new lighted flag pole installed in Norse
Park by Matt Krcma as an Eagle Scout project. Motion passed 4-0.



tlynch

Highlight







10. Future Agenda Items
Junior Fair Contract
Amundson Trail Agreement
Development of Mandt Park
Bike Lanes Update
Nordic Ridge Park Plan
Skate Park Improvements
Possible hidden Parks


Adjournment
Motion made by Bartlett,, seconded by Hirsch to adjourn at 6:10 PM. Motion passed 3-0.







MATTHEW KRCMA - NORSE PARK EAGLE PROJECT


EXPENSES


New Flag Pole - Liberty Flag - PURCHASED $1,399.50


Landscaping estimate - Moyers $369.23


Concrete $100.00


Topsoil, 6 yards @ $35 $210.00


Paver blocks $50.00


Silica sand $40.00


Electrical labor and materials $400.00


Food and drink for workers, day of project $75.00


Commemmorative plaque listing donors $300.00


TOTAL EXPENSES: $2,943.73


DONATIONS RECEIVED


Zalk Joseph $250.00


Friede & Associates $300.00


VFW/American Legion $1,000.00


Dennis Kittleson $100.00


Optimist Club $450.00


TOTAL DONATIONS: $2,100.00











9
3


6
 S


ta
r


r
 S


c
h


o
o


l
 R


d
. S


to
u


g
h


to
n


, W
I 


5
3


5
8


9
;  


P
h


o
n


e
:  


(6
0


8
) 


8
7


3
-9


1
4


1
;  


F
a


x
:  


(6
0


8
) 


8
7


3
-9


4
1


4
;  


w
w


w
.m


o
y


e
r


s
in


c
.n


e
tMOYER’S INC.


LANDSCAPE
SERVICES & 
NURSERIES


MOYER’S INC. 
June 20, 2016


Drawing: 
2016-020         


by: m.hanna


S
to


u
g


h
to


n
,  


W
I  


N
o


r
s


e
 P


a
r


k
F


l
a


g
 P


o
l


e


KARL FOERSTER GRASS


COOL SPLASH DIERVILLAPARDON ME DAYLILY


PALACE PURPLE CORAL BELLS


PINK VISIONS ASTILBE









		10a-R-12-2017-Resolution for the Eagle Scout Norse Park Flag Pole Request.pdf

		10b-Norse Park Flag Pole Eagle Scout Project Funding Request.pdf

		Resolution for the Eagle Scout Norse Park Flag Pole Request.pdf

		PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1-25-17.pdf

		Expenses and donations list.pdf

		Norse Park picture.pdf

		norse park flag pole plans.pdf

		brick used.pdf








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Stoughton Bike Transportation
Plan.


Committee Action: Approved by the Parks and Recreation Committee 4-0 & Finance Committee 4-0


Fiscal Impact: $1,400 – For signage from the Park Development Fund


File Number: R -13-2017 Date Introduced: February 28, 2017


WHEREAS, the City Council requested an update for the bike routes plan and the River and Trails Task
Force developed a map based on input from experienced bike riders and accepted standards, and


WHEREAS, your Parks and Recreation Committee met on January 25, 2017 to consider the Stoughton Bike
Transportation Plan and recommends approval, and


WHEREAS, $1,400 from the Park Development Fund will be used to purchase custom bike route signs to
be placed every 2-3 blocks along the designated routes, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the Stoughton Bike
Transportation Plan attached as Exhibit A is approved, and the expenditure of $1,400 from the Park
Development fund for the purchase of bike route signs is also approved.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote ? - ?







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Stoughton Bike Transportation
Plan.


Committee Action: Approved by the Parks and Recreation Committee 4-0


Fiscal Impact: $1,400 – For signage from the Park Development Fund


File Number: R - ? - 17 Date Introduced: February 14, 2017


WHEREAS, the City Council requested an update for the bike routes plan and the River and Trails Task
Force developed a map based on input from experienced bike riders and accepted standards, and


WHEREAS, your Parks and Recreation Committee met on January 25, 2017 to consider the Stoughton Bike
Transportation Plan and recommends approval, and


WHEREAS, $1,400 from the Park Development Fund will be used to purchase custom bike route signs to
be placed every 2-3 blocks along the designated routes, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to approve the Stoughton Bike Transportation Plan and associated costs as
recommended.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote ? - ?


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote ? - ?







Stoughton Bike Transportation Update 


The River and Trails Task Force has created a proposal for improving bicycle access through 


Stoughton by designating additional bike routes that move bike traffic efficiently through the 


City using wider arterial streets. 


The committee discussed the use of bike boulevards (streets with lower speed limits and 


increased marking) but felt that Stoughton’s bike traffic did not warrant this change yet. They 


also were not comfortable creating bike lanes on streets that would take away existing 


approved parking, based on the political challenges and lower bike usage than cities like 


Madison. 


That said, the WisDOT is proposing the following: 


Velkommen Way to WIS 138 – 10 foot multi-use path on both sides of US 51. 


WIS 138 to Hoel Avenue – 10 foot multi-use path on both sides of US 51 (completed as part of separate 
project). 


Hoel Avenue to WIS 138 South – 5 foot bike lanes on both sides of US 51 


WIS 138 South to Page Street – No bike accommodations on US 51; Signed bike route on Jefferson Street. 


Page Street to Water Street – 12 foot shared parking lane/bike accommodation on both sides of US 51. 


Water Street to 5th Street – No bike accommodations on US 51; North - Signed bike route on Washington 
Street; South - Signed bike route on Jefferson Street (to 6th Street). 


5th Street to Spring Road – 5 foot bike lanes on both sides of US 51. 


There was also a reluctance to disrupt existing park rows and sidewalks to change them for bike 


use, except possibly on the north side of Jackson from Nygaard to Hy. 51. 


 







A bike lane extension makes sense on the west side of Kings Lynn from Jackson to Hy. 51. This 


was brought us several times during the public discussions last fall. 


 


 


We have proposed a future off road trail extension north from Nygaard St into the Eggleson’s 


Woods development if and when things change in that area. 


 


 


 







There is a need for a safe transfer from the north side of Highway 51 at Hamilton St. to the 


south at Rowe St. Bikers should exit and walk on the yellow area using the marked crossing. 


Blinking lights, similar to those across from Walmart on Hy 51, would help this passage.  


 


 


 


Using the Jefferson Street walk bridge ties the east and west together better than using Main 


St. The gravel hill leading west from the bridge should be marked as such with walking 


encouraged. 


 







One of the more creative additions connects the Yahara River Trail at Bjoin Park with the far 


west side by using Wilson St., passing through the High School grounds, and exiting on 


Buckingham Rd. Permissions are being sought with the High School. 


 


 


The WisDOT will be creating roundabouts at 138/51 and Hole Ave/51. Both of these will have 


access points that help connect the south to the north. 


 


 







Creating, promoting and signing of bike route (on street routes without a separate street lane) 


would encourage bike users to move through the city on the widest streets. The committee 


wanted to investigate the cost of bike route signs that are more attractive and personal to 


Stoughton. 


        


Traditional           Better        Even better 


Main bike routes should have names that identify where they are taking the bike users through 


the city. We have found customizable signs for $12 each in a quantity of +50. Following the 


standard a sign every 2-3 blocks, we would need 114 signs at a cost of $1,368. 


The attached map indicates many routes that keep homes within 2 blocks of a signed bike 


route. An effort was made to take advantage of every north/south and east/west option. We 


would propose moving ahead with signage on the higher priority streets as the budget would 


allow. 


There are several routes that lead out of the City onto less traveled county highways 


representing all directions. The proposed routes lead to all of these options. 


The committee feels that the plan is consistent with the 1997 plan created by the former Bike 


Committee. Both plans had a goal of connecting parks and schools throughout the City. 


 


Moving forward, the committee intends to create off road options whenever possible, generally 


through the development of new sub-divisions. Examples would be continuing north from Kings 


Lynn Rd., north from Business Park North, east from the Stone Crest development and south 


from Milwaukee St. on the far west end. The Kettle Park West development is trail friendly with 


both on and off road options. The Nordic Ridge development, platted in the mid-2000s contains 


an east/west access of off road trail with a proposed bike route connecting Milwaukee St. and 


Aaker Rd. 


The committee sees this plan as a first step that could and should change as the population and 


bike usage increases. The current Comprehensive Plan Survey conducted by the Planning 


Department contains numerous comments from citizens looking for increased safe bike travel. 


With the new developments and the popularity of bike travel increasing, this is a great time for 


an update and posting of bike transportation.   







Sp
rin


g R
d


Roby Rd


N 
Pa


ge
 St


Jackson St
Wi


llia
ms


 D
r


W Main St


Lin
co


ln 
Av


e


E Main St


Jo
hn


so
n S


t


Skaalen Rd


N 
Va


n B
ur


en
 St


S P
ag


e S
t


Ea
st 


St


Ki
ng


 St


Aaker Rd


Sk
yli


ne
 D


r


Shadyside Dr


Kings Lynn Rd


S F
ou


rth
 St


Ve
ter


an
s Rd


Greig Trl


Lin
ne


ru
d D


r


Ho
el 


Av
e


Dunkirk Ave


W Milwaukee St
M oline St


West St


Co
llin


s R
d


Ny
ga


ard
 St


Taylor Ln


Kriedem an Dr


Giehler Dr


Su
nd


t L
n


Hamilton St


S M
on


ro
e S


t


S P
rai


rie
 St


Pin
e S


t


Hilldale Ln


Hyland Dr


Co
un


try
 C


lub
 R


d


Ra
ce


tra
ck


 R
d


Buckingham Rd


S A
ca


de
my


 St


Oak
vie


w
Dr


S V
an


 B
ur


en
 St


Be
rry


 St


Furseth Rd


Cha pin Ln


Bj
oi n


Dr


S B
ro


ok
lyn


 D
r


North St


Brooklyn Dr


PleasantView
Dr


Devonshire Rd


Eisenhower Rd


Vernon St


Rutland-Dunn Town Line Rd


Lu


nde Cir


Virgin Lake Dr


S G
jer


tso
n S


t


Industrial C ir


Sheryl Ln


Ridge St


Larvik Ln


Mellum Dr


Forton St


S F
ran


kli
n S


tMcComb Rd


Smedal Dr


No
ra 


St


S W
ate


r S
t


Mandt Pkwy


W McKinley St


Stone Crest Rd


S D
ivi


sio
n S


t


Aalseth Ln


Pr
og


res
s L


n


S S
ixt


h S
t


Velkommen Way


Business Park Cir


W Chicago St


Kegonsa Rd


Carl Ave


Gr
an


t S
t


Isham St


Oak 
Dr


E South St


Meadow Dr
S Seventh StEs


tat
e L


n


Qu
inn


 Ln


N 
Mo


nr
oe


 St


Giles St


Elm
 St


W Randolph St


N 
Pr


air
ie 


St


Oa
k O


pe
nin


g D
r


Ha
rve


st 
Ln


Apo
llo 


Cir


Cedarbrook Ln


Marie Dr


Skyline Ln


W Milwaukee St


Vernon St


S B
roo


kly
n D


r


Pin
e S


t


Ridge St


Hyland Dr


Giles St


138


138


A


N


B


A


E x i s t i n g  B i k e  R o u t e s
a n d  B i k e  L a n e s


0 0.450.225
Miles


February 2017


Bike Lane Existing
Bike Lane Proposed
Bike Route Recommended
Bike Route Proposed


City of Stoughton Boundary
Existing Trail


School
Future Park
Existing Park
Public Land


Yaha ra Riv er


City of Stoughton







PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday January 25, 2017
4:30 PM
Ed Overland Room


Present: Alderpersons: Dennis Kittleson, Regina Hirsch, Paul Lawrence, Matt Bartlett, Mayor
Donna Olson and Parks and Recreation Director Tom Lynch
Guests: Matt and Todd Krcma


1. Call to Order
Selsor called to order at 4:30 PM


2. Approval of the Minutes from December 28, 2016
Motion by Kittleson, seconded by Bartlett, to approve the minutes of December 28, 2016. Motion
carried 4-0.


3. Communications
Lynch shared his 2017 Sponsorship Program materials with the committee


Old Business
4. Bike Transportation Plan
The committee reviewed the plan with the updates from the River and Trails Task Force
Committee.


Motion by Bartlett, seconded by Lawrence to recommend to Council approval of the Stoughton
Bike Transportation Plan. Motion passed 4-0.


5. Nordic Ridge Splash Pad
After analyzing the proposed park costs compared to the fees required from the developer, they
asked for more information of the build out time table, the amount in the park development fund
and any extra contributions from the developer for the park. Lynch will provide this information as
soon as possible.


New Business
6. Friluftsliv Center
The committee reviewed the details of the proposed Friluftsliv Center in Mandt Park.
There are possible issues with sewer and water pipes under the ground near the area and DNR
questions that need to be flushed out before moving forward with a site feasibility study.


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Bartlett to recommend to Council to use Park development
Funds to pay for a site feasibility study, not the exceed $6,000, after reviews of the underground
utilities and DNR questions have been positively resolved. Motion passed 4-0.


7. Fair Contract
Due to a change in a meeting with the representatives of the Fair Board, this agenda item will be
tabled until the next meeting.


8. Skate Park Improvements
This item will be tabled until next meeting.


9. Eagle Scout Norse Park Flag Pole Request
Matthew and Todd Krcma presented a plan for Matthew to replace the flag pole at Norse Park,
light it and create a decorative garden around the pole. He has fundraised about $1,600 so far
and needs about $450 to complete the project. He has a couple other fundraising opportunities to
explore.


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Kittleson to recommend to Council to contribute up to $450
from the park development fund for assistance in having a new lighted flag pole installed in Norse
Park by Matt Krcma as an Eagle Scout project. Motion passed 4-0.



tlynch

Highlight



tlynch

Highlight







10. Future Agenda Items
Junior Fair Contract
Amundson Trail Agreement
Development of Mandt Park
Bike Lanes Update
Nordic Ridge Park Plan
Skate Park Improvements
Possible hidden Parks


Adjournment
Motion made by Bartlett,, seconded by Hirsch to adjourn at 6:10 PM. Motion passed 3-0.





		11a-R-13-2017-Resolution for the Stoughton Bicycle Transportation Plan.pdf

		11b-Stoughton Bike Transportation Plan.pdf

		Resolution for the Stoughton Bicycle Transportation Plan.pdf

		4. Stoughton Bike Transportation Update.pdf

		PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1-25-17.pdf








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve using Park Development Funds to pay
for a site feasibility study for a building to be located in Mandt Park.


Committee Action: Approved by the Parks and Recreation Committee 4-0 & Finance Committee 4-0


Fiscal Impact: Not to exceed $6,000


File Number: R -14-2017 Date Introduced: February 28, 2017


WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department has been working on a plan for a recreation center in
Mandt Park as a way to engage people to be more connected to the outdoors, and


WHEREAS, it was decided by the Parks and Recreation Committee that a site feasibility study was the
appropriate next step, and


WHEREAS, a price for this study was estimated at between $4,000-$6,000 by a representative from Strand
and Assoc., and therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to use Park Development Funds in an amount not to exceed $6,000 for a site
feasibility study for a building in Mandt Park.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote ? - ?







CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve using Park Development Funds to pay
for a site feasibility study for a building to be located in Mandt Park.


Committee Action: Approved by the Parks and Recreation Committee 4-0


Fiscal Impact: Not to exceed $6,000


File Number: R - ? - 17 Date Introduced: February 14, 2017


WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Department has been working on a plan for a recreation center in
Mandt Park as a way to engage people to be more connected to the outdoors, and


WHEREAS, it was decided by the Parks and Recreation Committee that a site feasibility study was the
appropriate next step, and


WHEREAS, a price for this study was estimated at between $4,000-$6000 by a representative from Strand
and Assoc., and therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized use of Park development Funds not to exceed $6,000 to be used for a site
feasibility study for a building in Mandt Park.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote ? - ?


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote ? - ?







PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday January 25, 2017
4:30 PM
Ed Overland Room


Present: Alderpersons: Dennis Kittleson, Regina Hirsch, Paul Lawrence, Matt Bartlett, Mayor
Donna Olson and Parks and Recreation Director Tom Lynch
Guests: Matt and Todd Krcma


1. Call to Order
Selsor called to order at 4:30 PM


2. Approval of the Minutes from December 28, 2016
Motion by Kittleson, seconded by Bartlett, to approve the minutes of December 28, 2016. Motion
carried 4-0.


3. Communications
Lynch shared his 2017 Sponsorship Program materials with the committee


Old Business
4. Bike Transportation Plan
The committee reviewed the plan with the updates from the River and Trails Task Force
Committee.


Motion by Bartlett, seconded by Lawrence to recommend to Council approval of the Stoughton
Bike Transportation Plan. Motion passed 4-0.


5. Nordic Ridge Splash Pad
After analyzing the proposed park costs compared to the fees required from the developer, they
asked for more information of the build out time table, the amount in the park development fund
and any extra contributions from the developer for the park. Lynch will provide this information as
soon as possible.


New Business
6. Friluftsliv Center
The committee reviewed the details of the proposed Friluftsliv Center in Mandt Park.
There are possible issues with sewer and water pipes under the ground near the area and DNR
questions that need to be flushed out before moving forward with a site feasibility study.


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Bartlett to recommend to Council to use Park development
Funds to pay for a site feasibility study, not the exceed $6,000, after reviews of the underground
utilities and DNR questions have been positively resolved. Motion passed 4-0.


7. Fair Contract
Due to a change in a meeting with the representatives of the Fair Board, this agenda item will be
tabled until the next meeting.


8. Skate Park Improvements
This item will be tabled until next meeting.


9. Eagle Scout Norse Park Flag Pole Request
Matthew and Todd Krcma presented a plan for Matthew to replace the flag pole at Norse Park,
light it and create a decorative garden around the pole. He has fundraised about $1,600 so far
and needs about $450 to complete the project. He has a couple other fundraising opportunities to
explore.


Motion by Lawrence, seconded by Kittleson to recommend to Council to contribute up to $450
from the park development fund for assistance in having a new lighted flag pole installed in Norse
Park by Matt Krcma as an Eagle Scout project. Motion passed 4-0.







10. Future Agenda Items
Junior Fair Contract
Amundson Trail Agreement
Development of Mandt Park
Bike Lanes Update
Nordic Ridge Park Plan
Skate Park Improvements
Possible hidden Parks


Adjournment
Motion made by Bartlett,, seconded by Hirsch to adjourn at 6:10 PM. Motion passed 3-0.







Friluftsliv Center  


Friluftsliv is a Norwegian philosophy 


of connecting with nature. The Cen-


ter would be a place where Stough-


ton residents could connect with na-


ture through outdoor recreation and 


education.  The center would be lo-


cated at Mandt Park to take ad-


vantage of the Yahara River and 


trails.  


Center Amenities & Activities  


Outdoor Equipment Rentals  


Nature Play & Learning Space  


The cost of gear is one of the major barriers to entry for participating in outdoor recreation. By providing 


low cost equipment rentals, it will allow more people the ability to participate. Equipment rentals could 


include canoes, snow shoes, skateskayaks, tents, backpacking packs, fishing gear, and bicycles.  


Nature play and learning areas are a new trend 


where children are able to interact with nature dai-


ly. They are in a designated, managed location in an 


existing or modified outdoor environment where 


children of all ages and abilities play and learn by 


engaging with diverse natural elements, materials, 


organisms and habitats, through sensory, fine mo-


tor, and gross motor experiences.  







Outdoor Music Concerts 


Indoor Farmers Market  


Introductory Classes & Trips 


Special Events  


Other major barriers to entry for participating in out-


door activities include the lack of skills and people to 


participate with. The center could provide a hub for in-


troductory classes and trips resulting in skills and social 


connections.  


Mandt Park hosts many special events throughout the year 


including the Syttende Mai run, the Stoughton Fair, and 


Coffee Break. The center could act as a hub for these events 


with a central operations point and restrooms.  


Food and Drink Options  


A year-round indoor farmers market located in the center 


would provide access to affordable and healthy food op-


tions.  


An outdoor patio along the river would provide a place to 


socialize. Places like this are very popular in the Milwau-


kee area and the City of Madison plans on opening one in 


Olbrich Park.  


The center with a patio along the river would be a poten-


tial area to expand concerts in the parks. The concerts 


could then be moved inside during the winter months.  







 


Facility Rental and Public Use 


The center’s main indoor space could be used for com-


munity meetings, scout groups, sport groups, City 


meetings as well as weddings and family reunions.  


 


 


 


 


 


Pickle Ball Complex 


Pickle Ball is big in Stoughton and continuing to grow. The little used basketball courts in the northeast corner 


of Mandt Park should be converted into a pickle ball complex with up to 6 courts. In the winter the space 


would become a skating ring. Lights would extend the usage of both activities. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


This plan is by no means finished. Everything listed here and on the map is open for change.  Our purpose at 


this point is to promote a vision that meets the needs of the community in multiple ways. We are open to 


constructive criticism and new ideas. This has been with us in one form or another for several years. The plan 


changes constantly with new ideas. We expect that to continue with your help. 











As discussed, the site for the proposed building would face the following challenges:


1. Two large (24-inch) sanitary sewer interceptors flowing toward the wastewater treatment plant
located south of Mandt Parkway. These would need to be relocated.
2. A 10-inch water main (replaced in 2012) located south of Mandt Parkway. This would need to
be relocated.
3. The proposed building appears to be located over Mandt Parkway. This road provides park


access as well as access to the bus barn and wastewater treatment facility. The road could be
terminated or re-routed depending on the desires of the community.


4. Based on several projects we have completed in Mandt Park, much of the area is a former
landfill area. Any landfill material encountered would likely need to be tested and placed in a
licensed landfill.


5. The Wisconsin DNR would likely have some concerns about the proximity of the building to the
Yahara River. Setbacks would likely need to be met or a variance would need to be granted.


We have attached maps showing existing utilities in this area of Mandt Park.


We estimate the cost to prepare a brief site feasibility study addressing the above items to be
approximately $4,000 to $6,000, depending on the level of detail required.


Please contact me with any questions.


Thanks,


Mark Fisher











75
 ft


75
 ft


177 ft


51
 ft


50
 ft


180 ft
29


 ft


144 ft


141 ft


25
 ft


Planning, Water Resources, ParcelText, Parcels





		12a-R-14-2017-Resolution for the Feasibility Study for Friluftsliv Center in Mandt Park.pdf

		12b-Feasibility Study for Friluftsliv Center in Mandt Park.pdf

		Resolution for the Feasibility Study for Friluftsliv Center in Mandt Park.pdf

		PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 1-25-17.pdf

		6. Friluftsliv Center.pdf

		6a. Notes From Mark Fisher.pdf

		6b. Mandt Park Utilities.pdf

		setback picture.pdf








PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
Monday, August 22, 2016 @ 4:07pm 
Mayor’s Office  
 
Present: Alders:   Pat O’Connor, Thomas Majewski, Paul Lawrence via conference call, Tim Swadley    
(ex-officio), Director Gillingham 
 
Others in attendance:  Director Brehm 
  


1. CALL TO ORDER:  O’Connor called the meeting to order at 4:07pm.  
 


2. Approval of the Minutes of the July 25, 2016 Personnel Committee meeting minutes. Motion by 
Lawrence, second by Majewski. Approved 3-0 


3. Director Gillingham gave a Human Resources & Risk Management update: recruiting for the 
Utilities Customer Service position due to Rebecca Jacobson’s departure; recruiting for the 
Deputy Treasurer position being vacated by Julie Roberts who has taken a position with the 
State; recruiting for the Senior Center Case Worker position being vacated by Rebecca Kelly; will 
start recruiting as soon as possible for the Event Coordinator position vacated by Christina 
Dollhausen who is moving and explained that some changes have been made to update the 
position which she will be discussing later; an offer was extended on the Parks position of Parks 
Maintenance Supervisor which was declined so today an offer was made to Patrick Groom.  
 


4. Director Gillingham referred everyone to the memo dated 8-11-2016. She noted the newly 
created position of Opera House - House Manager which is a position created with the duties 
from Event Coordinator as well as some new responsibilities. She stated that this position along 
with the Assistant Event Coordinator which has been updated to Box Office Manager and 
Volunteer Coordinator have both been recently graded by Springsted. Director Gillingham then 
asked Director Brehm to further explain the changes and what they would mean to the City.  
Director Brehm asked the committee to turn their attention to the spreadsheet he had provided 
that shows the new structure of the Opera House Department. Brehm stated that while 
unfortunate, Christina’s departure did create the opportunity to make the changes that are 
needed to sustain the Opera House for the next few years. Director Gillingham stated that the 
organization chart shows which direction Brehm needs to go. Swadley asked if this restructure 
was a something he would have planned anyway. Brehm answered yes, that this has been a 
three year process. Lawrence asked what the financial impact to the City would be for both 
positions. Director Brehm stated that based on his analysis of his 2016-2017 budget, the Opera 
House is able to cover all additional costs without any extra funding from the City. He explained 
his methodology: By not hiring for Christina’s position at the same rate but at a lower rate and 
having her position vacant for a time frees up extra money. Plus, Julia is taking single benefits 
whereas Christina was taking family benefits. This made it possible to give a small increase in 
wages to Julia. Director Brehm explained that the Opera House has seen greater profit and is 
able to support any cost incurred by the change in wages for these positions.  Lawrence asked if 
there were extra duties along with the wage increase. Director Brehm stated there were. 
Majewski asked where the Opera House gets the revenue. Brehm stated that it comes through 
ticket sales, subsidies, and memberships. O’Conner asked what the City’s contribution is to 
which Director Brehm replied that it is $143,506 in 2016, was $160,321 in 2017 contingent on 
Brehm being 75% Opera House and 25% Media. O’Conner stated that HR will have to recruit for 
the House Manager position and asked about Julia’s position. Director Gillingham stated that 
Julia can be moved into the position because of the new promotion policy. O’Conner asked if 
the matter had to be taken to Finance to which Director Gillingham replied it does not because 
there is no financial impact to the City.  


 
 







Motion to move forward by Majewski, second by Lawrence, All in Favor (3-0).  


Director Gillingham stated that the next Personnel Committee meeting will be scheduled for September 12 due 


to the Labor Day holiday on September 5th.   


 
ADJOURNMENT 


Motion to adjourn by Lawrence, second by Majewski, All in Favor (3-0). Meeting adjourned at 4:30pm. 







PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
Thursday, January 5, 2017 @ 6:05pm 
Mayor’s Office 
 
Present: Alders: Pat O’Connor, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Donna Olson (ex-officio), Director 
Gillingham. Majewski excused. 
 
Others in attendance:  
  


CALL TO ORDER:  O’Connor called the meeting to order at 6:05pm.  
 


Approval of the Minutes of the December 15, 2016 Personnel Committee meeting minutes. 
Motion by Lawrence, second by Boersma, Approved 3-0 


Communications 
Director Gillingham gave a Human Resources update: Jamin Friedl was hired for Utilities 
Department Finance Manager and will start on January 23rd. All three openings at the Senior 
Center have been filled. There will be one more opening when Jean Truss gives her formal 
resignation which is expected in January/February.  Desi Weum was hired to replace Kelli Krcma 
in the Planning Department. We are recruiting for two positions and at this time have received 2 
applications for the IT/Media Services Information Technology Director position and 4 
applications for the Public Works Mechanic position. Tonight we will be discussing the recent 
resignation of Laurie Sullivan as Finance Director. 1095C’s are due at the end of January. 
Benefits enrollment is done and the final spreadsheet is being sent to Finance for entry into 
BS&A. The Library board will meet to decide on whether to move 2 of the Library employees to 
minimum at a cost of $700 and $200 to move the subs. Meeting held with Utilities employees 
who stated they do not understand if they are doing the same jobs what is the reason for 
different pay rate. The IT position is a cross of three positions, the PAQ is good but the 
description is not current. We will send it to Springsted. 
 
Review and action regarding Finance Director position description 


Mayor Olson stated that Director Sullivan is leaving and that her final day is 1/20/17. O’Connor 


read from an email received by him from Tim Swadley stating that he believes quite a few of the 


City Council members believe that the position should be split into two,  Finance and Economic 


Development. Director Gillingham stated that Economic Development is just a part of her 


position and that there is no split of wage for two positions. She further stated that the Finance 


Director position was found to be in range which is $81,000-$122,000. For that skill set we will 


need to hire at the $100,000 range. She then stated that Mayor Olson wanted the position 


posted immediately but that we will not likely have hired someone before Director Sullivan 


leaves the position. Director Gillingham stated that BS&A was contacted and they would be 


helping to get payroll done along with the Deputy Clerk, Kelli Krcma. Mayor Olson stated that 


Debbie Blaney would be absent starting the next day (January 6, 2017) and that with Laurie 


leaving, Debbie absent for up to six weeks, Lisa Aide, the Deputy Treasurer had made a list of 


things she needs to learn. Director Gillingham stated that they were in discussions with Carla 


from Baker Tilly to possibly have someone from Baker Tilly assist with projects as well as day to 


day duties. She also stated that BS&A will remote in to work with Kelli with payroll and City 


Clerk, Lana Kropf, is good with AP and should be able to handle that. With Debbie gone 


however, Lisa will be doing both positions. O’Connor asked if Baker Tilly would be full time (40 


hours per week)? Mayor Olson stated that it was still being worked out and would be an interim 


solution. Lawrence asked who would fill Director Sullivan’s functions. Mayor Olson stated that 


Lisa and Lana can sign checks. She further stated that Director Sullivan is making a list of her 







duties and a calendar of dates they are done. Mayor Olson stated that she believes the position 


should be posted as is and be changed if changes were indeed needed. Director Gillingham 


concurred. Lawrence asked if according to the survey done when the re-org took place if the 


Clerk should be reporting to the Finance Director. Director Gillingham stated that she had 


looked at the study and could not find the reasoning. She further stated that it could be changed 


at any time as there is nothing (including wages) that is tied to who the Clerk reports to. Director 


Gillingham stated that during the interview process for Finance Director the candidate would be 


informed that some of those duties may be changed or removed. Lawrence asked Director 


Gillingham to talk about the hiring policy. Director Gillingham read the portions that applied. 


Lawrence asked if there shouldn’t be a contract for Director positions. To which several people 


objected stating it would like be impossible to hire if there was a contract attached to the 


position. Director Gillingham stated that the Work Rules should be looked at to possible add 


“length of time” before leaving. O’Connor stated that this subject should be discussed in the 


future. Boersma stated that Director Sullivan was a benefit to the City for a number of years, 


that we could have used more notice of her leaving, but that we were lucky to have her. 


Lawrence asked if there would be an exit interview and will he be privy to the notes form that 


meeting. He stated he would like to know if there are things we could have or can do in the 


future to prevent good employees from leaving. O’Connor stated that he believes exit 


interviews to be useless. The person leaving will either usually dump on someone or suggest 


changes that can’t be made. Director Gillingham stated that exit interviews can sometimes be 


beneficial. Mayor Olson stated that anyone hired for the Finance Director position will have to 


be involved in Economic Development because it cannot be stripped out of the job. Lawrence 


asked Director Gillingham what she thought about the position description. She replied that she 


believes it to be an accurate description and would like to move forward.  


Motion to post with current position description as is by Lawrence, second by Boersma, Approved 3-0 


Future Agenda Items 
O’Conner stated that the following should be added to future agenda items: Springsted phase III; pay for 
performance; contracted employees vs Work Rule changes 
 


 


 
ADJOURNMENT 


Motion to adjourn by Lawrence, second by O’Connor, All in Favor (3-0). Meeting adjourned at 6:50pm. 







PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
Monday, September 12, 2016 @ 6:13pm 
Fire Department Meeting Room 
 
Present: Alders: Pat O’Connor, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Donna Olson (ex-officio), Director 
Gillingham 
 
Others in attendance:  Chief Leck, Kim Jennings, Director McGlynn, Director Sullivan 
  


1. CALL TO ORDER:  O’Connor called the meeting to order at 6:13pm.  
 


2. Approval of the Minutes of the August 22, 2016 Personnel Committee meeting minutes. Motion by 
Lawrence, second by Boersma. Approved 3-0 


3. Director Gillingham gave a Human Resources update: Interviews were held for the Utilities 
Customer Service position due to Rebecca Jacobson’s departure; Lisa Aide was promoted to the 
Deputy Treasurer position which was vacated by Julie Roberts; interviews will be held on 
Monday for the Senior Center Case Worker position; Nicole Richmond was offered and accepted 
the position of Opera House-House Manager and will begin on the 29th; the Parks position of 
Parks Maintenance Supervisor  was filled by Patrick Groom; the Fire Department position of 
Equipment Support Technician was filled by Mason Barber; the Utilities Department will be 
hiring another Journeyman Lineman and we will be recruiting for that position; Kelly Verheyden 
will be leaving the Library and moving so we will be hiring for that position when her house sells. 
 


4. Director Gillingham gave a recap of the last personnel meeting regarding the budgetary 
numbers requested for phase II of the compensation plan. She also read through a memo dated 
9-22-2016. The plan from Springsted was not kept current and in order to be brought up to date 
employees would need to be given a 1% increase for 2016 and a 1% increase for 2017. Director 
Sullivan stated that the employees were not being given a true 2% across the board. She also 
stated that more steps were added to the wage scale adapted in 2015. That there would now be 
15 steps to get there. Director Gillingham stated that the cost of the 2% increase would be 
$70,437, the cost to bring the three leadership members that are not being paid at market min-
point would be $28,313 and the step alignment cost would be $19,827. The total cost being 
$118,577. Mayor Olson stated these increases would allow the City to retain good employees 
already in place rather than hire new employees at the market level. Director Sullivan stated 
that the cost reflects ALL cost to the City including WRS and FICA. Motion to approve Paul 
Lawrence, second by Boersma, Approved 3-0. 
 


5. Director Gillingham read a memo to Mayor Olson dated 9-2-2016 regarding her request to move 
the Human Resources & Risk Management Generalist position from part-time to full-time. She 
explained that with the departure of the Deputy Treasurer and the promotion of Lisa Aide to 
that position provides $9151 in excess wages available. Director Gillingham also explained that 
in order for the position to full time for the remainder of 2016 the cost would be $6654.73 and 
the cost for the position to go full time for 2017 would be $10,000. She explained that the 
department continues to be unable to meet the needs of the City due to workload and lack of 
manpower. She stated that the addition of hours has been added to her 2017 budget. Mayor 
Olson supports the need for two full time employees. Motion to approve Boersma, second by 
Lawrence, Approved 3-0. 
 


6. Leaves of Absence – Discussion regarding how an employee may use Funeral leave in regards to relation 
and whether sick time can be used. Director McGlynn stated that as a director she needs to know what 
to tell her employees what can and cannot be done in regards to policy. There was also discussion 
regarding the payout of sick time and use of vacation when an employee is leaving City employment . 
Director Gillingham stated that it has come to her attention that several employees, when leaving City 







employment, have tendered their resignation and then spent 2 weeks’ vacation taking them through 
the end of a month thus making the City pay benefits for someone who is essentially no longer there. 
She stated that a clause should be added to the City Work Rules that states that when an employee 
tenders their resignation they are no longer allowed to use vacation time. O’Conner also asked Director 
Gillingham to have “Domestic Partner” to the verbiage in the Work Rules where it applies. Decision was 
made to have Director Gillingham work on this policy, then bring it back to Personnel. 
 


7. Director Gillingham stated that after months of negotiations the WPPA and the Stoughton Police 
Dept. have come up with a recommended contract for 2016-2017 calendar years. The 
recommended changes are as follows: on page 3 Article I- Sergeants have been removed, they 
will no longer be in the union; on page 6 Section 3 in the 3rd the added paragraph “Notification 
of full time employees…”; on page 10 update title to City Clerk to Director of HR to reflect 
correct person/title; and on page 11 Article XII added the wording regarding WRS to Retirement. 
Regarding the wage rates: Back pay is owed and there would be a 2.6% raise retroactive to 
1/1/16 and another 2% increase on 1/1/17. 
Motion to move approve by Boersma, second by Lawrence, All in Favor (3-0).  
 


8. For future Agenda items, Director Gillingham stated there would be the updates to the work rules, an 
update on the EEO report, Utilities positions, and PAQ’s. 
 
 


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion to adjourn by Lawrence, second by Boersma, All in Favor (3-0). Meeting adjourned at 7:25pm. 







PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
Thursday, December 15, 2016 @ 6:05pm 
Mayor’s Office 
 
Present: Alders: Pat O’Connor, Tom Majewski, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Donna Olson (ex-officio), 
Director Gillingham 
 
Others in attendance: Alder Matt Bartlett, Chief Leck, Kim Jennings, Director MacDonald, Director 
Kardasz, Director Hebert 
  


CALL TO ORDER:  O’Connor called the meeting to order at 6:05pm.  
 


Approval of the Minutes of the September 12, 2016 Personnel Committee meeting minutes. 
Motion by Boersma, second by Majewski, Approved 4-0 


Communications 
 Director Gillingham gave a Human Resources update: Flu shot Clinic was successful. Benefit 
enrollment for 2017 is still underway. The HR Department sent out renewal letters to all benefit 
eligible employees stating the cost of benefits that did rise but is still below the cost in 2015. The 
benefit renewal packet also included an employee specific letter that stated the benefits the 
employee was already receiving. HR has received all of the packets back from the employees 
and is working on transferring the data to a master spreadsheet. The information will be verified 
and the information will be sent to vendors as well as shared with the Finance Department for 
entry into BS&A. HR will also generate an employee specific letter stating the benefits they have 
selected as well as their compensation for 2017. It will also state the 2017 WRS rate and the 
amount of Life Insurance the employee has in units. A cover letter will instruct the employee to 
check for accuracy. All City employees will get a 2% increase. O’Connor asked if there had been 
any feedback. Director Gillingham stated that once the employee receives the letter they will 
then call if there are questions. The scale was updated but will need to be looked at next year. 
The letters will be given to the Department Head who will meet with each employee. 
Director Gillingham stated that there is an interview scheduled next week for the Utilities 
Finance Manager position. Human Resources has been recruiting for three positions at the 
Senior Center. An offer is going to be extended for the Nutrition Site Manager and offers have 
been made on the two Case Manager positions and will move forward after background checks. 
We are always recruiting for Fire Department volunteers and EMS is looking for a driver only. 
The Police Union contract was ratified. Thanks to Kim Jennings, who developed the spreadsheet 
for the PD back pay. To avoid problems in the future Director Gillingham states the Union should 
be engaged in the early spring and with Mike Getz to move on this early. O’Connor asked about 
the employee massages he had heard about. Director Gillingham stated that the massages were 
free through a government program and the employees (especially the Police Dept.) had 
appreciated them. Boersma asked about the Anytime Fitness contract. Director Gillingham 
stated that she had met with them today. Boersma stated that the program is underutilized. 
Director Gillingham stated that the committee is working on a new program. 
 
Review and Action re: Manager Position description and pay grade level 
Director Gillingham stated that the Personnel Committee had, two years ago, tasked her with 
deciding if an IT Department should be added to the City.  It is not the best use of time for 
Director Brehm and Director Scheel to be working on IT problems. After some investigation and 
discussion she decided to investigate a little further and with Chief Leck’s help met with an IT 
employee from Monroe. The team developed a job description pulled from local government 
and non- government IT positions. Director Gillingham and Director Scheel tweaked the position 
description. It was then sent to Springsted for grading. Springsted graded it a 14. We’re 
comfortable with the duties and responsibilities that we’ve put together to cover IT for the City. 
Mayor Olson stated the person would have oversight of the Media Services Department to 







integrate IT and Media. Boersma asked about the pay grade and Director Gillingham told the 
committee that at a paygrade 14 the compensation for the position would be $59,666.20-
$78,728.28 and we hope to acquire someone in the mid 70’s. O’Connor asked what the 
interview process would be. Director Gillingham replied that it would be at the director level 
recruiting format. Motion to approve Paul Lawrence, second by Majewski, Approved 4-0. 
 
Review and Action re: Public Works Fleet Maintenance Manager Position description                              
Director Hebert spoke about the wordsmithing done to the Fleet Maintenance Manager position 
description. Hebert stated the only changes were to update the description to include the duties 
already being done within the job. He also stated the salary was not changing. Boersma asked 
about the 6 months for the CDL. Hebert explained that it is a fair amount of time and gives the 
employee time to get comfortable. Bartlett asked about the employee providing his own tools. 
Hebert explained that it is standard practice and is normal for the position. The specialized tools 
would still be supplied by the City.  Motion to approve Lawrence, second by Majewski, Approved 
4-0. 
 
Review and Action re: Public Works Mechanic position description and Pay Grade                          
Director Gillingham stated that the Mechanics position is set at a pay grade 8 by Springsted.  Hebert 
stated the position description reflects the day to day duties required in the position. They will be a snow 
truck operator, assist in specs on trucks, however will not be supervising anyone. They will need to be 
able to work the tire changing machine and will need to be able to communicate well.  Motion to 
approve Majewski, second by Lawrence, Approved 4-0. 
 
Discussion regarding Library into Compensation Study 
Director Gillingham announced that she will be meeting with the Library Personnel Committee on 
Tuesday, January 3rd and then if approved will meet with the Library Board on Wednesday, January 18th.  
 
Discussion & action regarding Utilities Department into Comp study 
Director Gillingham stated that since being tasked with bringing Utilities into the Springsted study she 
has found that Utility companies generally use MEUW as a statewide source. Kim Jennings used a blend; 
she goes up one level and 2 levels below. The PAQ’s were sent to Springsted and each position was 
graded.  The Lineman positions are overridden altogether due to market. Everyone is now on scale. 
Jennings stated the grading was not the same as she had determined.  Director Gillingham stated that 
Springsted looked at the PAQ’s and job descriptions and set the pay grades accordingly. The MEUW 
study has nothing that looks at a specific person’s job. MEUW puts them right at midpoint. Lawrence 
asked if the rates were high or low. Jennings answered low, lower than comparables. Director 
Gillingham stated that the recommendations Brian Erickson made were added to the spreadsheet after 
discussions with Director Kardasz. Mayor Olson stated that like all employees they will be able request a 
review. Director Gillingham stated that these were vetted through Springsted and she stands behind the 
study and supports the recommendations made. Mayor Olson stated that Springsted looked at the 
descriptions, not how long a person’s been in the position. It’s what you do, not how long you do it. 
Lawrence stated if we advertise and get no response we will need to review the rating. Director 
Gillingham agreed that the IT position is a good example of where we may need to do so. Motion to 
approve Boersma, second by Lawrence, Approved 4-0. 
 
Discussion regarding Utilities Accounting Manager position 
Majewski stated that Alder Swadley asked him to bring discussion regarding the Utilities Finance 
Manager position to the Personnel committee. He wondered if it would be a possibility to combine the 
two Finance positions. Director Gillingham told the committee that she, Mayor Olson, Director Kardasz, 
and Kim Jennings discussed this and asked Jennings to share some information that should be 
enlightening. Jennings stated that the position she holds is quasi government with construction and 
regulatory accounting specific to Utilities. Basically it’s like being a comptroller for a $20 million business. 
Director Gillingham agreed and stated that though Director Sullivan could not be here because of prior 
obligations she would agree that adding the Utilities Finance Management to her position would not 







work due to the already stretched state of her position. Director Kardasz stated that the Utilities needs a 
dedicated person in the Finance Manager position. Mayor Olson stated that even if we hire someone 
new for economic development, even if you took that out of Laurie’s hands, she would have a hard time 
dealing with Utilities. The capacity is not there.  Alder Bartlett echoed the Mayor’s point. He stated that 
some companies have entire teams doing Kim Jennings position. We need to keep this position specific 
to Utilities. Director Gillingham stated the position is Full Time Plus. 
 
Discussion regarding Phase III of the Compensation Study 
Director Gillingham handed out an article regarding pay for performance from the League of 
Municipalities and asked the committee to read it so that it can be discussed at the next meeting. 


 
Discussion and possible action about future Personnel Committee meetings re: date and time 
Director Gillingham stated that the committee has struggled to meet on the first Monday of the month 
and suggested choosing a different day for the regular Personnel meeting. Discussion led to the decision 
to leave the meeting on the first Monday of every month. 
 
 


ADJOURNMENT 


Motion to adjourn by Lawrence, second by Majewski, All in Favor (4-0). Meeting adjourned at 7:45pm. 







1


COMMISSION ON AGING MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, November 1, 2016


Stoughton Room, Stoughton Area Senior Center


Present: Charlotte Snow, David Sharpe, Ros Gausman, Lou Havlik, Nancy Hoffman, Don Mix,
Jeanne Schwass-Long
Staff Present: Cindy McGlynn, Hollee Camacho
Absent & Excused: David Bacon, Bob Barnett, Ron Jensen, Dennis Kittleson, Mary Onsager


Call to order: J. Schwass-Long called the meeting to order at 11:05 AM.
October Minutes:
N. Hoffman requested correction that the minutes read under Director Comments that she took
“some” not all, of the photos for the display board she created.
Moved by R. Gausman, seconded by D. Sharpe to approve with correction; passed unanimously.


Director Comments


 We are still in the process of updating carpet and A/V media on the second floor.


 Medicare Part D season is here. Case Managers and a trained volunteer are helping with
navigating the online Plan Finder. Staff will not make decisions for clients, just show options.


 Many staff changes are coming up….two Center staff will be retiring, one is moving and our
Township Case Manager position is still open.


 The Dementia Friendly Community Committee has been active since July. So far, three
businesses have been trained and several others are being scheduled. The committee plans
to launch a Memory Café by March of next year.


 We’re still $7,000 short for our fundraising needs. A request was made in Oct.’s newsletter.


Committee Reports
Program: Committee met and looked at priorities. They are still looking for more people to help
with carrying out their action plans. Call Tricia if you or someone you know would be interested in
being involved with collaborating with different groups, expanding intergenerational programming
and in planning “Bring a Buddy” events. Next meeting Dec. 6 at 9:30 AM


Public Relations: Committee is looking at low or no-cost marketing options. They are beginning to
review the marketing plan and determining whether there are other groups to target and how.
They are also planning to review needed building updates and marketing materials. They offer to
work with the Evaluation Committee to survey the community on how they learn/would like to
learn about events in Stoughton. Depending on the results, they hope to collaborate with the
Chamber, Rec. Dept. and other community entities to reach a larger audience.


Discussion followed:


 Our newsletter space is limited to advertising just ongoing programs housed at the Center.
Whereas in our Stoughton Area Guide for Senior Services we try to list all programs and
services available to older adults. Paper copies are available at the Center and various
locations throughout the City and the online version may be updated. It was suggested that
the next print copy note that “updates made throughout the year will be noted online.”


 Question raised if the Welcome Neighbor program still exists.







2


 Cindy will check with Skaalen’s current policy for sharing information with their residents.


Volunteer: Meets Nov. 3 at 9am


Evaluation: Meets Nov. 3 at 1pm


Fund Development: Meets Nov. 11 at 2:30pm


Anyone is welcome and encouraged to attend any of our committee meetings!


Legislative updates


 City is up for approval from City Council tonight. The main personnel change is in creating an IT
position.


 County Budget is expected to be finalized next week.


 City had its first comprehensive plan meeting last week. Today is the last day for completing a
survey. They are downstairs and available online.


Meeting Adjourned: Moved by D. Sharpe, seconded by L. Havlik to adjourn the meeting. Carried
unanimously. Meeting adjourned at 12:00PM.


Next Meeting: Tuesday, December 6 at 11:00 a.m







 


STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY 


BOARD of TRUSTEES MEETING 


 


DATE: Wednesday, February 15, 2017 


TIME: 6:30 P.M. 


LOCATION: Carnegie Room, Stoughton Public Library 


 


I. Call to Order by President Linda Schaefer 


 


II. Review of Agenda 


 


III. Review/Approval of Minutes of January 18, 2017 * (enclosure)  


 


IV. Recognition Opportunities * 


A. Friends of the Library 


 


V. Public Comment Period (limited to no longer than 5 minutes) 


 


VI. Review/Discussion of Correspondence 


 


VII. Education Updates 


 


VIII. Board In-Service: Petra Horst on Library Trustees 


 


IX. Review/Approval of Financial Statements for January 2017 * 


A. Fund 215 (General Fund) 


B. Fund 217 (Special Gift Fund) 


C. Stoughton Area Community Foundation 


 


X. Review/Approval of Bills for February 2017 * 


A.  Fund 215 (General Fund) 


B.  Fund 217 (Special Gift Fund) 


 


XI. Director's Report  


A. Statistics for January 2017 (enclosure) 


B. Administration report 


 


XII. Committee Report 


A. Finance: Did not meet. 


B. Personnel: Did not meet. Scheduled to meet February 21, 6:00 p.m. 


C. Planning: Did not meet. 


D. Policies: Did not meet. To be scheduled at meeting. 


 


XIII. Friends of the Library Report (Sandra Black) 


 


XIV. Unfinished/Old Business 


A. Library Director evaluation update (Personnel Committee) 


 


 







 


XV. New Business 


A. Approval of State of Wisconsin 2016 Annual Report  * (enclosure)  


B. Statement of Library System Effectiveness  * (enclosed as part of annual report)   


C. Review Library Board members’ terms (enclosure) 


D. Participation in Art Walk Stoughton: Permission for two artists to sell their work in the 


Library * 


E. Participation in Art Walk Stoughton: Authorization for the Library to be open until 6:00 p.m. 


on Saturday, June 10, 2017 * 


F. Authorization for Library director to explore funding options for a paid Library intern * 


 


XVI. Pending Agenda Items 


A. Outer Library Loan overdue fine increase from $0.20 to $1/day. (Policies Committee) 


B. Approve 2017 Library Board goals (Pending review of Strategic Plan – Planning  


Committee) 


C. Establishing a scholarship 


 


XVII. Adjournment * 


 


NEXT REGULAR MEETING: March 15, 2017 


 
If you are disabled and in need of assistance in order to attend, please call 873-6281 prior to this meeting. 


 


STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 


Sandra Black        


Sid Boersma, City Council Representative 


Heather Danielson 


Eric Hohol, Dane County Representative  


Petra Horst, Vice President 


Jean Ligocki 


Linda Schaefer, President 


Paul Vande Hei, Stoughton Area School Dist. Rep. 


Mike Vienneau 


 


COMMITTEES 


Finance: Linda Schaefer (chair), Sid Boersma, Eric 


Hohol 


Personnel: Eric Hohol, (chair), Petra Horst, Linda 


Schaefer 


Planning: Petra Horst (chair), Jean Ligocki, Mike  


Vienneau 


Policies: Sandra Black, (chair), Heather Danielson, 


Paul Vande Hei 


 


cc: Mayor Donna Olson, City Attorney Mathew Dregne, City Council Members, Department Heads, City Hall 


Receptionist, Library Staff, Stoughton Newspaper 







Business Park North Committee Minutes
Monday, August 8, 2016– 5:30 p.m.
Council Chambers, Second Floor, Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton WI.


Business Park North Members Present: Laura Trotter; Greg Jenson, Vice-Chair; and Laurie Sullivan
Absent and Excused: Rodney Scheel; Paul Lawrence, Chair and David Wendt
Staff Present: Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey; Mayor Donna Olson
Press: None
Guests: Emily Scholl; Brad Anderson; Jim Anderson and Scott Truehl


1. Call to Order.
Jenson called the meeting to order at 5:40 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Business Park North meeting minutes of June 13, 2016.
Motion by Sullivan to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Trotter. Motion carried 4 - 0.


3. Request by Emily Schmoll of Exclusively Roses for an outdoor storage area approval at 221
Business Park Circle.
Jenson introduced the request.


Brad Anderson explained the request.


Trotter questioned if there is ample room for a forklift to maneuver the pallets into the storage area.
Brad Anderson stated there is room and they will be using a pallet jack.


Motion by Conant to recommend the Planning Commission approve the site plan as presented, 2nd by
Sullivan. Motion carried 4 – 0.


4. Future agenda items.
None discussed.


5. Adjournment.
Motion by Trotter to adjourn at 5:50 pm, 2nd by Conant. Motion carried 4 - 0.


Respectfully submitted,


Michael P. Stacey


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\BUSINESS PARK NORTH COMMITTEE\BPN 8-8-16.doc







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\2-28-2017\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 1-12-17.doc


Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes
Thursday, January 12, 2017 – 7:00 pm
City Hall, Hall of Fame Room, Lower Level, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Peggy Veregin, Chair; Kimberly Cook; Greg Pigarelli; Alan Hedstrom, Vice-
Chair; Josh Mabie and Kathleen Tass Johnson
Absent: Stephen Mar-Pohl
Staff: Zoning Administrator, Michael Stacey
Guests: Todd Hubing


1. Call to order. Veregin called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Landmarks Commission meeting minutes of December 8, 2016.
Motion by Tass-Johnson to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Cook. Motion carried 6 –
0.


3. Discuss Creating a Downtown Local Landmark District.
The Commission discussed prioritizing creating a Downtown Local Landmark District as a
project.


Benefits of a Local Landmark District were discussed such as:
 Providing outreach to owners of Local Landmarks;
 Provide protection of the historic downtown;
 Creating a partnership between the City, Landmarks Commission and Local Landmark


property owners.


The Commission discussed seeking out other communities that have Local Landmark Districts
such as Cedarburg; Evansville and Cambridge.


4. Discuss 1892 High School Coalition group sessions.
Veregin stated the Coalition had one focus group meeting for people who work in the social
services industry to seek a need or purpose for the building.


January 19th there will be a focus group meeting with City Officials at the Fire Department
Training Room from 3:30 – 5:00 pm.


There will be two more focus group sessions in the near future, one for education and job
training fields and the other for the business and economic community.


An update will be provided to the school once all focus groups are completed possibly by
March, 2017.


5. Discuss status of the Milfab/Highway Trailer/Power Plant development.
Stacey stated the City has ownership of the property. The RDA is reviewing the 3 RFP’s
(Tanesay Development, Gorman Company and Movin’ Out) Movin’ Out is seeking to partner
with someone. Tanesay Development is the only one that has proposed a use for the Power
Plant (Coffee Shop).







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes
1/12/17
Page 2 of 3


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\2-28-2017\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 1-12-17.doc


The RDA received bids to test for asbestos and lead including removal of an old electric
transformer.


A Charrette is in the planning stages: Vierbicher and Associates will be assisting with the
Charrette as Facilitator for the Riverfront Redevelopment project.


Gary Becker reported preliminary results of the historical research shows the Highway Trailer
Building and Power Plant are eligible for the National Registry, while the 1905 building and the
carpet warehouse building are not.


The RDA is seeking a Wisconsin Assessment Monies Grant and a Site Assessment Grant.


There is still a former tenant on the Millfab site, now a squatter which may require the City to go
through a formal eviction process if all the possessions aren’t removed.


6. Discuss Commission initiatives.
The Commission discussed the following pared down list of initiatives:


1. Façade improvement mini-grants
2. 1892 High School Coalition
3. City update of Comprehensive Plan
4. Contractors List
5. COA Sample Submittals
6. Depot Hill HD
7. Design guidelines for local landmarks
8. Power Plant re-use (Local Landmark) / Highway Trailer/Milfab Redevelopment
9. Procedural manual updates


The Commission further discussed the façade improvement mini grants. Veregin and Cook
created an outline of criteria to be used for the mini grant application.


The Commission discussed the types of projects that may qualify.


The Commission discussed what the mini grants mean for the community such as:
 Outreach for the Landmarks Commission;
 Partnering with the City;
 City making an investment in the Downtown.


Stacey will ask the Finance Department about when funds would be available and if the funds
can be extended out a year.


Veregin stated the Commission members should start thinking about potential preservation
award recipients.







Landmarks Commission Meeting Minutes
1/12/17
Page 3 of 3


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\2-28-2017\Committee Minutes\Landmarks Minutes 1-12-17.doc


7. Discuss previous local landmark approvals.
Stacey provided a spreadsheet of all Local Landmarks.


The Commission discussed what to do about the 4 Local Landmark properties for which no
approval by the Common Council could be found.


Tass-Johnson to research checking all properties at the Register of Deeds to verify a local
landmark approval resolution document was recorded.


Stacey plans to gain an opinion from the City Attorney about the process to correct this situation.


8. Commission Reports/Calendar.
Veregin stated she sent in the annual report to the State Historical Society.


Veregin noted there is a Comprehensive Plan Rewrite Open House set for January 19, 2017 at
the EMS Building from 5:00 – 7:30 pm.


The Commission discussed the recent request to demolish the building at 315 E. Main Street
which is contributing to the Downtown Commercial Historic District and is within the
Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District.


9. Future agenda items. None discussed.


10. Adjournment. Motion by Mabie to adjourn at 9:05 pm, 2nd by Pigarelli. Motion carried
6 – 0.


Respectfully Submitted, Michael Stacey







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\2-28-2017\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 1-9-17.docx


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, January 9, 2017 at 6:00 pm
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson Chair; Michael Engelberger; Matt Hanna; Greg Jenson;
Todd Krcma; Mike Maloney
Absent: Scott Truehl
Staff: Director of Planning & Development, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael
Stacey
Press: Amber Levenhagen
Guests: Dennis Kittleson; Amy Kittleson; Matt Bartlett; Tom Majewski; Peggy Veregin; Dennis
Steinkraus; Kevin Yeska; Sid Boersma; Troy Mleziva


1. Call to order. Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of December 12, 2016.
Motion by Engelberger to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Krcma. Motion carried 6
– 0.


3. Council Representative Report.
Jenson stated the following was approved by Council: An ordinance amendment for the
keeping of chickens was approved; Kettle Park West – Phase IIA Final Plat; Approved the
development agreement for Kettle Park West Phase IIA. The Council is still reviewing the
configuration of Oak Opening Drive at STH 138.


4. Status of Developments. Scheel gave an overview of the status of current developments as
outlined in the packet. There were no questions.


5. Dennis and Amy Kittleson request project review approval to demolish the building at
315 E. Main Street.
Scheel explained the request.


Mayor Olson stated a request has been made to speak regarding this request. The
Commissioners agreed to allow people to speak.


Dennis and Amy Kittleson explained their intent is the remove the building and have a public
gathering park-like greenspace.


Tom Majewski stated he is distressed about the potential removal of the building because it is
one of the last stick built structures within the downtown.


Dennis Kittleson stated the building has been vacant for quite some time and it has
deteriorated. The property was for sale for 4-5 years.


Krcma questioned if there are redevelopment plans or will the property remain greenspace.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/9/17
Page 2 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\2-28-2017\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 1-9-17.docx


Amy Kittleson stated there are no plans other than creating a gathering space. Possibly
gardening or a little free library to mirror the City Library.


Hanna questioned if zoning would allow greenspace. Scheel stated it is very likely the space
will be redeveloped at some point and will need to meet code at that time.


Hanna stated the building is deteriorating and no one is restoring it. Hanna will vote in favor of
the request because it is not feasible to invest in the structure at this point.


Jenson asked if they had tried to sell the property or if anyone has any interest in restoring the
structure.


Dennis Kittleson stated they have not tried to sell it and no one has indicated any interest in
restoring the structure.


Engelberger stated he is not in favor of removing the building from the downtown. He
recommends tabling the request and send to the Landmarks Commission for review.


Motion by Engelberger to table the request and refer to the Landmarks Commission for
review.


Motion failed for lack of a 2nd.


Krcma questioned what requirements are there for a new structure. Scheel stated there are
pretty stringent requirements for a new structure in this district.


Krcma questioned how long has the property been vacant. Dennis Kittleson stated at least 5
years.


Scheel stated staff met with City Attorney Dregne to review this proposal and if the
Commission desires we could have Attorney Dregne review the requirements.


Motion by Jenson to table the request and have City Attorney Dregne review this request for
compliance with ordinances and bring back next month, 2nd by Maloney


Dennis Kittleson stated he is concerned about timing since he has a contractor to do the demo
by the end of January or beginning week of February.


Engelberger stated there are 2 landmarks commissioners that feel the request does not meet the
requirements of the code.


Motion carried 5 – 1 (Krcma voted no)







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/9/17
Page 3 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\2-28-2017\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 1-9-17.docx


6. Kevin Yeska of JSD Professional Development requests Specific Implementation Plan
amendment approval for Kwik Trip, 1359 US Highway 51.
Scheel introduced the request.


Kevin Yeska gave an overview of the amendments to the specific implementation plan. The 3
changes include increasing the building size by about 1,550 square feet; reducing the size of
one of the underground fuel storage tanks and adding a parking stall. Kwik Trip would like to
include adding two 6’ x 6’ patio areas near the pedestrian walkway on the US Highway 51
frontage that are not shown on the submitted plans.


Troy Mleziva explained the reasoning for the amendments is primarily to meet the needs of the
customer and improvements to their business approach to their clients.


Mayor Olson opened the public hearing.


No one registered to speak.


Mayor Olson closed the public hearing.


Scheel stated any approval should include a statement that Attorney Dregne will draft the
ordinance to reflect the recommendation to Council and include the amendments.


Kevin Yeska further explained the patio area locations.


Motion by Krcma to recommend the Common Council approve the amended Specific
Implementation Plan subject to the City Attorney drafting an ordinance to reflect this approval;
staff review letter dated January December 29, 2016; including the 4 site plan revisions as
proposed, 2nd by Jenson.


Engelberger questioned the exceptions being requested. Scheel stated the exceptions were
approved as part of the original specific implementation plan.


Stacey read the 3 exceptions as originally requested and approved. Kevin Yeska explained the
reasoning for the tree spacing exception.


Motion carried 6 – 0.


7. Mark Seidl of Pinnacle Engineering Group requests site plan approval to construct a
commercial building for Aldi Food Market at 1399 US Highway 51.
Scheel gave an overview of the site plan.


Mark Seidl introduced Tom Howald Director of Real Estate for Aldi’s.


Tom Howald explained the site and use of the property. Tom requested that as an alternative to
sidewalk being installed along Hults Road they propose to add a sidewalk section at the corner
of Jackson Street and Hults Road for better crossing connectivity. Additionally, Tom requested







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/9/17
Page 4 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\2-28-2017\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 1-9-17.docx


the dumpster only have a front gate since the dumpster will be mostly out of the public eye by
being recessed in their loading dock area and located next to a retaining wall.


Motion by Jenson to approve R-1-2017 for site plan approval subject to the staff review letter
dated January 3, 2017, 2nd by Krcma.


Hanna stated the sidewalk alternative seems to be a good option.


Hanna questioned what will happen to the remnant piece of land. Tom Howald stated the
Baxter’s plan to keep that piece of the parcel.


Hanna questioned if a CSM will be necessary to separate the parcel. Scheel stated he did not
yet know.


Mark Seidl stated the right-of-way essentially splits the property off into separate parcels.
Maloney agrees.


Maloney questioned Hults Road ownership and future upgrades. Scheel stated Hults Road to
the north where it meets Stoughton Garden Center is in the City limits. Scheel stated Hults
Road could be modified in the future to include curb and gutter and sidewalk, but there is not
timeframe for such a project.


Mark Seidl stated Hults Road has a narrow right-of-way so it is difficult to install sidewalk on
the Aldi site.


Hanna questioned the signage used for traffic flow through the site. Mark Seidl explained the
location of signage.


There was future discussion about the dumpster enclosure.


Jenson and Krcma agreed to make their motion subject to the dumpster enclosure only having a
front gate and no sidewalk being required along Hults Road at this time. Motion carried 6 – 0.


8. Request to approve a Certified Survey Map to split the property at 1600 Williams Drive.
Scheel explained the request.


Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the CSM as presented, 2nd by
Krcma.


Krcma questioned if the easements are ample to accommodate the stormwater management.
Scheel stated changes have been made to add additional easements to accommodate
stormwater.


Motion carried 6 - 0.


9. Comprehensive Plan Rewrite.







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
1/9/17
Page 5 of 5


T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\2-28-2017\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes 1-9-17.docx


Scheel stated there is a request by Lisa Nelson to add her property to the future land use map.
The Commissioners agreed to add the Nelson property as Planned Neighborhood. They
desired to expand this area west to approximately Starr School Road.


Scheel stated staff has made many narrative changes to the draft plan and map including
changing the two-family designation on the future land use map for two-flat properties to single
family residential.


A discussion took place regarding the RR corridor and the residential neighborhood areas
around the downtown. The consensus is to change the future land use map for the
neighborhood area to either planned neighborhood or planned mixed use.


Engelberger stated would like the existing land use maps along with the proposed maps for
comparison at the Open House.


A discussion took place about bike and pedestrian routes.


Hanna suggested Jackson Street be looked at more closely since it will serve as a travel route
including bicycles.


Hanna would like to see highlights on the future land use map to show changes for the Open
House.


10. Future agenda items.
Casey’s General Store and the Dennis and Amy Kittleson demo request.


11. Adjournment. Motion by Jenson to adjourn at 7:50 pm, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 6 – 0.


Respectfully Submitted,


Michael Stacey







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\2-28-2017\Committee Minutes\Planning Minutes Open House 1-19-17.docx


Special Planning Commission Meeting for Comprehensive Plan Open House
Thursday, January 19, 2017 at 5:00 pm
EMS Training Room, 516 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI.


Members Present: Mayor Donna Olson Chair; Michael Engelberger; Matt Hanna;
Greg Jenson; Todd Krcma; Mike Maloney and Scott Truehl
Staff: Director of Planning & Development, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator,
Michael Stacey
Guests: Open to the public – Approximately 53 in attendance


Rodney Scheel gave an introduction to the Open House.


Jackie Mich and Mike Slavney of Vandewalle and Associates gave 2 presentations
summarizing the draft Comprehensive Plan Rewrite including:


 Stakeholder Involvement
 Next Steps in the process
 Defined what a Comprehensive Plan is
 Gave an overview of the 9 maps
 Summarize key points taken from the workshop, community survey and


various meetings


Open House ended at 8:00 pm


Respectfully Submitted,


Michael Stacey





		02-PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 08-22-2016.pdf

		2-Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes 01-05-2017.pdf

		2-PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 09-12-2016.pdf

		2-PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 12-15-2016.pdf

		11-2016 COA Minutes.pdf

		2017 02 15 LIBRARY BOARD AGENDA.pdf

		BPN 8-8-16.pdf

		Landmarks Minutes 1-12-17.pdf

		Planning Minutes  1-9-17.pdf

		Planning Minutes Open House 1-19-17.pdf






Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON


Date/Time: Tuesday, February 14, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.


Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael
Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson,
Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, and Scott Truehl


CALL TO ORDER


Council President Swadley called the meeting of the Common Council at 7:02 p.m.


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:
Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that all 12 alderpersons were present and Mayor Olson was absent.


Hirsch explained that there will be a Sustainable Stoughton meeting on March 2, 2017 at 6:30 p.m. held
in the Stoughton Fire Department Training Room.


Engelberger announced that there will be an art walk in downtown Stoughton on June 10, 2017.


Johnson reached out to constituents regarding complaints she had received regarding the City’s update
of the Comprehensive Plan. She noted that any issues or concerns could be brought to alderpersons or
City staff.


Minutes and Reports: The following minutes and reports were entered into the record:
 Public Safety Committee (9/28/2016 & 12/21/2016), and Library Board (11/16/2016 &


12/21/2016)


Public Comment Period:


Tom Selsor; 545 Kensingston Sq; Spoke in opposition of the use of TIF for Kettle Park West Phase II.


CONSENT AGENDA
A. January 24, 2017 Council Minutes


Motion by Boersma, to approve the consent agenda, second by Engelberger. Motion carried 12-0.


OLD BUSINESS


O-1-2017- Approving an Amended Specific Implementation Plan ("SIP") for Kwik Trip,
1359 US Highway 51, Kettle Park West, Lot 6 of CSM No. 14058, Stoughton, WI.







Motion by Truehl, to approve O-1-2017, second by Lawrence. Truehl explained that this would enlarge
the Kwik Trip by 1,600 feet and would increase the value of the location by $200,000. Motion carried
11-1, with Johnson voting noe.


Possible motion to reconsider (requested by Alderperson Jenson) the following motion adopted at
the January 24, 2017 Common Council Meeting; “to request that the Landmarks Commission
develop an ordinance for consideration by the council that would amend existing City ordinances
such that no building in a historic district listed on the National Register of Historic Places may be
demolished without review and recommendation by Landmarks Commission and a decision by
the common council based on appropriate and lawful standards.”


Jenson explained that he requested this motion to be reconsidered only to discuss how the research for
the ordinance changes would be funded.


Motion by Jenson, to reconsider the request that the Landmarks Commission develop an ordinance for
consideration by the council that would amend existing City ordinances such that no building in a
historic district listed on the National Register of Historic Places may be demolished without review and
recommendation by Landmarks Commission and a decision by the common council based on
appropriate and lawful standards, second by O’Connor. Motion to reconsider passed on a roll call vote
8-4, with Johnson, Engelberger, Majewski, and Hirsch voting noe.


Attorney Dregne noted that he reviewed previous work that he had done for Oregon and gave an
estimate on the costs based on his time involved with the project. He gave details on what may be
involved with changing the code and making it cohesive with other parts of the ordinances.


Majewski has asked that the Landmark Commission be able to work on the draft ordinance prior to
determining funding. Kittleson is worried that there are so many ordinances that are intertwined that are
not cohesive. Johnson explained that she is in favor of the Council being the final decider and that the
money should be spent to research that the ordinances are correct.


Jenson has concerns with the dual approval from Landmarks and Planning. He noted that Landmarks
would not allow for the demolition and that there needs to be standards for the commissions to follow.
Kittleson agreed that there needs to be standards in the ordinances and there need to be definitions on
local landmarks and historical overlay districts.


Peggy Vergein, from the Landmarks Commission, explained that the motion made at the previous
Council meeting seemed very clear. She explained that no money would be spent on the ordinance
creation/update. Once the Landmarks Commission had made its’ recommendations then the Council
would be able to review it.


Motion carried 11-1, with Kittleson voting noe.







NEW BUSINESS


R-6-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a Temporary Class “B”/Class
“B” Retailer’s License and Special Event License to the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce.


Motion by Engelberger, to approve R-6-2017, second by Truehl. Engelberger explained that this is an
annual license for Syttende Mai and that everything was in order. Laura Trotter explained that the layout
of the entertainment and point of sale was slightly different from last year, but was reviewed by the
Police Chief and Clerk with no issues. Motion carried 10-2, with Boersma and Johnson voting noe.


R-7-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to transfer the existing Class “A”
Fermented Malt Beverage License for Wal-Mart Stores East, LP d/b/a Wal-Mart#1176 located at 1800
State Highway 51 to 2600 State Highway 138 effective March 15, 2017.


Motion by Engelberger, to approve R-7-2017, second by Truehl. Engelberger explained that this would
allow the transfer of the Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License from the existing store location to
the new one. The new premise is already licensed with a “Class A” Intoxicating Liquor. Motion carried
10-2, with Boersma & Johnson voting noe.


The council may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis Stat sec 19.85(1)(e), to consider
strategy to be adopted in connection with negotiating an agreement to purchase certain property,
and to consider strategy to be adopted in negotiating a development agreement relating to Kettle
Park West Phase II.


Motion by Engelberger, to convene into closed session, second by O’Connor. Motion carried on a roll
call vote of 9-3, with Boersma, Johnson, and Jenson voting noe. The Council convened into closed
session at 8:33 p.m.








RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated position descriptions for
Utilities Wastewater Operator, Utilities Basic Certified Wastewater Operator, Utilities Advanced
Certified Wastewater Operator, Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator/Laboratory
Technician, and Wastewater Systems Supervisor.


Committee Action: Personnel Committee recommends approval. (4-0)


File Number: R-17-2017 Date Introduced: February 28, 2017


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee received a request to approve the updated position descriptions
for Utilities Wastewater Operator, Utilities Basic Certified Wastewater Operator, Utilities Advanced
Certified Wastewater Operator, Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator/Laboratory
Technician, and Wastewater Systems Supervisor and,


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee met on Monday, February 6, 2017 to review approve the
updated position descriptions for Utilities Wastewater Operator, Utilities Basic Certified Wastewater
Operator, Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator, Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater
Operator/Laboratory Technician, and Wastewater Systems Supervisor and,


WHEREAS, the Personnel Committee recommends approval unanimously (4-0) to approve the updated
position descriptions for Utilities Wastewater Operator, Utilities Basic Certified Wastewater Operator,
Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator, Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater
Operator/Laboratory Technician, and Wastewater Systems Supervisor, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby authorized and directed to approve the updated position descriptions for Utilities Wastewater
Operator, Utilities Basic Certified Wastewater Operator, Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater
Operator, Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator/Laboratory Technician, and Wastewater
Systems Supervisor.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  June, 2015January 2017 Reports To: Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to assist with the maintenanceain and operateion of the wastewater treatment facilities 


and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other 


duties may be required and assigned. 


 Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


 Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for 


complete and effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


 Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as 


assigned. 


 Assists with obtaining and preparing samples, sample testing, and calculation of BOD, suspended solids, pH 


levels, volatile solids, phosphorus, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, etc. 


 Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


 Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


 Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


 Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective 


action in response. 


 Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


 Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this 


position and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Performs custodial tasks. 


 Paints surfaces. 


 Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


 Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


 Assists with water and electric operations as required. 


  







Wastewater Operator 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School diploma or equivalent with three one years wastewater, water works, equipment operation, 


mechanics, or related experience.   


 Valid driver’s license required, with ability to obtain a Ccommercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake 


certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with 


reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, 


as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate 


data. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures and standards, 


as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and 


maintenance manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and 


guidelines. 


 Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, 


DNR personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


 Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and spatial relationships.   


 Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple 


complex and rapid adjustments, such as sewer line jet truck, backhoe, loaders, dump truck, snowplow, cement 


mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools.   


 Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy 


equipment. 


 Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of 


climbing and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling over 


100 pounds. 


 Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


 Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms, 


sounds, odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 







Wastewater Operator 


  







Wastewater Operator 


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where exposure to environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, machinery, disease and/or 


dust may cause or causing discomfort and where there is a risk of injury requiring extended recovery. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, 


the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both 


prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


  


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  January 2017 Reports To: Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to assist with the maintenance and operation of the wastewater treatment facilities 


and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of Stoughton.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other 


duties may be required and assigned. 


 Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


 Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for 


complete and effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


 Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as 


assigned. 


 Assists with obtaining and preparing samples, sample testing, and calculation of BOD, suspended solids, pH 


levels, volatile solids, phosphorus, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, etc. 


 Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


 Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


 Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


 Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective 


action in response. 


 Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


 Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this 


position and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Performs custodial tasks. 


 Paints surfaces. 


 Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


 Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


 Assists with water and electric operations as required. 


  







Wastewater Operator 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School diploma or equivalent with one year wastewater, water works, equipment operation, mechanics, 


or related experience.   


 Valid driver’s license required, with ability to obtain a commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake 


certification. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with 


reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, 


as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate 


data. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures and standards, 


as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and 


maintenance manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and 


guidelines. 


 Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, 


DNR personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


 Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and spatial relationships.   


 Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple 


complex and rapid adjustments, such as sewer line jet truck, backhoe, loaders, dump truck, snowplow, cement 


mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools.   


 Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy 


equipment. 


 Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of 


climbing and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling over 


100 pounds. 


 Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


 Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms, 


sounds, odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 







Wastewater Operator 


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where exposure to environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, machinery, disease and/or 


dust may cause or causing discomfort and where there is a risk of injury requiring extended recovery. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, 


the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both 


prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


  


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Basic Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  June, 2015January 2017 Reports To: Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer 


collection system for the City of Stoughton.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other 


duties may be required and assigned. 


 Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


 Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for 


complete and effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


 Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as 


assigned. 


 Assists with obtaining and preparing samples, sample testing, and calculation of BOD, suspended solids, pH 


levels, volatile solids, phosphorus, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, etc. 


 Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


 Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


 Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


 Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective 


action in response. 


 Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


 Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this 


position and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Performs custodial tasks. 


 Paints surfaces. 


 Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


 Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


 Assists with water and electric operations as required. 


  







Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School diploma or equivalent with three years wastewater, water works, equipment operation, mechanics 


or related experience.   


 Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Basic (general 


and a minimum of one subclass) or Collection System Certification. 


 Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the Wisconsin DNR Wastewater Treatment 


Plant Operator – Basic or Collection System certification. 


 Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with 


reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, 


as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate 


data. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures and standards, 


as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and 


maintenance manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and 


guidelines. 


 Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, 


DNR personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


 Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and spatial relationships.   


 Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple 


complex and rapid adjustments, such as sewer line jet truck, backhoe, loaders, dump truck, snowplow, cement 


mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools.   


 Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy 


equipment. 







Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of 


climbing and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling over 


100 pounds. 


 Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


  


 Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms, 


sounds, odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 


  







Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where exposure to environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, machinery, disease and/or 


dust may cause or causing discomfort and where there is a risk of injury requiring extended recovery. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, 


the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both 


prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


  


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Basic Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: January 2017 Reports To: Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer 


collection system for the City of Stoughton.   


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other 


duties may be required and assigned. 


 Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


 Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for 


complete and effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


 Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as 


assigned. 


 Assists with obtaining and preparing samples, sample testing, and calculation of BOD, suspended solids, pH 


levels, volatile solids, phosphorus, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, etc. 


 Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


 Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


 Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


 Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective 


action in response. 


 Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


 Complies with all Stoughton Utilities safety programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this 


position and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Performs custodial tasks. 


 Paints surfaces. 


 Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


 Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


 Assists with water and electric operations as required. 


  







Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School diploma or equivalent with three years wastewater, water works, equipment operation, mechanics 


or related experience.   


 Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Basic (general 


and a minimum of one subclass) or Collection System Certification. 


 Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the Wisconsin DNR Wastewater Treatment 


Plant Operator – Basic or Collection System certification. 


 Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with 


reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, 


as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate 


data. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well-established policies, procedures and standards, 


as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and 


maintenance manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and 


guidelines. 


 Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, 


DNR personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


 Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and spatial relationships.   


 Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple 


complex and rapid adjustments, such as sewer line jet truck, backhoe, loaders, dump truck, snowplow, cement 


mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools.   


 Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy 


equipment. 







Basic Certified Wastewater Operator 


 Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of 


climbing and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling over 


100 pounds. 


 Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


 Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms, 


sounds, odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where exposure to environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, machinery, disease and/or 


dust may cause or causing discomfort and where there is a risk of injury requiring extended recovery. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, 


the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both 


prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


  


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  June, 2015January, 2017 Reports To: Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary  sewer 


collection system for the City of Stoughton. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other 


duties may be required and assigned. 


 Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


 Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for 


complete and effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


 Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as 


assigned. 


 Obtain and prepare samples, and perform laboratory activities including sample testing and calculations for 


BOD, suspended solids, pH levels, volatile solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, 


etc. 


 Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


 Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


 Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


 Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective 


action in response. 


 Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


 Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this 


position and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Performs custodial tasks. 


 Paints surfaces. 


 Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


 Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


 Assist with water and electric operations as required. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School diploma or equivalent, with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater 


Treatment Plant Operator - Advanced certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities, and four 


to six years wastewater operator experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides 


equivalent knowledge, skills, and abilities.   


 Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced 


certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


 Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator - Advanced certification. 


 Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with 


reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, 


as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate 


data. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, 


as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and 


maintenance manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and 


guidelines. 


 Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, 


DNR personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


 Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and spatial relationships.  


 Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple 


complex and rapid adjustments, such as sewer line jet truck, backhoe, loaders, dump truck, snowplow, cement 


mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools.   


 Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy 


equipment. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of 


climbing and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling over 


100 pounds. 


 Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


 Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms, 


sounds, odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where exposure to environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, machinery, disease and/or 


dust may cause or causing discomfort and where there is a risk of injury requiring extended recovery. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, 


the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both 


prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


  


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date:  January, 2017 Reports To: Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to maintain and operate the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer 


collection system for the City of Stoughton. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other 


duties may be required and assigned. 


 Monitors and records pump operations, chemical treatment, and flow levels. 


 Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for 


complete and effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


 Performs routine maintenance to pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders as 


assigned. 


 Obtain and prepare samples, and perform laboratory activities including sample testing and calculations for 


BOD, suspended solids, pH levels, volatile solids, phosphorous, ammonia, fecal coliform, chlorine residual, 


etc. 


 Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


 Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


 Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System. 


 Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective 


action in response. 


 Serves on-call status for wastewater/water operations. 


 Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this 


position and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Performs custodial tasks. 


 Paints surfaces. 


 Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


 Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


 Assist with water and electric operations as required. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School diploma or equivalent, and four to six years wastewater operator experience.   


 Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced 


certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


 Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator - Advanced certification. 


 Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions  


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with 


reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, 


as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate 


data. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, 


as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as lab reports, flow charts, electrical diagrams, 


architectural drawings, manhole reports, soil sample reports, wastewater treatment plant operation and 


maintenance manuals, maps, vehicle maintenance reports, DNR rules and regulations, procedures and 


guidelines. 


 Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, 


DNR personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


 Ability to calculate percentages, fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and spatial relationships.  


 Ability to interpret basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple 


complex and rapid adjustments, such as sewer line jet truck, backhoe, loaders, dump truck, snowplow, cement 


mixer, lab instruments, mechanic’s hand tools, voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools.   


 Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery.  


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy 


equipment. 


 Ability to exert heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some combination of 


climbing and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing and pulling over 


100 pounds. 


 Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator 


 Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms, 


sounds, odors, and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients. 


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where exposure to environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, machinery, disease and/or 


dust may cause or causing discomfort and where there is a risk of injury requiring extended recovery. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, 


the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both 


prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


  


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator / 


Laboratory Technician 
Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: January 2017 Reports To: Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to obtain, prepare, and test wastewater treatment samples in a laboratory environment, 


and to maintain and operate the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of 


Stoughton. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other 


duties may be required and assigned. 


 Obtains and prepares samples for a variety of required tests to determine efficiency of plant operations.  


Sampling includes biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, phosphorous, ammonia, 


industrial effluents, sludge, glucose glutamic acid, fecal coliform etc.  Prepare graphs, charts, and reports from 


sample data.  Enter data into various computer systems. 


 Prepares microscope slides to observe and identify microorganisms.  Calculates mean cell residence time and 


sludge age.  Monitors industry loadings.  Decides plant operations and calculates amount of chemical additives 


according to test results. 


 Prepares and orders chemicals and other supplies used in laboratory tests.  Maintains, calibrates, and repairs 


testing equipment, and/or arranges for outside services to do the same.  Changes BOD probe membranes. 


 Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains 


lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples. 


 Checks wastewater facility operations and flows.  Measures primary tank and clarifiers sludge depths.  Monitors 


oxygen levels of aeration tanks. 


 Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for 


complete and effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


 Performs routine maintenance tasks on pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders 


as assigned. 


 Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


 Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


 Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System.  


 Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective 


action in response. 


 Serves on call status for the wastewater/water operations. 


 Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator  


/ Laboratory Technician 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this 


position and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Performs custodial tasks. 


 Paints surfaces. 


 Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


 Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


 Assists with water and electric operations as needed 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School diploma or equivalent, and four to six years wastewater operator experience. 


 Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator - Advanced 


certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities  


 Successful completion of Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 


 Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator – Advanced certification, 


including laboratory education credits. 


 Ability to pass triennial Wisconsin DNR laboratory audit and annual proficiency testing. 


 Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with 


reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, 


as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate 


data. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, 


as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as DNR wastewater permit; sample reports; 


lab notes and reports; DNR audits and reports; engineers’ plans, specifications, and reports; flow charts, graphs, 


and charts; equipment, software, and operational control manuals and guidelines; soil sample reports; weather 


reports; maps; lab certification documents; procedures; and guidelines. 


 Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, 


DNR personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


 Ability to understand and apply algebraic and trigonometric formulas, as well as calculate percentages, 


fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and spatial relationships. 


 Ability to interpret inferential statistical reports and/or formulation and equation data. 


 Ability to interpret and create basic descriptive statistical reports. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator  


/ Laboratory Technician 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple 


complex and rapid adjustments, such as sewer line jet truck, backhoe, loaders, dump truck, snowplow, cement 


mixer; all lab instruments such as balance scale, muffle furnace, BOD meter, spectrophotometer, gravity oven, 


BOD incubator, samplers, sterilizer, centrifuge, and microscope; voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools. 


 Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy 


equipment, computer keyboard use, and testing wastewater samples. 


 Ability to exert moderately heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing 


and pulling over 100 pounds. 


 Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


 Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms, 


sounds, odors and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients.   


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where exposure to environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, machinery, disease and/or 


dust can cause discomfort and where there is a risk of injury requiring extended recovery. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, 


the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both 


prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


  


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 







City of Stoughton 


Position Description 
 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator / 


Laboratory Technician 
Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: June, 2015January 2017 Reports To: Wastewater System Supervisor 


 


 


Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to obtain, prepare, and test wastewater treatment samples in a laboratory environment, 


and to maintain and operate the wastewater treatment facilities and sanitary sewer collection system for the City of 


Stoughton. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this position.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other 


duties may be required and assigned. 


 Obtains and prepares samples for a variety of required tests to determine efficiency of plant operations.  


Sampling includes biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH levels, phosphorous, ammonia, 


industrial effluents, sludge, glucose glutamic acid, fecal coliform etc.  Prepare graphs, charts, and reports from 


sample data.  Enter data into various computer systems. 


 Prepares microscope slides to observe and identify microorganisms.  Calculates mean cell residence time and 


sludge age.  Monitors industry loadings.  Decides plant operations and calculates amount of chemical additives 


according to test results. 


 Prepares and orders chemicals and other supplies used in laboratory tests.  Maintains, calibrates, and repairs 


testing equipment, and/or arranges for outside services to do the same.  Changes BOD probe membranes. 


 Maintains knowledge regarding testing requirements for wastewater treatment facilities.  Cleans and maintains 


lab equipment.  Prepares and sends EPA samples. 


 Checks wastewater facility operations and flows.  Measures primary tank and clarifiers sludge depths.  Monitors 


oxygen levels of aeration tanks. 


 Performs operational tasks at the wastewater treatment facilities.  Operates all equipment necessary for 


complete and effective wastewater treatment and system operations. 


 Performs routine maintenance tasks on pumps, motors, valves, flow meters, and completes other work orders 


as assigned. 


 Televises, cleans, and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


 Performs plumbing tasks throughout treatment plant.  Replaces pipes and valves.   


 Monitors and records data, and makes adjustments to the wastewater/water SCADA System.  


 Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective 


action in response. 


 Serves on call status for the wastewater/water operations. 


 Complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator  


/ Laboratory Technician 


Additional Tasks and Responsibilities 
While the following tasks are necessary for the work of the unit, they are not an essential part of the purpose of this 


position and may also be performed by other unit members. 


 Performs custodial tasks. 


 Paints surfaces. 


 Removes Ice and snow from walkways and drives. 


 Performs carpentry tasks as needed. 


 Assists with water and electric operations as needed 


Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School diploma or equivalent, and four to six years wastewater operator experience. 


 , with Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator - Advanced 


certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities, and four to six years wastewater operator 


experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities.  


 Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator – Advanced certifications required in General and Laboratory.Successful 


completion of Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 


 Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator – Advanced certification, 


including laboratory education credits. 


 Ability to pass triennial Wisconsin DNR laboratory audit and annual proficiency testing. 


 Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


 Ability to analyze and categorize data and information in order to determine the relationship of the data with 


reference to established criteria/standards.  Ability to compare, count, differentiate, measure and/or sort data, 


as well as assemble, copy, record and transcribe data and information.  Ability to classify, compute and tabulate 


data. 


 Ability to explain, demonstrate and clarify to others within well established policies, procedures and standards, 


as well as the ability to follow specific instructions and respond to simple requests from others. 


 Ability to utilize a variety of advisory data and information such as DNR wastewater permit; sample reports; 


lab notes and reports; DNR audits and reports; engineers’ plans, specifications, and reports; flow charts, graphs, 


and charts; equipment, software, and operational control manuals and guidelines; soil sample reports; weather 


reports; maps; lab certification documents; procedures; and guidelines. 


 Ability to communicate effectively with customers, Department personnel, construction workers, engineers, 


DNR personnel, and vendor representatives. 


Mathematical Ability 


 Ability to understand and apply algebraic and trigonometric formulas, as well as calculate percentages, 


fractions, decimals, volumes, ratios, present values, and spatial relationships. 


 Ability to interpret inferential statistical reports and/or formulation and equation data. 







Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator  


/ Laboratory Technician 


 Ability to interpret and create basic descriptive statistical reports. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Ability to use functional reasoning and apply rational judgment in performing diversified work activities. 


 Ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the evaluation of 


information against sensory and/or judgmental criteria. 


Physical Requirements 


 Ability to operate equipment and machinery requiring monitoring multiple conditions and making multiple 


complex and rapid adjustments, such as sewer line jet truck, backhoe, loaders, dump truck, snowplow, cement 


mixer; all lab instruments such as balance scale, muffle furnace, BOD meter, spectrophotometer, gravity oven, 


BOD incubator, samplers, sterilizer, centrifuge, and microscope; voltmeter, welder, and excavation hand tools. 


 Ability to repair complex equipment and machinery. 


 Ability to coordinate eyes, hands, feet and limbs in performing skilled movements such as operating heavy 


equipment, computer keyboard use, and testing wastewater samples. 


 Ability to exert moderately heavy physical effort in moderate to heavy work, typically involving some 


combination of climbing and balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, and lifting, carrying, pushing 


and pulling over 100 pounds. 


 Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Utilities Facilities. 


 Ability to recognize and identify degrees of similarities or differences between characteristics of colors, forms, 


sounds, odors and textures associated with job-related objects, materials, and ingredients.   


Environmental Adaptability 


 Ability to work under moderately unsafe and uncomfortable conditions where exposure to environmental 


factors such as temperature variations, odors, toxic agents, noise, vibrations, wetness, machinery, disease and/or 


dust can cause discomfort and where there is a risk of injury requiring extended recovery. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, 


the City will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both 


prospective and current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


  


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Wastewater System Supervisor Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: October, 2014January 2017 Reports To: Utilities Director 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


 
Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to supervise, direct, and coordinate the Stoughton Utilities wastewater treatment facilities 


and sanitary sewer collection system operations and activities. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this classification.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties 


may be required and assigned. 


 Supervises and directs the daily operations of the wastewater treatment plant and collection system; oversees and 


monitors the wastewater treatment process; ensures compliance with WPDES permit and other requirements. 


 Assists in the preparation and monitors annual budget. 


 Directs the operation of laboratory operations. 


 Supervises and directs the activities of wastewater personnel; conducts performance evaluations. 


 Directs the operation and maintenance of the wastewater treatment facility liquid and solids handling facilities and 


sewage collection system; conducts emergency repairs as required. 


 Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action 


in response to customer inquiries and complaints. 


 Maintains contacts with vendors; prepares proposal requests; receives and evaluates proposals; prepares purchase orders 


and acquires materials as required. 


 Maintains material inventory; receives packing slips; places new material into stock; enters data into computerized 


inventory program. 


 Assigns work orders, maintains records, and prepares reports as required. 


 Monitors industry loadings and bills industrial surcharges. 


 Prepares annual reports, compliance maintenance annual reports, land application of biosolids annual reports, monthly 


discharge report, annual mercury reports, annual air emissions report, along with other Wisconsin DNR reports and 


EPA reports. 


 Program administrator for all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


 Ensures that all safety standards are met and complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


 Develops emergency response programs for sanitary sewer system CMOM. 


 Recommends and implements new methods in the collection system and the wastewater treatment facilities. 


 Televises, cleans and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


 Operates wastewater/water SCADA system. 


 Assists with water and electric operations as required. 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 
Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School graduate diploma or equivalent, with technical training in wastewater treatment, and ten or more years 


wastewater treatment operator experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent 


knowledge, skills, and abilities. 


 , and required WDNR Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wwastewater Ttreatment Plant facilities 


Ooperator - Aadvanced certification for the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment Ffacilities. 


   Successful completion of Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 


 Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator – Advanced certification. 


 Commercial dDriver’s lLicense with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to comprehend and interpret a variety of documents including maintenance records, blueprints, lab records and 


reports, operations reports, plant operation and maintenance manuals, engineering reports, training manuals, State 


statutes and other regulations, permit requirements, etc. 


• Ability to prepare a variety of documents including operation and lab reports, activity reports, letters and other 


correspondence, etc. using prescribed format and conforming to all rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, and follow instructions. 


• Ability to use and interpret civil and hydraulic engineering, mechanics, electrical, and basic chemistry and biology 


terminology. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with wastewater treatment plant and other Utility and City personnel, consultants, 


vendors, customers, and others verbally and in writing. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Requires the ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages and decimals; 


may require the ability to perform mathematical operations with fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as supervision, managing, leading, teaching, directing, 


planning, coordinating, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for 


developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


 Requires the ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the direction, 


control and planning of an entire program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate and maintain wastewater treatment facilities equipment including endloader, backhoe, sewer cleaning 


machine, dump truck, sanitary sewer televising equipment, etc. 


• Ability to make use of a variety of mechanic’s, carpentry, and electrical tools and equipment, including power tools. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Municipal Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including personal computer, telephone, etc. 


• Ability to push, pull, lift, and carry objects weighing up to 100 pounds. 


• Ability to climb and balance carrying heavy objects. 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 
Supervisory Skills 


 Ability to assign, supervise and review the work of others. 


 Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment. 


• Ability to work effectively with frequent exposure to temperature variations, strong odors, toxic gas and other agents, 


machinery noise, and wetness. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


  


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 







 
City of Stoughton 


Position Description 


Name:  Department: Utilities – Wastewater System Division 


Title: Wastewater System Supervisor Pay Grade:  FLSA: N 


Date: January 2017 Reports To: Utilities Director 


___________________________________________________________________________ 


 
Purpose of Position 


The purpose of this position is to supervise, direct, and coordinate the Stoughton Utilities wastewater treatment facilities 


and sanitary sewer collection system operations and activities. 


Essential Duties and Responsibilities  
The following duties are normal for this classification.  These are not to be construed as exclusive or all-inclusive.  Other duties 


may be required and assigned. 


 Supervises and directs the daily operations of the wastewater treatment plant and collection system; oversees and 


monitors the wastewater treatment process; ensures compliance with WPDES permit and other requirements. 


 Assists in the preparation and monitors annual budget. 


 Directs the operation of laboratory operations. 


 Supervises and directs the activities of wastewater personnel; conducts performance evaluations. 


 Directs the operation and maintenance of the wastewater treatment facility liquid and solids handling facilities and 


sewage collection system; conducts emergency repairs as required. 


 Receives and responds to customer inquiries and complaints; makes recommendations and performs corrective action 


in response to customer inquiries and complaints. 


 Maintains contacts with vendors; prepares proposal requests; receives and evaluates proposals; prepares purchase orders 


and acquires materials as required. 


 Maintains material inventory; receives packing slips; places new material into stock; enters data into computerized 


inventory program. 


 Assigns work orders, maintains records, and prepares reports as required. 


 Monitors industry loadings and bills industrial surcharges. 


 Prepares annual reports, compliance maintenance annual reports, land application of biosolids annual reports, monthly 


discharge report, annual mercury reports, annual air emissions report, along with other Wisconsin DNR reports and 


EPA reports. 


 Program administrator for all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


 Ensures that all safety standards are met and complies with all Stoughton Utilities Safety Programs. 


 Develops emergency response programs for sanitary sewer system CMOM. 


 Recommends and implements new methods in the collection system and the wastewater treatment facilities. 


 Televises, cleans and repairs sanitary sewer collection system. 


 Operates wastewater/water SCADA system. 


 Assists with water and electric operations as required. 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 
Minimum Training and Experience Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


 High School diploma or equivalent, technical training in wastewater treatment, and ten or more years wastewater 


operator experience, or any combination of education and experience that provides equivalent knowledge, skills, and 


abilities. 


 Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (DNR) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator - Advanced certification for 


the Stoughton Wastewater Treatment facilities. 


 Successful completion of Wisconsin DNR Advanced Laboratory exam. 


 Ability to maintain the required continuing education credits for the DNR Operator – Advanced certification. 


 Commercial driver’s license with tanker and air brake certification required. 


Physical and Mental Abilities Required to Perform Essential Job Functions 


Language Ability and Interpersonal Communication 


• Ability to comprehend and interpret a variety of documents including maintenance records, blueprints, lab records and 


reports, operations reports, plant operation and maintenance manuals, engineering reports, training manuals, State 


statutes and other regulations, permit requirements, etc. 


• Ability to prepare a variety of documents including operation and lab reports, activity reports, letters and other 


correspondence, etc. using prescribed format and conforming to all rules of punctuation, grammar, diction, and style. 


• Ability to record and deliver information, explain procedures, and follow instructions. 


• Ability to use and interpret civil and hydraulic engineering, mechanics, electrical, and basic chemistry and biology 


terminology. 


• Ability to communicate effectively with wastewater treatment plant and other Utility and City personnel, consultants, 


vendors, customers, and others verbally and in writing. 


Mathematical Ability 


• Requires the ability to perform addition, subtraction, multiplication, and division; calculate percentages and decimals; 


may require the ability to perform mathematical operations with fractions and algebra. 


Judgment and Situational Reasoning Ability 


 Requires the ability to apply principles of influence systems such as supervision, managing, leading, teaching, directing, 


planning, coordinating, and controlling.  Ability to exercise independent judgment to apply facts and principles for 


developing approaches and techniques to problem resolution. 


 Requires the ability to exercise the judgment, decisiveness, and creativity required in situations involving the direction, 


control and planning of an entire program or multiple programs. 


Physical Requirements 


• Ability to operate and maintain wastewater treatment facilities equipment including endloader, backhoe, sewer cleaning 


machine, dump truck, sanitary sewer televising equipment, etc. 


• Ability to make use of a variety of mechanic’s, carpentry, and electrical tools and equipment, including power tools. 


• Ability to operate SCBA equipment as required in the Stoughton Municipal Utilities Facilities. 


• Ability to operate a variety of office equipment including personal computer, telephone, etc. 


• Ability to push, pull, lift, and carry objects weighing up to 100 pounds. 


• Ability to climb and balance carrying heavy objects. 







Wastewater System Supervisor 


 
Supervisory Skills 


 Ability to assign, supervise and review the work of others. 


 Ability to make recommendations regarding the selection, training, discipline, and discharge of employees. 


Environmental Adaptability 


• Ability to work effectively in an office environment. 


• Ability to work effectively with frequent exposure to temperature variations, strong odors, toxic gas and other agents, 


machinery noise, and wetness. 


The City of Stoughton is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, the City 


will provide reasonable accommodations to qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages both prospective and 


current employees to discuss potential accommodations with the employer. 


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Employee’s Signature Supervisor’s Signature 


  


___________________________________ ___________________________________ 


Date Date 


 





		4b-R-17-2017-Resolution Personnel approve the updated position descriptions for Utilities Wastewater-Water Operators.pdf

		4c- Job Decsriptions.pdf

		4c-Utilities Wastewater Operator Position Description REDLINE 1-2017.pdf

		4d-Utilities Wastewater Operator Position Description FINAL 1-2017.pdf

		4e-Utilities Basic Certified Wastewater Operator Position Description REDLINE 1-2017.pdf

		4f-Utilities Basic Certified Wastewater Operator Position Description FINAL 1-2017.pdf

		4g-Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator Position Description REDLINE 1-2017.pdf

		4h-Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator Position Description FINAL 1-2017.pdf

		4i-Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator-Lab Technician Position Description FINAL 1-2017.pdf

		4j-Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator-Lab Technician Position Description REDLINE 1-2017.pdf

		4k-Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor Position Description REDLINE 1-2017.pdf

		4l-Utilities Wastewater System Supervisor Position Description FINAL 1-2017.pdf








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL
An ordinance amending the zoning classification of certain lands located at 1640 E. Main Street in the


City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommend Council approval 5 – 0


Fiscal Impact:


File Number: O -2- 2017 Date Introduced: First Reading: Feb 28, 2017


Second Reading: Mar 14, 2017


RECITALS


1. Casey’s Marketing Company (the “Applicant”) has applied to change the zoning
classification of certain lands located at 1640 E. Main Street in the City of Stoughton.


2. Applicant proposes changing the zoning classification of the land at 1640 E. Main Street
from Rural Holding, to PB Planned Business.


3. On February 13, 2017, the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public hearing
regarding Applicant’s proposed zoning change. The public hearing was preceded by the
publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice required by law.


4. The Planning Commission found that the proposed zoning change is consistent with the
City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommended that the zoning changes be
approved as presented.


5. The Common Council has considered the proposed zoning change and the Plan
Commission’s recommendations, finds that the proposed zoning change is consistent
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and finds that the proposed zoning
change has the potential for enhancing the use of the lands and increasing the City’s tax
base.







ORDINANCE


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:


Section 1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance
as if set forth in full.


Section 2. The zoning classification of the land at 1640 E. Main Street is changed from RH-
Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business.


Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law.


Dates
Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
Lana Kropf, City Clerk


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Casey 1640 E Main Rezoning Ordinance.doc







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2017\2-13-17\Planning Info\Casey Rezoning Council Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: February 15, 2017


To: Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the February 28 and March 14, 2017 Common Council meetings.


Casey’s Marketing Company request to rezone the property at 1640 E. Main Street from
RH - Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business.
This request is to rezone the property at 1640 E. Main Street to Planned Business to
accommodate a Casey’s General Store. The Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map
recommends this property as Planned Business which is consistent with the proposed use and
zoning requested. The application, ordinance and other pertinent information are provided. A
public hearing was held by the Planning Commission on Feb 13, 2017 and recommendation to
approve is provided. The Planning minutes and other pertinent information are provided.







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, February
13, 2017 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council
Chambers, Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin,
53589, to consider the proposed rezoning of the following parcel of land at 1640 E. Main Street,
Stoughton, WI., owned by NATTER MARITAL PROPERTY TR. The lot is proposed to be
rezoned from RH – Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business, in the City of Stoughton, Dane
County, WI, more fully described:


Parcel number: 281/0511-043-9871-5
Legal Description: SEC 4-5-11 PRT SE1/4SW1/4 E 298.8 FT OF S 285 FT THF EXC 0.07 A


TO DOT IN R15097/9


For questions related to this notice contact Michael Stacey at 608-646-0421


Michael Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published January 19, 2017 and January 26, 2017 HUB


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Planning Rez. 1640 E. Main Street Notice.doc



























Park St


Giles St


Vernon St



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line







 


Planning
Water Resources
ParcelText
Parcels


Tax Parcels
December 30, 2016


0 0.1 0.20.05 mi


0 0.15 0.30.075 km


1:4,441


 
 



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Text Box

W. MAIN / US HIGHWAY 51



mstacey

Text Box

COUNTY HIGHWAY N



mstacey

Text Box

1640







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
2/13/17
Page 2 of 7


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2017\Planning Minutes 2-13-17.docx


Scheel stated the front building is existing.


Motion by Hanna to recommend the Common Council approve the condominium plat as
presented, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 5 - 0.


6. John Bieno, TJK Design Build requests site plan approval for a building addition at 170
Business Park Circle.
Scheel gave an overview of the site plan.


Engelberger questioned if there were any issues. Scheel stated that staff recommends approval.


Motion by Engelberger to approve the resolution related to the site plan contingent on the staff
review letter, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 5 - 0.


7. Casey’s Marketing Company request to rezone the property at 1640 E. Main Street from
RH - Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business.
Scheel explained the request.


Truehl opened the public hearing.


David Natter spoke in favor of the request.


Scheel explained this request is to rezone the property from Rural Holding to Planned Business
which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map.


Ryan Swanson stated he is available for questions.


Engelberger questioned who will retain ownership. It was confirmed Casey’s will own the site.


Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning request as
presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 - 0.


8. Casey’s Marketing Company requests a conditional use permit for an in-vehicle sales and
service use including outdoor display incidental to indoor sales and service to
accommodate Casey’s General Store at 1640 E. Main Street.
Scheel explained the request.


Truehl opened the public hearing.


David Natter registered in favor.


Ryan Swanson gave an overview of the site plan.


Hanna questioned the type of plants planned for the retention pond.


Ryan Swanson stated the plants would be turf plantings.



mstacey

Highlight

Casey’s Marketing Company request to rezone the property at 1640 E. Main Street from
RH - Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business.
Scheel explained the request.
Truehl opened the public hearing.
David Natter spoke in favor of the request.
Scheel explained this request is to rezone the property from Rural Holding to Planned Business
which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map.
Ryan Swanson stated he is available for questions.
Engelberger questioned who will retain ownership. It was confirmed Casey’s will own the site.
Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning request as
presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 - 0.






		5a-O-2-2017-Casey 1640 E Main Rezoning Ordinance.pdf

		5b-1640 E. Main Street Rezoning Request.pdf






 


 


  Page 1 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Portions of the Erosion Control and Stormwater Management Code Sections within Sec. 


10-122, 10-127, 10-129, 10-130 and 10-131 of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


Committee Action:    Public Works Committee recommends approval with the Mayor voting - - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -3 - 2017 First Reading: 


Second Reading: 


February 28, 2017 


March 14, 2017 


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 


ARTICLE IV. - EROSION CONTROL AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT  


Sec. 10-121. - Authority.  


This article is adopted under the authority of Wis. Stats. § 62.234.  


(Code 1986, § 20.00; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-122. - Definitions.  


As used in this article:  


Affected means that a regulated activity has significantly:  


(1) Caused negative impacts on water quality or the use or maintenance of land or business; or  


(2) Endangered health, safety or general welfare.  


Agricultural facilities and practices has the meaning in s. 281.16(1), Wis. Stats. means related to or 
used for the production of food and fiber, including but not limited to general farming, livestock and poultry 
enterprises, grazing, nurseries, horticulture, viticulture, truck farming, forestry, sod production, cranberry 
productions and wild crop harvesting and includes lands used for on-site buildings and other structures 
necessary to carry out such activities. Clearing and grubbing of an area or structural development are not 
agricultural activity. 


Average annual rainfall means a typical calendar year of precipitation as determined by the department 
for users of models such as SLAMM, P8, or equivalent methodology. The average annual rainfall is chosen 
from a department publication for the location closest to the municipality measured precipitation in Madison, 
Wisconsin between March 12 and December 2, 1981.  


Bank erosion means the removal of soil or rock fragments along the banks or bed of a stream channel 
resulting from high flow after rain events.  


Best management practice (BMP) means a practice, technique or measure that is an effective, 
practical means of preventing or reducing soil erosion or water pollution, or both, from runoff both during 
and after land development activities. These can include structural, vegetative or operational practices.  


City means the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Font: Italic







 


 


  Page 2 


Cold water community means surface waters capable of supporting a community of cold water fish 
and other aquatic life, or serving as a spawning area for cold water fish species (Wis. Adm. Code. NR 
102.04(3) (a)).  


Connected imperviousness means an impervious surface that is directly connected to a separate 
storm sewer or water of the state via an impervious flow path.  


Construction site erosion control means preventing or reducing soil erosion and sedimentation from 
land disturbing activity.  


Department means the Department of Natural Resources. 


Development means residential, commercial, industrial or institutional land uses and associated roads. 


Direct conduits to groundwater means wells, sinkholes, swallets, fractured bedrock at the surface, 
mine shafts, nonmetallic mines, tile inlets discharging to groundwater, quarries, or depressional 
groundwater recharge areas over shallow fractured bedrock.  


Effective infiltration area means the area of the infiltration system that is used to infiltrate runoff and 
does not include the area used for site access, berms or pretreatment.  


Erosion and soil erosion means the detachment and movement of soil or rock fragments by water, 
wind, ice or gravity.  


Excavation means any act by which organic matter, earth, sand, gravel, rock or any other similar 
material is cut into, dug, quarried, uncovered, removed, displaced, relocated or bulldozed and shall include 
the resulting conditions.  


Existing development means buildings and other structures and impervious area existing prior to 
August 22, 2001October 1, 2004.  


Fill means any act by which earth, sand, gravel, rock or any other material is deposited, placed, 
replaced, pushed, dumped, pulled, transported or moved to a new location and shall include the resulting 
conditions.  


Final stabilization means that all land disturbing construction activities at the construction site have 
been completed and that a uniform perennial vegetative cover has been established with a density of at 
least 70% of the cover for the unpaved areas and areas not covered by permanent structures or that employ 
equivalent permanent stabilization measures. 


Financial security instrument means a surety bond, performance bond, maintenance bond, irrevocable 
letter of credit or similar guarantees submitted to the local approval authority to ensure that requirements 
of this article are carried out in compliance with the stormwater management plan.  


Gully erosion means a severe loss of soil caused by or resulting in concentrated flow of sufficient 
velocity to create a defined flow channel.  


Heavily disturbed site means a site where an area of land is subjected to significant compaction due 
to the removal of vegetative cover or earthmoving activities, including filling.  


Hydrologic soil group (HSG) has the meaning used in the runoff calculation methodology promulgated 
by the United States Natural Resources Conservation Service Engineering Field Manual for Conservation 
Practices.  


Impervious surface means any land cover that prevents rain or melting snow from soaking into the 
ground, such as roofs (including overhangs), roads, sidewalks, patios, driveways and parking lots. For 
purposes of this article, all road, driveway or parking surfaces, including gravel surfaces, shall be 
considered impervious, unless specifically designed to encourage infiltration and approved by the local 
approval authority.  


Infill means an undeveloped area of land located within an existing urban sewer service area, 
surrounded by development or development and natural or man-made features where development cannot 
occur. 


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Font: Italic







 


 


  Page 3 


Infiltration, for the purposes of this article, refers to any precipitation that does not leave the site as 
surface runoff.  


Infiltration system means a device or practice such as a basin, trench, rain garden or swale designed 
specifically to encourage infiltration, but does not include natural infiltration in pervious surfaces such as 
lawns, redirecting of rooftop downspouts onto lawns or minimal infiltration from practices such as swales or 
road side channels designed for conveyance and pollutant removal only.   


Land conservation committee or LCC means the Dane County Land Conservation Committee created 
under Wisconsin Statutes § 92.06.  


Land disturbing activities means any land alterations or disturbances that may result in soil erosion, 
sedimentation or change in runoff including but not limited to removal of ground cover, grading, excavating 
and filling of land.  


Lightly disturbed site means a site where an area of land is subjected to minor compaction due to the 
limited removal of vegetative cover or earthmoving activities.  


Local approval authority means the municipal staff, agency or contracted entity charged by the local 
unit of government with responsibility for enforcing stormwater and erosion control ordinances, and 
specifically includes the city planning department.  


Local land division ordinance means any county, city, village or town ordinance adopted under Wis. 
Stats. ch. 236 to regulate the division of land.  


Local zoning ordinance means any county, city, village or town ordinance adopted under Wis. Stats. 
§§ 59.69, 59.692, 59.693, 60.61, 60.62, 61.351, 61.354,114 62.23,62.231, or 62.234 of the to regulate the 
use of land.  


Maximum extent practicable (MEP) means a level of implementing best management practices in 
order to achieve a performance standard specified in this chapter which takes into account the best 
available technology, cost effectiveness and other competing issues such as human safety and welfare, 
endangered and threatened resources, historic properties and geographic features. MEP allows flexibility 
in the way to meet performance standards and may vary based on the performance standard and site 
conditions.  


New development means development resulting from the conversion of previously undeveloped land 
or agricultural land uses.any of the following activities:  


(1) Structural development, including construction of a new building or other structures;  


(2) Expansion or alteration of an existing structure that results in an increase in the surface dimensions 
of the building or structure;  


(3) Land disturbing activities; or  


(4) Creation or expansion of impervious surface.  


Nonerosive velocity means a rate of flow of stormwater runoff, usually measured in feet per second, 
that does not erode soils. Nonerosive velocities vary for individual sites, taking into account topography, 
soil type and runoff rates.  


 


NR means Natural Resources Wis. Admin. Code 


 


Peak flow means the maximum rate of flow of water at a given point in a channel, watercourse, or 
conduit resulting from the predetermined storm or flood.  


Pervious surface means any land cover that permits rain or melting snow to soak into the ground.  


Plan means an erosion control plan required by section 10-125 or a stormwater management plan 
required by section 10-126.  


Formatted: p0


Formatted: Font: Not Italic







 


 


  Page 4 


Plan review agency means the municipal staff, agency or qualified contracted entity charged by the 
local unit of government with responsibility for reviewing stormwater and erosion control plans under the 
local stormwater and erosion control ordinance.  


Plat review officer means the municipal staff, agency or contracted entity charged by the local unit of 
government with responsibility for reviewing land divisions, certified survey maps or subdivision plats or 
any combination thereof under Wis. Stats. ch. 236.  


Post-construction site means a construction site following the completion of land disturbing activity and 
final site stabilization. 


Post-development means the extent and distribution of land cover types anticipated to occur under 
conditions of full development of the submitted plan. The term "post-development" is used to match pre-
development and post-development stormwater peak flows as required by this article.  


Pre-development means the extent and distribution of land cover types present before the initiation of 
the proposed land development activity, assuming that all land uses prior to land disturbing activity are in 
"good" condition as described in the Natural Resources Conservation Service Technical Release 55, 
"Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds" (commonly known as TR-55). The term "pre-development" is used 
to match pre-development and post-development stormwater peak flows as required by this article. In a 
situation where cumulative impervious surface created after August 21, 2001 exceeds the 20,000 square 
foot threshold, the predevelopment conditions shall be those prior to the proposed land disturbance.  


Recharge means the portion of the average annual rainfall that infiltrates the soil and becomes 
groundwater. Recharge does not include evaporation, transpiration, or runoff from the site.  


Redevelopment means any construction, alteration or improvement exceeding 4,000 square feet of 
land disturbance performed on sites where the existing site is predominantly developed as commercial, 
industrial, institutional or multifamily residential uses. Projects may include a mix of redevelopment and new 
impervious surfaces. New impervious surfaces added as a result of redevelopment are subject to 
subsection 10-126(1).  


Runoff curve number (RCN) has the meaning used in the runoff calculation methodology promulgated 
by the United States Natural Resources Conservation Service Engineering Field Manual for Conservation 
Practices.  


Sediment means solid earth material, both mineral and organic, that is in suspension, is being 
transported or has been moved from its site of origin by air, water, gravity or ice, and has come to rest on 
the earth's surface at a different site.  


Sedimentation means the deposition of eroded soils at a site different from the one where the erosion 
occurred.  


Sheet and rill erosion means a loss of soil caused by sheet flow or shallow concentrated flow, and 
characterized by an absence of channeling or a relatively uniform loss across the exposed upper layer of 
the soil or shallow irregular scouring of the soil surface.  


Site means the bounded area described in an erosion control plan or stormwater management plan.  


Slope means the net vertical rise over horizontal run, expressed as a percentage, which represents a 
relatively homogeneous surface incline or decline over the area disturbed.  


Soil loss rate means the rate, usually measured in tons per acre per year, at which soil is transported 
beyond the perimeter of a given control site and which occurs as a result of sheet and rill erosion. The term 
"soil loss rate" does not apply to soil movement resulting from concentrated flow such as gully or bank 
erosion.  


Storm events means the precipitation amounts that occur over a 24-hour period that have a specified 
recurrence interval for Dane County, Wisconsin. For example, one-year, two-year, ten-year and 100-year 
storm events mean the precipitation amounts that occur over a 24-hour period that have a recurrence 
interval of one, two, ten and 100 years, respectively.  


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Highlight







 


 


  Page 5 


Stormwater means the flow of water which results from, and which occurs during and immediately 
following, a rainfall, snow melt or ice melt event.  


Stormwater management means any measures taken to permanently reduce or minimize the negative 
impacts of stormwater runoff quantity and quality after land development activities.  


Stormwater runoff means the waters derived from rains falling or snow melt or ice melt occurring within 
a drainage area, flowing over the surface of the ground and collected in channels, watercourses or conduits.  


Street reconstruction means removal and replacement of the road subgrade, where existing 
stormwater conveyance systems are modified.  


Structure means any human made object with form, shape and utility, either permanently or 
temporarily attached to, placed upon, or set into the ground, stream bed or lake bed.  


Transportation facility means a highway, a railroad, a public mass transit facility, a public-use airport, 
a public trail or any other public work for transportation purposes such as harbor improvements under s. 
85.095(1)(b), Wis. Stats. “Transportation facility” does not include building sites for the construction of public 
buildings and buildings that are places of employment that are regulated by the Department pursuant to s. 
281.33, Wis. Stats.  


Unnecessary hardship means that circumstance where special conditions, which were not self -
created, affect a particular property and make strict conformity with regulations unnecessarily burdensome 
or unreasonable in light the purposes of this article.  


(Code 1986, § 20.01; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-01-07, § 1, 1-9-2007; Ord. 


No. 0-18-2013, § 1, 8-13-2013)  


Cross reference— Definitions generally, § 1-2.  


Sec. 10-123. - Legislative findings.  


(a) The common council finds that construction site erosion and uncontrolled stormwater runoff from land 
disturbing and land development activities have significant adverse impacts upon regional  water 
resources and the health, safety, property and general welfare of the community, and diminish the 
public enjoyment and use of natural resources. Specifically, soil erosion and stormwater runoff can:  


(1) Carry sediment, nutrients, pathogens, organic matter, heavy metals, toxins and other pollutants 
to regional lakes, streams and wetlands;  


(2) Diminish the capacity of water resources to support recreational and water supply uses and a 
natural diversity of plant and animal life;  


(3) Clog existing drainage systems, increasing maintenance problems and costs;  


(4) Cause bank and channel erosion;  


(5) Increase downstream flooding;  


(6) Reduce groundwater recharge, which may diminish stream base flows and lower water levels in 
regional lakes, ponds and wetlands;  


(7) Contaminate drinking water supplies;  


(8) Increase risk of property damage and personal injury; and  


(9) Cause damage to agricultural fields and crops.  


(b) The common council also finds that effective sediment and stormwater management depends on 
proper planning, design and timely installation of conservation and management practices and their 
continuing maintenance.  


Formatted: Font: Italic







 


 


  Page 6 


(Code 1986, § 20.02; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-920-2006)  


Sec. 10-124. - Purpose and intent.  


(a) The purpose of this article is to set forth the minimum requirements for construction site erosion control 
and stormwater management that will diminish threats to public health, safety, public and private 
property and natural resources of the city.  


(b) This article is intended to regulate construction site erosion and stormwater runoff, to accomplish the 
following objectives:  


(1) Promote regional stormwater management by watershed;  


(2) Minimize sedimentation, water pollution from nutrients, heavy metals, chemical and petroleum 
products and other contaminants, flooding and thermal impacts to the water resources of the city;  


(3) Promote infiltration and groundwater recharge;  


(4) Protect functional values of natural water courses and wetlands;  


(5) Provide a single, consistent set of performance standards that apply to all developments within 
the city and are consistent with the standards set forth by the county;  


(6) Achieve an 80 percent reduction in sediment load rates to the county waters compared to no 
controls for all new development, a 40 percent reduction in sediment load rates compared to no 
controls for all redevelopment and street reconstruction and a 20 percent reduction in sediment 
load rates compared to no controls for existing developments;  


(7) Ensure no increase in temperature of stormwater post-construction in order to protect cold water 
communities;  


(8) Ensure no increase in the rate of surface water drainage from sites during or after construction; 
and  


(9) Protect public and private property from damage resulting from runoff or erosion.  


(Code 1986, § 20.03; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-125. - Applicability of requirement for erosion control permits.  


Unless expressly exempted by section 10-127, an erosion control permit under section 10-129 shall 
be required and all construction site erosion control provisions of this article shall apply to any of the 
following activities in the city:  


(1) Land disturbing activity in excess of 4,000 square feet.  


(2) Land disturbing activity on a slope of greater than 12 percent.  


(3) Land disturbing activity that involves the excavation or filling, or a combination of excavation and 
filling, in excess of 400 cubic yards of material.  


(4) Land disturbing activity that disturbs more than 100 lineal feet of road ditch, grass waterway or 
other land area where surface drainage flows in a defined open channel; including the placement, 
repair or removal of any underground pipe, utility or other facility within the cross section of the 
channel.  


(5) Any new public or private roads or access drives longer than 125 feet.  


(6) Development that requires a subdivision plat, as defined in section 66-2the applicable local land 
division ordinance(s).  







 


 


  Page 7 


(7) Land disturbing activity that disturbs less than 4,000 square feet of land, including the installation 
of access drives, that the local approval authority determines to have a high risk of soil erosion or 
water pollution, or that may significantly impact a lake, stream or wetland area. Examples of 
activities with a high risk of soil erosion or water pollution may include, but are not limited to, land 
disturbance on erodible soil or disturbance adjacent to lakes, rivers, streams or wetlands. All such 
determinations made by the local approval authority shall be in writing, unless waived by the 
applicant.  


(Code 1986, § 20.04; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1,. 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-126. - Applicability of requirement for stormwater control permits.  


Unless otherwise exempted by section 10-127, a stormwater control permit under section 10-129 shall 
be required and all stormwater management provisions of this article shall apply to any of the following 
activities within the city:  


(1) Any development after August 22, 2001, that results in the cumulative addition of 20,000 square 
feet of impervious surface to the site;  


(1m) Agricultural development that creates new impervious surface area exceeding 20,000 square feet 
of on the site;  


(2) Any development that requires a subdivision plat, as defined in the applicable local land division 
ordinance(s);  


(3) Any development that requires a certified survey map, as defined in the applicable local 
ordinance(s); for property intended for commercial or industrial use;  


(4) Redevelopment, as defined in section 10-122.  


(5) Notwithstanding the exemptions in Section 10-127, oOther land development activities, including, 
but not limited to redevelopment or alteration of existing buildings and other structures, that the 
local approval authority determines may significantly increase downstream runoff volumes, 
flooding, soil erosion, water pollution or property damage or significantly impact a lake, stream or 
wetland area. All such determinations shall be made in writing unless waived by the applicant.  


(Code 1986, § 20.05; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-127. - Exemptions and clarifications.  


(a) The following activities are exempt from all requirements of this article:  


(1) Agricultural activities. Stormwater discharges from the planting, growing, cultivating and 
harvesting of crops for human or livestock consumption and pasturing or yarding of livestock, 
including sod farm and tree nurseries are not regulated by this ordinance. This exemption does 
not include the construction of structures such as barn, manure storage facilities or barnyard 
runoff control systems.Any activity directly related to the planting, growing and harvesting of 
agricultural crops except the construction of a building or other structure.  


(2) Silviculture activities, including tree nursery operations, tree harvesting operations, reforestation, 
tree thinning, prescribed burning, and pest and fire control. Clearing and grubbing of an area of a 
construction site is not a silviculture activity. 


(3) One-family and two-family dwelling units regulated under the Wisconsin Uniform Dwelling Code. 
Land disturbing activities in excess of one acre, or not associated with the construction of a 
dwelling, or less than one acre but part of a larger common plan of development or sale under 
jurisdiction of the city, are not exempt from this article. 


Formatted: Highlight







 


 


  Page 8 


(4) Transportation facility construction projects directed and supervised by the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation in accordance with Wis. Admin. Code § NR 216.42(5). 


(5) Routine maintenance for project sites that have less than 5 acres of land disturbance if performed 
to maintain the original line and grade, hydraulic capacity or original purpose of the facility. 


(b) The following activities are exempt from the construction site erosion control provisions of section 10-
125:  


 (1) One-family and two-family dwelling units regulated under the Wisconsin Uniform Dwelling Code. 
Land disturbing activities in excess of one acre, or not associated with the construction of a 
dwelling, are not exempt from this article.  


(12) Projects specifically exempted from local erosion control ordinances under state or federal 
statute. It is the responsibility of the landowner to demonstrate such exemption with 
documentation acceptable to the local approval authority.  


(23) Projects subject to an approved shoreland erosion control permit under chapter 1131.  


(4) Municipal road or county highway projects not exempted under subsection 10-127(b)(2) are 
exempt from subsection 10-131(b)(3) where all the following conditions are met:  


a. The purpose of the project is only to meet current state or federal design or safety guidelines;  


b. All activity takes place within existing public right-of-way;  


c. All other requirements of section 10-131 are met; and  


d. The project does not include the addition of new driving lanes.  


  


(c) The following activities are exempt from the infiltration standardsstormwater management provisions 
of section 10-126 described in subsection 10-131(b)(5):  


 (1) Redevelopment sites.  


(12) New development sites with less than ten percent connected imperviousness based on complete 
development of the post construction site, provided the cumulative area of all impervious surfaces 
is less than one acre. This exemption does not include an exemption from the protective area 
standard of this ordinance. 


(23) Agricultural facilities and practices. 


(3) Underground utility construction, but not including the construction of any above ground structures 
associated with utility construction.  


(4) Areas where the infiltration rate of the soil is less than .6 inches/hour measured at the bottom of 
the proposed infiltration system where the soil layer is not easily removed or manipulated.  


(5) Parking areas and access roads less than 5,000 square feet for commercial and industrial 
development.  


(6) Roads in commercial, industrial, and institutional land uses, and arterial roads.  


(Code 1986, § 20.06; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-18-2013, § 2, 8-13-2013)  


Sec. 10-128. - Preliminary review letter.  


(a) Purpose and intent. A preliminary review letter provides a potential permit applicant with an initial 
simple evaluation of whether erosion and stormwater control standards can be met for a proposed 
site, lot layout and construction design. This review is intended to assist applicants in preparing general 
site plans and other submittals necessary to obtain an erosion control and stormwater permit. A 
preliminary review letter does not guarantee that an erosion or stormwater control plan will be 


Formatted: list1







 


 


  Page 9 


approved or that a permit will be issued. Erosion and stormwater control plans and permit applications 
must meet all applicable standards and criteria for approval.  


(b) Application procedure.  


(1) The local approval authority may charge a fee to compensate for provision of the cost of the 
preliminary review letter process.  


(2) Any person may apply for a preliminary review letter by submitting an application that contains 
the information required by the local approval authority.  


(3) The local approval authority may require a preliminary review letter prior to accepting a petition 
for rezoning or conditional use application under applicable ordinances, or city planning staff may 
require a preliminary review letter prior to accepting an application for a certified survey map 
under applicable ordinances where the following apply:  


a. The proposal would involve one or more acres within either the current or proposed 
boundaries of a commercial or industrial zoning district;  


b. The proposed lot or rezone area configuration would necessitate driveways, access roads 
or other construction that would clearly require an erosion control plan and/or stormwater 
management plan under section 10-125 and/or 10-126;  


c. Natural features of the site including, but not limited to slope, soils, wetlands, or hydrology 
are such that, in the opinion of the city planning staff or a designated authority, substantial 
risk of erosion, flooding or other environmental or public safety hazard exists;  


(4) Unless expressly waived by the applicant, decisions by the local approval authority to require a 
preliminary review letter shall be made in writing and shall detail the reasons why the authority 
believes there to be a substantial risk of erosion, flooding or hazard.  


(Code 1986, § 20.07; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-129. - Erosion and stormwater control permits and administration.  


(a) No activity meeting the criteria described in section 10-125 or section 10-126 shall occur and no 
building permits may be issued, until an erosion control and stormwater control permit is issued by the 
local approval authority.  


(b) Application Requirements. The applicant must provide the following when requesting a permit:  


(1) Completed application form:  


a. The application must be signed by the landowner or include a notarized statement signed 
by the landowner authorizing the applicant to act as the landowner's agent and bind the 
landowner to the terms of this article.  


b. If a landowner appoints an agent to submit an application pursuant to subsection (b)(1)a. of 
this section, the landowner shall be bound by all of the requirements of this article and the 
terms of any permit issued to the agent.  


(2) Fees as required by section 10-135.  


(3) Copy of preliminary review letter, as described in section 10-128, if applicable.  


(4) If required by section 10-125, an erosion control plan meeting all the standards of Wis. Admin 
Code § NR 216.46 and the applicable performance standards in Wis. Admin. Code § NR 151.11 
for construction sites (or NR 151.23 for transportation facility sites), and Ssection 10-130, or a 
simplified checklist as described in section 10-130.  


(5) If required by section 10-126, a stormwater management plan meeting all of the standards of Wis. 
Admin. Code § NR 216.47 and the applicable performance standards in Wis. Admin. Code §§ NR 


Formatted: Font: Italic







 


 


  Page 10 


151.121 to NR 151.128 for construction sites (or NR 151.242 to NR 151.249 for transportation 
facility sites), and Ssection 10-131 and a draft maintenance agreement as described in subsection 
10-131(a)(109).  


(6) Copies of permits or permit applications or approvals required by any other governmental entity.  


(7) A proposed timetable and schedule for completion and installation of all elements of approved 
erosion control and stormwater management plans and a detailed schedule for completion of 
construction.  


(8) An estimate of the cost of completion and installation of all elements of the approved erosion 
control and stormwater management plans.  


(9) Evidence of financial responsibility to complete the work proposed in the plan. The local approval 
authority may require a financial security instrument sufficient to guarantee completion of the 
project.  


(10) A plan to manage solid waste on construction sites such as discarded building materials, concrete 
truck washout, chemicals, litter and sanitary waste to reduce adverse impacts from stormwater 
runoff. 


(c) Approval process.  


(1) The local approval authority shall verify that the permit application is complete under subsection 
(b) of this section. The local approval authority or applicant shall forward the plan to the plan 
review agency for review and approval. The plan review staff shall review the plan for compliance 
with the standards identified in sections 10-130 and 10-131.  


(2) The plan review staff shall either approve the submitted plan or notify the local approval authority 
of any deficiencies. Staff engaged in this review and approval process shall be certified where 
appropriate by the Wisconsin Department of Commerce for this purpose.  


(3) The local approval authority shall notify the applicant in writing of any deficiency in the proposed 
plan and the applicant shall be given an opportunity to correct any deficiency.  


(4) Where installed stormwater practices will be privately-owned, an affidavit which describes the 
property by legal description, notifying future prospective purchasers of the existence of a 
stormwater permit issued under this article and applicable plan, timetables and potential liability 
imposed by subsection (h)(3) of this section for failure to bring the property into compliance with 
this article after notification, shall be recorded with the Dane County register of deeds prior to 
issuance of an erosion and stormwater control permit. Such information shall also be noted on 
every plat and certified survey map.  


(5) Upon approval of the plan review agency, the erosion control or stormwater management permit 
shall be issued by the local approval authority after the applicant has met all other requirements 
of this article.  


(d) Permit conditionsrequirements.  


(1) The erosion control plan shall be implemented prior to the start of any land disturbing activity and 
shall be maintained over the duration of the project. Stormwater components of the plan shall be 
maintained in perpetuity.  


(2) The permittee is responsible for installation of all BMPs as identified in the approved erosion 
control plan and stormwater management plant. 


(32) The permittee is responsible for successful completion of the erosion control plan and the 
stormwater management plan. The permittee shall be liable for all costs incurred, including 
environmental restoration costs, resulting from noncompliance with an approved plan.  


(43) Application for a permit shall constitute express permission by the permittee and landowner for 
the local approval authority to enter the property for purposes of inspection under subsection (e) 







 


 


  Page 11 


of this section or curative action under subsection (h)(3) of this section. The application form shall 
contain a prominent provision advising the applicant and landowner of this requirement.  


(54) All incidental mud-tracking off-site onto adjacent public thoroughfares shall be cleaned up and 
removed by the end of each working day using proper disposal methods.  


(65) A copy of the approved permit and erosion control plan shall be kept on the project site, in a place 
readily accessible to contractors, engineers, local approval authority, inspection staff and other 
authorized personnel.  


(e) Inspections.  


(1) Application for a permit under this article shall constitute permission by the applicant and 
landowner for the local approval authority to enter upon the property and inspect during the 
construction phase prior to the inspections pursuant to subsections (e)(4) and (e)(6) of this 
section, as necessary to confirm compliance with the requirements of this article.  


(2) As part of the plan approval process, the local approval authority shall determine the minimum 
number of inspections required to ensure compliance. The site of any regulated land disturbing 
activity shall be inspected once every 30 days, or more frequently as determined by the local 
approval authority during the construction phase with assistance from the plan review agency 
staff.  


(3) The permittee shall notify the local approval authority within ten days after installation of all 
practices in an approved erosion control plan and achievement of soil stabilization. The permittee 
shall inspect the site weekly, and prior to every forecasted rain fall of one-half inch or greater, and 
within 24 hours following a rainfall of one-half inch or greater.. Written documentation of each 
inspection shall be maintained at the construction site and shall include the time, date and location 
of inspection, the phase of land disturbance at the construction site, person conducting the 
inspection, assessment of control practices, and a description of any erosion or sediment control 
measure installation or maintenance performed in response to the inspection. 


(4) The local approval authority shall inspect the property to verify compliance with the erosion control 
plan within ten days of notification of soil stabilization.  


(5) Within ten days after installation of all practices in an approved stormwater management plan, 
the permittee shall notify the local approval authority and submit drawings documenting 
construction. The person who designed the stormwater management plan for the permittee A 
professional engineer shall submit as-built certification to ensure that constructed stormwater 
management practices and conveyance systems comply with the specifications included in the 
approved plans. At minimum, as-built certification shall include a set of drawings comparing the 
approved stormwater management plan with what was constructed. Other information shall be 
submitted as required by the local approval authority.  


(6) The local approval authority shall inspect the property to verify compliance within ten days of 
notification.  


(7) Maintenance is the responsibility of the owner and facilities are subject to inspection and orders 
for repairs.  


(f) Permit transfers.  


(1) When a permittee and landowner act to transfer an interest in property subject to an approved 
plan prior to completion of the proposed steps to attain soil stabilization, the permittee must 
secure approval from the local approval authority.  


(2) When a permittee and landowner transfer ownership, possession or control of real estate subject 
to either or both an uncompleted erosion control and a stormwater management plan, the 
successor in interest to any portion of the real estate shall be responsible to control soil erosion 
and runoff and shall comply with the minimum standards provided in this article.  







 


 


  Page 12 


(3) When ownership, possession or control of property subject to an uncompleted erosion control or 
stormwater management plan, or both, is transferred, the former owner (seller) shall notify the 
new owner (buyer) as to the current status of compliance with notice to the authority and provide 
a copy of the erosion control plan or stormwater management plan, or both.  


(4) Transfers of interest in real estate subject to an approved, uncompleted plan may be conducted 
consistent with this article under any of the following arrangements:  


a. The transferee shall file a new, approved erosion control or stormwater management plan, 
or both, with the authority.  


b. The transferee shall obtain an approved assignment from the authority as subpermittee to 
complete that portion of the approved plan regulating soil erosion and runoff on the 
transferee's property.  


c. The permittee shall provide the authority with a duly completed and executed continuing 
surety bond or certified check in an amount sufficient to complete the work proposed in the 
approved plan; at the time of transfer, the permittee may seek to reduce the surety bond or 
certified check to the appropriate amount to complete remaining work. If the transferor enters 
into escrow agreements with transferees to complete an approved plan, these funds shall 
be available to the authority to attain plan compliance. When an approved erosion control 
plan and, if required, a stormwater management plan is or are not completed as proposed, 
the authority may use the surety bond to complete remaining work to achieve plan 
compliance.  


(g) Plan or permit amendments. Any proposed modifications to approved plans, construction schedules 
or alterations to accepted sequencing of land disturbing site activities shall be approved by the local 
approval authority in consultation with the plan review agency prior to implementation of such changes. 
One permit revision is allowed at no charge. The second and subsequent revisions, to a maximum of 
five revisions, cost $50.00 each.  


(h) Violations and enforcement:  


(1) Stop work order.  


a. Whenever the local approval authority finds any noncompliance with the provisions of this 
article, the local approval authority shall attempt to communicate with the owner or person 
performing the work to obtain immediate and voluntary compliance if such person is readily 
available. If the owner or person performing the work is not readily available, that person 
refuses to voluntarily comply immediately or the noncompliance presents an immediate 
danger or will cause or threatens to cause bodily injury or damage to off -site property 
including, but not limited to off-site runoff, the local approval authority shall post in a 
conspicuous place on the premises, a stop work order which shall cause all activity not 
necessary to correct the noncompliance to cease until noncompliance is corrected.  


b. The stop work order shall provide the following information:  


1. Date of issuance;  


2. Reason for posting;  


3. The signature of the inspector posting the card; and  


4. The address or legal description of the property.  


c. It shall be a violation of this article for the unauthorized removal of the stop work order from 
the premises.  


(2) In addition to posting a stop work order, the local approval authority shall provide notification to 
the owner or contractor by personal service, written notice by certified mail, electronic mail or 
facsimile transmission.  







 


 


  Page 13 


a. The permittee, landowner and contractor shall have 24 hours from the time and date of 
notification by the local approval authority to correct any noncompliance with the plan when 
notification is by either personal communication of noncompliance to the owner or contractor 
or their respective agents or written notice sent by certified mail to the owner or the 
contractor.  


b. If notice is not provided under subsection (h)(2)a of this section, the permittee and landowner 
shall have 72 hours to correct any noncompliance with the plan when notification is by 
posting notice in a conspicuous place on the site or sending notice by facsimile transmission 
to the owner or contractor.  


(3) If any noncompliance is not corrected within the time periods specified in subsection (h)(2)a or 
(h)(2)b of this section, the permittee and landowner authorize the local approval authority to take 
any action, to perform any work or commence any operations necessary to correct conditions 
upon the subject property where notice of noncompliance has been issued to bring the property 
into conformance with plan requirements. The permittee and landowner further consent to 
reimburse the authority for the total costs and expenses of such actions and such reimbursement 
may be collected as a special charge upon the property for current services rendered as provided 
by law.  


(4) If the permittee has filed an appeal under subsection 10-134(a)(1) prior to the expiration of the 
time for compliance under subsection (h)(2) of this section, the local approval authority may take 
action, perform work or correct conditions only to the extent necessary to protect against or correct 
an imminent hazard or a condition that will cause or threatens to cause personal injury or damage 
to off-site property.  


(i) Penalties.  


(1) Any person, firm, company or corporation, owner, occupant or other user of the premises who 
violates, or refuses to comply with, or resists the enforcement of, any of the provisions of this 
article shall be subject to a forfeiture of not less than $200.00 nor more than $1,000.00 and costs 
of prosecution. Each day that a violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, and such 
violations shall be prosecuted in municipal court.  


(2) Any person who has the ability to pay any forfeiture entered against him under this article, but 
refuses to do so may be confined in the county jail until such forfeiture is paid, but in no event to 
exceed 30 days. In determining whether an individual has the ability to pay a forfeiture, all items 
of income and all assets may be considered regardless of whether or not such income or assets 
are subject to garnishment, lien or attachment by creditors.  


(j) Timeframe and expiration.  


(1) Erosion control plan timetables and construction schedules must begin within one year of the date 
of the application for permit is submitted.  


(2) All applications for permit shall expire:  


a. One year from the date the applicant is notified of an application deficiency, if the applicant 
has not submitted additional information to adequately address the deficiency within one 
year; or  


b. Three years from the date of application.  


(3) Erosion control permits shall expire:  


a. Upon the stabilization date included in the approval plan and included in the analysis 
provided to meet the requirements of ten.  


b. A maximum of three years after the permit is issued.  


(Code 1986, § 20.08; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-18-2013, § 3, 8-13-2013)  







 


 


  Page 14 


Sec. 10-130. - Erosion control plan requirements.  


(a) Plan materials. Erosion control plans required under section 10-125 may include consideration of 
adjoining landowners' cooperative efforts to control transport of sediment and, except as specifically 
exempted in this section, shall include at a minimum the following information required in Wis. Admin. 
Code § NR 216.46. The City may require any other information necessary to reasonably determine 
the location, nature and condition of any physical or environmental features of the site. :  


(1) Property lines, lot dimensions, and limits of disturbed area;  


(2) Limits of impervious area including buildings. Include all public and private roads, interior roads, 
driveways, parking lots, and indicate type of paving and surfacing material;  


(3) All natural and artificial water features including, but not limited to lakes, ponds, streams, 
(including intermittent streams), and ditches; and areas of natural woodland or prairie. The plan 
must show ordinary high-water marks of all navigable waters, 100-year flood elevations and 
delineated wetland boundaries. A certified flood zone determination and/or wetland delineation 
may be required at the applicant's expense;  


(4) Cross sections of and profiles of channels, swales, and road ditches;  


(5) Culvert sizes;  


(6) Direction of flow of runoff;  


(7) Watershed size for each drainage area;  


(8) Design discharge for ditches and structural measures;  


 (9) Runoff velocities;  


(10) Fertilizer and seeding rates and recommendations;  


(11) Time schedules for stabilization of ditches and slopes;  


(12) Description of methods by which sites are to be developed and a detailed land disturbance 
schedule including time schedules for stabilization of ditches and slopes;  


(13) Provision for sequential steps mitigating erosive effect of land disturbing activities to be followed 
in appropriate order and in a manner consistent with accepted erosion control methodology 
suitable to proposed sites and amenable to prompt revegetation, including runoff calculations as 
appropriate;  


(14) Provisions to prevent mud-tracking off-site onto public thoroughfares during the construction 
period;  


(15) Provisions to disconnect impervious surfaces, where feasible;  


(16) Provisions to prevent sediment delivery to, and accumulation in, any proposed or existing 
stormwater conveyance system;  


(17) Copies of permits or permit applications required by any other unit of government or agency;  


(18) Existing and proposed elevations (referenced to the National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929) 
and existing and proposed contours in the area, where deemed necessary; [and]  


(1619) Any other information necessary to reasonably determine the location, nature and condition 
of any physical or environmental features of the site.  


(b) Simplified plan checklists. Applicants may submit erosion control proposals using simplified checklists 
of standard erosion control practices, on a standard form approved by the local approval authority, 
wherever all of the following conditions exist:  


(1) The site does not exceed 20,000 square feet in area; and  







 


 


  Page 15 


(2) Soil on slopes steeper than 6 percent The slope of the land does not exceed six percent will be 
exposed for less than 15 days. 


(3)    Soil on slopes less than 6 percent will be exposed for less than 6 months  


(c) Review of simplified plan checklists. Simplified plan checklists shall be reviewed by the local approval 
authority for completeness and accuracy.  


(d) Erosion control performance standards. The erosion control plan shall be designed to meet the 
following performance standards and other requirements of this ordinance. 


(1) Proposed design, suggested location and phased implementation of effective, practicable erosion 
control measures for plans shall be designed, engineered and implemented to achieve the 
following results:  


a. Prevent gully and bank erosion;  


b. Limit total off-site permissible annual aggregate soil loss for exposed areas resulting from 
sheet and rill erosion to an annual, cumulative soil loss rate not to exceed 7.5 tons per acre 
annually; and  


c. Discharges from new construction sites must have a stable outlet capable of carrying 
designed flow as required in subsection 10-131(b)(3), at a non-erosive velocity. Outlet design 
must consider flow capacity and flow duration. This requirement applies to both the site outlet 
and the ultimate outlet to stormwater conveyance or waterbody.  


(2) Plan compliance under subsection (d)(1) of this section shall be determined using the U.S. Natural 
Resources Conservation Service Technical Guide or another commonly accepted soil erosion 
methodology approved by the county conservationist, that considers season of year, site 
characteristics, soil erodibility and slope.  


(3) Erosion control measures for plan approval need not attempt to regulate soil transportation within 
the boundaries of the applicant's site.  


(4)  


a. Except as authorized in this section, the topography within five (5) feet of any property 
line at the commencement of any development shall remain unchanged. 


1. When land disturbing activities associated with development occur within five (5) 
feet of any property line, finished grades in that area shall be restored to the 
topography in existence before the land disturbing activity began.  A positive slope 
of one-half (1/2) inch vertical per one (1) foot horizontal within five (5) feet of the 
property line is allowed to provide proper drainage away from a one or two family 
residence. 


2. The established grade of the adjoining property shall determine the finished grade 
at the property line for any development.  The owner of the property under 
development bears the burden of proof as to the established grade at the property 
line and the topography within five (5) feet of the property line.  The director of the 
Director of Planning & Development may require detailed site grading plans of 
existing and proposed conditions to be submitted before commencement of land 
disturbing activities. 


b. Existing drainage ways and drainage easements along property lines shall be maintained 
including, but not limited to, natural watercourses and stormwater management areas 
shown on subdivision plats and certified survey maps. 


c. Development in Floodplain Districts requiring fill to comply with chapter 30 is exempt from 
this subsection. 


d. Upon written application, the director of the Director of Planning & Development may 
authorize exceptions resulting in changes to the existing topography at and within five (5) 


Formatted: Highlight


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.3", Hanging:  0.3"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.6", Hanging:  0.4"







 


 


  Page 16 


feet of any property line that would promote the purposes stated in this ordinance.  An 
exception authorized under this subsection may not direct additional stormwater runoff 
toward adjacent properties.  Proposed exceptions may include but are not limited to, 
retaining walls, berms and other structures, and other changes to existing grade at and 
within five (5) feet of a property line.  The director of the Director of Planning & Development 
may require the submittal of detailed site grading plans of existing and proposed conditions 
including, but not limited to, detailed topographical information of the subject and adjoining 
properties, before land disturbing activities commence. 


(5) An erosion control plan required under this ordinance shall meet the requirements of Wis. Admin. 
Code § NR 216.46 and the applicable performance standards in Wis. Admin. Code § NR 151.11 
for construction sites (or § NR 151.23 for transportation facility sites). The design plan required 
under NR 151.23 (3) shall meet all of the following: 


a. Erosion and sediment control practices.  Erosion and sediment control practices at each 
site where land disturbing construction activity is to occur shall be used to prevent or reduce 
all of the following: 


  1. The deposition of soil from being tracked onto streets by vehicles. 


  2. The discharge of sediment from disturbed areas into on-site storm water inlets. 


  3. The discharge of sediment from disturbed areas into adjacent waters of the state. 


  4. The discharge of sediment from drainage ways that flow off the site. 


  5. The discharge of sediment by dewatering activities. 


 6. The discharge of sediment eroding from soil stockpiles existing for more than 7 
 days. 


7. The discharge of sediment from erosive flows at outlets and in downstream 
channels. 


8. The transport by runoff into waters of the state of chemicals, cement and other 
building compounds and materials on the construction site during the construction 
period.  However, projects that require the placement of these materials in waters 
of the state, such as constructing bridge footings or BMP installations, are not 
prohibited by this subdivision. 


9. The transport by runoff into waters of the state of untreated wash water from 
vehicle and wheel washing. 


Note: Wastewaters, such as from concrete truck washout, need to be properly managed 
to limit the discharge of pollutants to waters of the state.  A separate permit may 
be needed from the department where a wastewater discharge has the potential 
to adversely impact waters of the state.  The appropriate department regional 
wastewater specialist should be contacted to determine if wastewater permit 
coverage is needed where wastewater will be discharged to waters of the state. 


b. Sediment performance standards.  In addition to the erosion and sediment control practices 
under par. a., the following erosion and sediment control practices shall be employed:  


1. For transportation facility construction sites for which the department received a 
notice of intent for the construction project in accordance with subch. III of ch. NR 
216 within 2 years after January 1, 2011, BMPs that, by design, achieve a 
reduction of 80 percent, or to the maximum extent practicable, of the sediment load 
carried in runoff, on an average annual basis, as compared with no sediment or 
erosion controls, until the construction site has undergone final stabilization.  


2. For transportation facility construction sites for which the department received a 
notice of intent for the construction project in accordance with subch. III of ch. NR 
216, 2 years or more after January 1, 2011, BMPs that, by design, discharge no 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.6", Hanging:  0.4"


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.3", Hanging:  0.7"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.6", Hanging:  0.4"


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"







 


 


  Page 17 


more than 5 tons per acre per year, or to the maximum extent practicable, of the 
sediment load carried in runoff from initial grading to final stabilization. 


3. The department may not require any person to employ more BMPs than are 
needed to meet a performance standard in order to comply with maximum extent 
practicable.  Erosion and sediment control BMPs may be combined to meet the 
requirements of this paragraph.  The department shall give credit toward meeting 
the sediment performance standard of this paragraph for limiting the duration or 
area, or both, of land disturbing construction activity, or for other appropriate 
mechanisms. 


4. Notwithstanding subd. 1. or 2., if BMPs cannot be designed and implemented to 
meet the sediment performance standard, the plan shall include a written, site-
specific explanation of why the sediment performance standard cannot be met and 
how the sediment load will be reduced to the maximum extent practicable. 


Note: Soil loss prediction tools such as revised universal soil loss equation 2 that 
estimate the sediment load leaving the construction site under varying land and 
management conditions, or methodology identified in NR 151 subch. V, may be 
used to calculate sediment reduction. 


Note: In accordance with NR 151 subch. V, the department has developed technical 
standards to help meet the construction site performance standards.  These 
technical standards are available from the department at (608) 267-7694. 


 c. Preventive measures.  The plan shall incorporate all of the following: 


1. Maintenance of existing vegetation, especially adjacent to surface waters, 
whenever possible. 


  2. Minimization of soil compaction and preservation of top-soil. 


  3. Minimization of land disturbing construction activity on slopes of 20% or more. 


  4. Development of spill prevention and response procedures. 


(Code 1986, § 20.09; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-131. - Stormwater management plan requirements.  


(a) Plan materials. Stormwater management plans required under section 10-126 shall satisfy all of the 
requirements in subsection (b) of this section, and shall address at a minimum the following 
information:  


(1) Name, address, and telephone number for the following or their designees: landowner; developer; 
project engineer for practice design and certification; person(s) responsible for installation of 
stormwater management practices; and person(s) responsible for maintenance of stormwater 
management practices prior to the transfer, if any, of maintenance responsibility to another party. 


(2) A narrative describing the proposed project, including an implementation schedule for planned 
practices;  


(32) Identification of the entity responsible for long-term maintenance of the project;  


(43) A map showing drainage areas for each watershed area;  


(54) A summary of runoff peak flow rate calculations, by watershed area, including:  


a. Pre-existing peak flow rates;  


b. Post-construction peak flow rates with no detention;  


c. Post-construction peak flow rates with detention;  


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"







 


 


  Page 18 


d. Assumed runoff curve numbers (RCNs); and  


e. Time of concentration (Tc) used in calculations;  


(65) A complete site plan and specifications, signed by the person who designed the plan. All plans 
shall be drawn to an easily legible scale, shall be clearly labeled and shall include, at a minimum, 
all of the following information:  


a. Property lines and lot dimensions, including all existing and proposed buildings and 
setbacks;  


b. All public and private roads, interior roads, driveways and parking lots. Show traffic patterns 
and type of paving and surfacing material;  


c. All natural and artificial water features, including but not limited to lakes, ponds, streams 
(including intermittent streams), and ditches. Show ordinary high-water marks of all 
navigable waters, 100-year flood elevations and delineated wetland boundaries, if any. If not 
available, appropriate flood zone determination or wetland delineation, or both, may be 
required at the applicant's expense;  


d. Depth to bedrock;  


e. Depth to seasonal high water table;  


f. The extent and location of all soil types as described in the Dane County Soil Survey, slopes 
exceeding 12 percent, and areas of natural woodland or prairie;  


g. Existing and proposed elevations (referenced to the North American Vertical Datum of 1988, 
where available) and existing and proposed contours in the area requiring a grading and 
filling permit;  


h. Elevations, sections, profiles and details as needed to describe all natural and artificial 
features of the project;  


i. Soil erosion control and overland runoff control measures, including runoff calculations as 
appropriate;  


j. Detailed construction schedule;  


k. Copies of permits or permit applications required by any other governmental entities or 
agencies;  


l. Any other information necessary to reasonably determine the location, nature and condition 
of any physical or environmental features;  


m. Location of all stormwater management practices;  


n. All existing and proposed drainage features;  


o. The location and area of all proposed impervious surfaces; and  


p. The limits and area of the disturbed area.  


q. All buildings and outdoor uses, existing and proposed, including all dimensions and 
setbacks. 


(76) Engineered designs for all structural management practices;  


(87) A description of methods to control oil and grease or written justification for not providing such 
control;  


(98) If required under subsection (b)(6) of this section, a description and plans to control temperature 
of runoff;  







 


 


  Page 19 


(109) A maintenance plan and schedule for all permanent stormwater management practices as 
recorded on the affidavit required in subsection 10-129(c)(4). This plan shall, at a minimum, 
contain the following information and provisions: 


a. Identification of the owner(s) of the land parcel(s) where BMP(s) are located; 


b. Long Term Maintenance Plan.  A description of all long term maintenance activities that will 
likely be required for each BMP included in the agreement, and an estimated time interval 
between each activity;  


c. Access.  Authorization for vehicle access, including a minimum 15-foot wide access 
easement dedicated to the City, to allow for future BMP maintenance work. 


d. Maintenance Responsibility.  Identification of the person(s), organization, municipality or 
other entity responsible for long term maintenance of the stormwater BMP.  


e. Inspections shall be performed by the responsible party.  The responsible party shall 
maintain a log of inspection activities.;  


(110) A summary of infiltration calculations including:  


a. Pre-developed infiltration volume;  


b. Calculated infiltration volume goal;  


c. Achieved post development infiltration volume.  


(b) Stormwater management performance standards. Proposed design, suggested location and phased 
implementation of effective, practicable stormwater management measures for plans shall be 
designed, engineered and implemented to achieve the following results:  


(1) For redevelopment sites where the redevelopment will be replacing older development will be 
replacing older development that was subject to post-construction performance standards of NR 
151 in effect on or after October 1, 2004, the permittee shall meet the total suspended solids 
reduction, peak flow control, infiltration, and protective area standards applicable to the older 
development or meet the redevelopment standards of this ordinance, whichever is more stringent.  


(2) Sediment controlTotal suspended solids. BMPs shall be designed, installed and maintained to 
control total suspended solids carried in runoff from the post-construction site as follows: 


a. For new development, design practices to retain soil particles greater than five microns on 
the site (80 percent reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event (2.5 inches 
over a 24-hour duration), according to approved procedures and assuming no sediment 
resuspension;  


b. For redevelopment resulting in exposed surface parking lots and associated traffic areas, 
design practices to retain soil particles greater than 20 microns on the entire site (40 percent 
reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event, according to approved procedures 
and assuming no sediment resuspension. Under no circumstances shall the site's existing 
sediment control level or trapping efficiency be reduced as a result of the redevelopment.  


c. For in-fill development by design, reduce to the maximum extent practicable, the total 
suspended solids load by 80%, based on an average annual rainfall, as compared to no 
runoff management controls. No person shall be required to exceed an 80% total suspended 
solids reduction to meet the requirements of this subdivision.  


d. Maximum Extent Practicable. If the design cannot meet a total suspended solids reduction 
performance standard in subs (a)-(c), the stormwater management plan shall include a 
written, site-specific explanation of why the total suspended solids reduction performance 
standard cannot be met and why the total suspended solids load will be reduced only to the 
maximum extent practicable. 







 


 


  Page 20 


ec. Off-Site Drainage.  When designing BMPs, runoff draining to the BMP from off-site shall be 
taken into account in determining the treatment efficiency of the practice.  Any impact on the 
efficiency shall be compensated for by increasing the size of the BMP accordingly.  


(2) Oil and grease control. For all stormwater plans for commercial or industrial developments and 
all other uses where the potential for pollution by oil or grease, or both, exists, the first 0.5 inch of 
runoff will be treated using the best oil and grease removal technology available. This requirement 
may be waived by the plan reviewer only when the applicant can demonstrate that installation of 
such practices is not necessary.  


(3) Runoff rate controlPeak discharge.  


a. The maximum runoff curve number (RCN) used in such calculations shall be those shown 
in Table 1: .  The TR-55 specified curve numbers for other land uses shall be used.  Heavily 
disturbed sites will be lowered one permeability class for hydrologic calculations.  Lightly 
disturbed areas require no modification.  Where practices have been implemented to restore 
soil structure to pre-developed conditions, no permeability class modification is required.  


Table 1. Maximum Pre-development Runoff Curve Numbers  


Runoff Curve  


Number  
Hydrologic Soil Group *  


 A  B  C  D  


Woodland  30  55  70  77  


Grassland  39  61  71  78  


Cropland  51  68  78  83  


* When dual HSG are specified, the drained condition shall be assumed  


  


 


b. Runoff rate control—design standards. Except for redevelopment projects, all stormwater 
facilities shall be designed, installed and maintained to effectively accomplish the following:  


1. Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the one1-year, 24-hour storm event (2.549 
inches over 24-hour duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).  


2. Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the two2-year, 24-hour storm event (2.984 
inches over 24-hour duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).  


3. Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the ten10-year, 24-hour storm event (4.209 
inches over 24-hour duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).  


4. Safely pass the Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the 100-year, 24-hour storm 
event (6.066 inches over 24 -hours' duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).  


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Highlight


Formatted: list2







 


 


  Page 21 


(4) Outlets. Discharges from new construction sites must have a stable outlet capable of carrying 
designed flow as required in subsection (b)(3)b of this section, at a nonerosive velocity. Outlet 
design must consider flow capacity and flow duration. This requirement applies to both the site 
outlet and the ultimate outlet to stormwater conveyance or waterbody.  


(5) Infiltration.  


a. For both residential and nonresidential developments, design practices to infiltrate sufficient 
runoff volume so that post-development infiltration volume shall be at least 90 percent of the 
pre-development infiltration volume, based upon average annual rainfall.  


b. The maximum runoff curve number (RCN) used in such calculations shall be those specified 
in subsection (b)(3)a Table 1.  


c. If, when designing appropriate infiltration systems, more than two percent of the site is 
required to be used as effective infiltration area, the applicant may alternately design 
infiltration systems and pervious surfaces to meet or exceed the annual pre-development 
recharge rate. The annual pre-development recharge rate shall be determined from the 
Wisconsin Geological and Natural History Survey's 2009 report, Groundwater Recharge in 
Dane County, Estimated by a GIS-Based Water-Balanced Model or subsequent updates to 
this report, or by a site specific analysis using other appropriate techniques. If this alternative 
design approach is taken, at least two percent of the site must be used for infiltrat ion.  


d. Pre-treatment. Before infiltrating runoff, pre-treatment shall be required for parking lot runoff 
and for runoff from new road construction in commercial, industrial, and institutional areas 
that will enter an infiltration system. The pretreatment shall be designed to protect the 
infiltration system from clogging prior to scheduled maintenance and to protect groundwater 
quality.  


e. Prohibitions. Notwithstanding subparagraphs a. through c., infiltration systems may not be 
installed in any of the following areas:  


1. Areas associated with tier 1 industrial facilities identified in section NR 216.21(2)(a), 
Wis. Admin. Code, including storage, loading, rooftop and parking.  


2. Storage and loading areas of tier 2 industrial facilities identified in section NR 
216.21(2)(b), Wis. Admin. Code.  


3. Fueling and vehicle maintenance areas.  


4. Areas within 1,000 feet up gradient or within 100 feet down gradient of direct conduits 
to groundwater.  


5. Separation distances. Infiltration practices shall be located so that the characteristics of 
the soil and the separation distance between the bottom of the infiltration system and 
the elevation of seasonal high groundwater or the top of bedrock are in accordance with 
Table 2:  


Table 2. Separation Distances and Soil Characteristics  


Source Area  
Separation 


Distance  
Soil Characteristics  


Industrial, Commercial, Institutional 


Parking Lots and Roads  
5 Feet or More  Filtering Layer  







 


 


  Page 22 


Residential Arterial Roads  5 Feet or More  Filtering Layer  


Roofs Draining to Subsurface Infiltration 


Practices  
1 Foot or More  


Native or Engineered Soil with Particles 


Finer than Coarse Sand  


Roofs Draining to Surface Infiltration 


Practices  
Not Applicable   


All Other Impervious Source Areas  3 Feet or More  Filtering Layer  


  


6. Areas with runoff from industrial, commercial and institutional parking lots, roads and 
residential arterial roads with less than five feet separation distance from the bottom of 
the infiltration system to the elevation of seasonal high groundwater or the top of 
bedrock.  


7. Areas within 400 feet of a community water system well as specified in section NR 
811.16(4), Wis. Admin. Code, or within the separation distances listed in s. NR 812.08 
for any private well or non-community well for runoff infiltrated from commercial, 
industrial and institutional land uses or regional devices for residential development.  


8. Areas where contaminants of concern, as defined in section NR 720.03(2), Wis. Admin. 
Code, are present in the soil through which infiltration will occur.  


f. Alternate use of runoff. Where alternate uses of runoff are employed, such as for toilet 
flushing, laundry or irrigation, such alternate use shall be given equal credit toward the 
infiltration volume required by this section.  


g. Minimizing groundwater pollution. According to ch. NR 151, Wis. Admin. Code, infiltration 
systems designed in accordance with this section shall, to the extent technically and 
economically feasible, minimize the level of pollutants infiltrating to groundwater and shall 
maintain compliance with the preventive action limit at a point of standards application in 
accordance with ch. NR 140, Wis. Admin. Code. However, if site-specific information 
indicates that compliance with the preventive action limit is not achievable, the infiltration 
system may not be installed or shall be modified to prevent infiltration to the maximum extent 
practicable.  


h. Exemptions. Runoff from the following areas may be credited toward meeting the 
requirement when infiltrated, and/or infiltration practices located in the following areas may 
be credited under the following conditions, but the decision to infiltrate runoff from these 
source areas or under these conditions is optional: 


1. (4) Parking areas and access roads less than 5,000 square feet for commercial 
development. 


2. Parking areas and access roads less than 5,000 square feet for industrial development 
not subject to the prohibitions in subparagraph e. 


3. Except as provided under subsection (b)(1) of this Section, redevelopment post-
construction sites.  


4. Roads in commercial, industrial, and institutional land uses, and arterial roads. 


Formatted: Font: Italic







 


 


  Page 23 


5. Areas where the infiltration rate of the soil is less than .6 inches/hour measured at the 
bottom of the proposed infiltration system where the soil layer is not easily removed or 
manipulated.  


(5) Parking areas and access roads less than 5,000 square feet for commercial and 
industrial development.  


(6) Roads in commercial, industrial, and institutional land uses, and arterial roads. 


(6) Thermal control. The stormwater management plan shall include provisions and practices to 
reduce the temperature of runoff for sites located within the watershed of a river or stream 
identified by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources as:  


a. A cold water community as identified through NR 102.04(3)(a), NR104, Wis. Admin. Code, 
and Class I, Class II, and Class III trout streams identified in "Wisconsin Trout Streams," 
DNR publication PUB-FH-806-2002 or its successor.  


b. Rivers or streams proposed by the Wisconsin state department of natural resources as cold 
water communities and Class I, II, and III trout streams.  


(7) Thermal control continued. The stormwater management plan does not have to meet the 
requirement in subsection (b)(6) of this section if the applicant can justify by use of a model 
approved by the Dane County conservationist that practices are not necessary because the 
temperature increase of runoff from the site post-development will be zero.  


(8) Thermal control continued. A current list and maps of affected watersheds shall be available for 
reference at the office of the local approval authority and/or the plan review agency.  


(9) Protective areas performance standard. 


a. Definition.  In this section, “protective area” means an area of land that commences at the 
top of the channel of lakes, streams and rivers, or at the delineated boundary of wetlands, 
and that is the greatest of the following widths, as measured horizontally from the top of 
the channel or delineated wetland boundary to the closest impervious surface.  However, 
in this section, “protective area” does not include any area of land adjacent to any stream 
enclosed within a pipe or culvert, so that runoff cannot enter the enclosure at this location.  


  1. For outstanding resource waters and exceptional resource waters, 75 feet. 


2. For perennial and intermittent streams identified on a U.S. geological survey 7.5- 
minute series topographic map, or a county soil survey map, whichever is more 
current, 50 feet. 


  3. For lakes, 50 feet. 


  4. For wetlands not subject to par. 5. or 6., 50 feet. 


5. For highly susceptible wetlands, 75 feet.  Highly susceptible wetlands include the 
following types: calcareous fens, sedge meadows, open and coniferous bogs, low 
prairies, coniferous swamps, lowland hardwood swamps, and ephemeral ponds. 


Note: Information on wetland types, including ephemeral ponds, is available at (608) 
266-7012. 


6. For less susceptible wetlands, 10 percent of the average wetland width, but no 
less than 10 feet nor more than 30 feet.  Less susceptible wetlands include: 
degraded wetlands dominated by invasive species such as reed canary grass; 
cultivated hydric soils; and any gravel pits, or dredged material or fill material 
disposal sites that take on the attributes of a wetland. 


7. In pars. 4. to 6., determinations of the extent of the protective area adjacent to 
wetlands shall be made on the basis of the sensitivity and runoff susceptibility of 
the wetland in accordance with the standards and criteria in s. NR 103.03. 


Formatted: Highlight


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.6", Hanging:  0.4"


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"







 


 


  Page 24 


8. Wetland boundary delineation shall be made in accordance with s. NR 103.08 (lm).  
This paragraph does not apply to wetlands that have been completely filled in 
compliance with all applicable state and federal regulations.  The protective area 
for wetlands that have been partially filled in compliance with all applicable state 
and federal regulations shall be measured from the wetland boundary delineation 
after fill has been placed.  Where there is a legally authorized wetland fill, the 
protective area standard need not be met in that location. 


9. For concentrated flow channels with drainage areas greater than 130 acres, 10 
feet. 


10. Notwithstanding pars. 1. to 9., the greatest protective area width shall apply where 
rivers, streams, lakes, and wetlands are contiguous. 


Note: A stream or lake is not eligible for a lower protective area width even if contiguous 
to a less susceptible wetland.  


b. Applicability.  This section applies to post-construction sites located within a protective 
area, except those areas exempted pursuant to sub. d. 


 c. Requirements.  The following requirements shall be met: 


1. Impervious surfaces shall be kept out of the protective area entirely or to the 
maximum extent practicable.  If there is no practical alternative to locating an 
impervious surface in the protective area, the storm water management plan shall 
contain a written site-specific explanation. 


2. Where land disturbing construction activity occurs within a protective area, 
adequate sod or self-sustaining vegetative cover of 70 percent or greater shall be 
established and maintained where no impervious surface is present.  The 
adequate sod or self-sustaining vegetative cover shall be sufficient to provide for 
bank stability, maintenance of fish habitat, and filtering of pollutants from upslope 
overland flow areas under sheet flow conditions.  Non-vegetative materials such 
as rock riprap, may be employed on the bank as necessary to prevent erosion 
such as on steep slopes or where high velocity flows occur. 


Note: It is recommended that seeding of non-invasive vegetative cover be used in the 
protective areas.  Some invasive plants are listed in ch. NR 40.  Vegetation that is 
flood and drought tolerant and can provide long-term bank stability because of an 
extensive root system is preferable.  Vegetative cover may be measured using the 
line transect method described in the University of Wisconsin extension publication 
number A3533, titled “Estimating Residue Using the Line Transect Method”. 


3. Best management practices such as filter strips, swales, or wet detention ponds, 
that are designed to control pollutants from non-point sources, may be located in 
the protective area. 


Note: Other laws, such as ch. 30, WI Stats., and chs. NR 103, 115, 116, and 117 and 
their associated review and approval processes may apply in the protective area. 


 d. Exemptions.  This section does not apply to any of the following: 


1. Except as provided under s. NR 151.121 (5)subsection (b)1. of this Section, 
redevelopment post-construction sites. 


  2. In-fill development areas less than 5 acres. 


3. Structures that cross or access surface waters such as boat landings, bridges, and 
culverts. 


  4. Structures constructed in accordance with s. 59.692 (lv), Stats. 


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.6", Hanging:  0.39"


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Font: Italic


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"







 


 


  Page 25 


5. Areas of post-construction sites from which the runoff does not enter the surface 
water, including wetlands, without first being treated by a BMP to meet the 
requirements of ss. NR 151.122 to 151.123, except to the extent that vegetative 
ground cover is necessary to maintain bank stability. 


Note: A vegetated protective area to filter runoff pollutants from post-construction sites 
described in par. 5. is not necessary since the runoff at that location is treated prior 
to entering the surface water.  Other practices necessary to meet the requirements 
of this section, such as a swale or pond, will need to be designed and implemented 
to reduce runoff pollutants prior to runoff entering a surface water of the state.  The 
requirements of ch. NR 103 still apply and should be considered before runoff is 
diverted to or from a wetland. 


(c) Stormwater management goals. The following standards shall be met whenever possible, and 
proposed design, suggested location and implementation of practices to meet these goals shall be 
included in plans:  


(1) For existing development, design practices to retain soil particles greater than 40 microns on the 
site (20 percent reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event, according to approved 
procedures, and assuming no sediment resuspension.  


(2) For street reconstruction, design practices to retain soil particles greater than 20 microns on the 
site (40 percent reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event, according to approved 
procedures, and assuming no sediment resuspension.  


(Code 1986, § 20.10; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-01-07, § 1, 1-9-2007; Ord. 


No. 0-18-2013, § 4, 8-13-2013)  


Sec. 10-132. - Off-site stormwater management.  


Off-site stormwater management is allowed, provided that provisions are made to manage stormwater 
by an off-site facility, and provided that all of the following conditions for the off-site facility are met:  


(1) The facility is in place;  


(2) The facility is designed and adequately sized to provide a level of stormwater control that at least 
meets the requirement standards of this articleordinance; and  


(3) The local approval authority is satisfied that the facility has a legally obligated entity responsible 
for its long-term operation and maintenance.  


(Code 1986, § 20.11; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-133. - Technical standards and specifications.  


The design of all best management practices designed to meet the requirements of this article shall 
comply with the following technical standards:  


(1) Natural Resources Conservation Service's "Wisconsin Field Office Technical Guide, Chapter 4" 
or its successor.  


(2) Applicable construction or erosion control or stormwater management standards by the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources;  


(3) Any other technical methodology approved by the Dane County conservationist.  


(Code 1986, § 20.12; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"


Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"







 


 


  Page 26 


Sec. 10-134. - Appeals and variances.  


(a) Appeals.  


(1) Any person aggrieved by any decision of the local approval authority pursuant to this article may 
appeal to the public works committee. Such appeal shall be taken within 30 days after the 
challenged decision. Notice of appeal setting forth the specific grounds for the appeal shall be 
filed with the local approval authority and the city clerk. The zoning administrator shall provide to 
the public works committee the record upon which the action appealed from was taken.  


(2) The public works committee shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of the appeal and publish 
a class 2 notice thereof under Wis. Stats. ch. 985, as well as give due notice to the parties in 
interest, and decide the appeal within a reasonable time. Upon the hearing, any party may appear 
in person or by agent or attorney.  


(3) The public works committee may, in conformity with the provisions of this article, reverse or affirm, 
wholly or partly, or modify the order, requirement, decision or determination appealed from and 
may make such order, requirement, decision or determination as ought to be made and shall 
have all the powers of the officer from whom the appeal is taken.  


(4) The concurring vote of a majority of the public works committee shall be necessary to reverse the 
decision of the local approval authority.  


(b) Variances.  


(1) An applicant may include in the application a request for a variance from the requirements of 
section 10-130 or section 10-131. No variance shall be granted unless the applicant demonstrates 
and the local approval authority, after consultation with the Dane County conservationist, finds 
that all of the following conditions are present:  


a. Enforcement of the standards set forth in this article will result in unnecessary hardship to 
the landowner;  


b. The hardship is due to exceptional physical conditions unique to the property;  


c. Granting the variance will not adversely affect the public health, safety or welfare, nor be 
contrary to the spirit, purpose and intent of this article;  


d. The project will have no impact upon any of the stated purposes as set forth in section 10-
123;  


e. The applicant has proposed an alternative to the requirement from which the variance is 
sought that will provide equivalent protection of the public health, safety and welfare, the 
environment and public and private property;  


f. The net cumulative effect of the variance will not impact downstream conditions; and  


g. Existing regional facilities are shown to meet the performance standards of this article.  


(2) If all of the conditions set forth in subsection (b)(1) of this section are met, a variance may only 
be granted to the minimum extent necessary to afford relief from the unnecessary hardship, with 
primary consideration to water quality and impact downstream conditions.  


(3) A variance from the provisions of subsections 10-131(b)(1), (b)(2) and (b)(6) may only be granted 
if:  


a. The applicant has met the requirements of subsection (b)(1) of this section; and  


b. The applicant will be denied all reasonable and beneficial use of the property if the variance 
is denied.  


(4) A person aggrieved by a variance determination by the local approval authority may appeal the 
decision to the public works committee pursuant to subsection (a) of this section.  







 


 


  Page 27 


(5) A person aggrieved by a decision of the public works committee regarding a variance may appeal 
that decision to the board of appeals.  


(Code 1986, § 20.13; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-135. - Permit fees.  


(a) The erosion control and stormwater management permit fee shall be $200.00.  


(b) The fee for a preliminary review letter shall be $200.00. If a preliminary approval letter has been 
obtained, the erosion control and stormwater management base fee shall be waived.  


(c) For sites required to obtain an erosion control permit under section 10-125, there shall be an additional 
fee of $0.004 per square foot of disturbed area.  


(d) For sites required to obtain a stormwater control permit under section 10-126, there shall be an 
additional fee of $0.005 per square foot of impervious area and $0.0025 per square foot of redeveloped 
impervious area.  


(e) The common council authorizes city administrative staff to modify the permit and fee amounts listed in 
this erosion control and stormwater management ordinance on January 1 of each year following the 
adoption of this article, based upon the CPI-U for the Midwest Region, size "d" as prepared by the 
Federal Department of Labor, so long as the cumulative interim percentage of inflation warrants an 
increase of $5.00 or more on a round dollar amount and an increase to the next whole cent on amounts 
expressed in hundredths of a dollar. These amounts may also be modified by future council action.  


(f) Late filing fee. When an applicant or landowner begins work requiring a permit before obtaining the 
permit or appropriate approvals, the fees shall be doubled.  


(Code 1986, § 20.14; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-136. - Prohibited stormwater discharge and connection.  


(a) Purpose: The purpose of this section is to provide for the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
citizens of the city and to protect waters of the state through the regulation of illicit discharges to the 
municipal separate storm sewer system as required by federal and state law. This section establishes 
methods for controlling the discharge of pollutants into the municipal separate storm sewer system 
owned or operated by the city in order to comply with the requirements of the Clean Water Act, Chapter 
283.33, Wis. Stats., and the Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System municipal storm water 
discharge permit program under Chapter NR 216, Wis. Adm. Code.  


The objectives of this section are:  


(1) To regulate the contribution of pollutants to the municipal separate storm sewer system 
associated with discharges from any user of the municipal storm sewer system.  


(2) To prohibit illicit connections and discharges to the municipal separate storm sewer system.  


(3) To establish legal authority to carry out all inspection, surveillance and monitoring procedures 
necessary to ensure compliance with this section.  


(b) Definitions: For the purposes of this section, the following definitions are applicable:  


Authorized agency means employees or designees of the director or directors of the municipal agency 
or agencies of the city designated to administer or enforce this section.  


Illicit connection means any drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or subsurface, which allows 
the discharge of sanitary waste to the municipal separate storm sewer and any connections to the municipal 
separate storm sewer system from indoor drains and sinks.  







 


 


  Page 28 


Illicit discharge means any discharge to the municipal separate storm sewer system that is not 
composed entirely of storm water except discharges with a Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System permit or other discharges allowed locally.  


Municipal separate storm sewer or MS4 means a conveyance or system of conveyances, including 
roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, constructed channels 
or storm drains, which meets the following criteria:  


a. Owned or operated by the City of Stoughton.  


b. Designed or used for collecting or conveying stormwater.  


c. Which is not a combined sewer conveying both sanitary wastewater and stormwater.  


d. Which is not part of a publicly owned wastewater treatment works that provides secondary or 
more stringent treatment.  


Non-stormwater discharge means any discharge to the municipal separate storm sewer system that 
is not composed entirely of stormwater.  


Stormwater means surface runoff and drainage of rainfall and snow or ice melt.  


Waters of the state means those portions of Lake Michigan and Lake Superior within the boundaries 
of Wisconsin, all lakes, bays, rivers, streams, springs, ponds, wells, impounding reservoirs, marshes, water 
courses, drainage systems and other surface water or groundwater, natural or artificial, public or private, 
within the state or under its jurisdiction, except those waters which are entirely confined and retained 
completely upon the property of a person.  


(c) Applicability and enforcement: This section shall apply to all discharges to the MS4 and to all activities 
that can reasonably be expected to result in a discharge to the MS4. The city shall administer, 
implement, and enforce the provisions of this section. Any powers granted or duties imposed upon the 
authorized agency may be delegated in writing by the mayor to persons or entities acting in the 
beneficial interest of or in the employ of the city.  


(d) Minimum standards: The standards set forth herein and promulgated pursuant to this section are 
minimum standards; therefore, this section does not intend nor imply that compliance by any person 
will ensure that there will be no contamination, or pollution, nor unauthorized discharges.  


(e) Discharge prohibitions:  


(1) Prohibition of illicit discharges. No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the MS4 
or waters of the state located within the city any materials, including, but not limited to pollutants 
or waters containing any pollutants that cause or contribute to a violation of applicable water 
quality standards, other than stormwater. The commencement, conduct or continuance of any 
illicit discharge to the MS4 is prohibited. The following non-stormwater discharges or flows are 
generally not considered illicit discharges if done in a non-polluting manner: water line flushing, 
landscape irrigation, diverted stream flows, uncontaminated groundwater infiltration, 
uncontaminated pumped groundwater, discharges from potable water sources, foundation drains, 
air conditioning condensation, irrigation water, lawn watering, individual residential car washing, 
flows from riparian habitats and wetlands, dechlorinated swimming pool water, street wash water 
and fire fighting.  


(2) Prohibition of illicit connections.  


a. The construction, use maintenance or continued existence of illicit connections to the MS4 
is prohibited.  


b. This prohibition expressly includes, without limitation, the continued use of illicit connections 
made prior to the adoption of this section, regardless of whether the connection was 
permissible under law or practices applicable or prevailing at the time of connection.  


c. A person is considered to be in violation of this section if the person connects a line 
conveying sanitary waste to the MS4, or allows such a connection to continue.  







 


 


  Page 29 


(f) Monitoring of discharges and access to facilities: The authorized agency shall be permitted to enter 
and inspect private or public facilities, subject to regulation under this section, as often as may be 
necessary to determine compliance with this section. If a discharger has security measures in force 
which require proper identification and clearance before entry into its premises, the discharger shall 
make the necessary arrangements to allow access to representatives of the authorized agency.  


(g) Notification of spills: Notwithstanding other requirements of law, as soon as any person responsible 
for a facility or operation, or responsible for emergency response for a facility or operation, has 
information of any known or suspected release of materials which are resulting or may result in illicit 
discharges or pollutants discharging into stormwater, the MS4, or water of the state, said person shall 
take all necessary steps to ensure the discovery, containment and cleanup of such release. In the 
event of such a release that includes hazardous materials, said person shall immediately notify 
emergency response agencies of the occurrence via emergency dispatch services. In the event of a 
release including only non-hazardous materials, said person shall notify the authorized agency in 
person or by phone or facsimile no later than the next business day. Notifications in person or by phone 
shall be confirmed by written notice addressed and mailed to the authorized agency within three 
business days of the phone notice.  


(h) Enforcement: It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision of this section. Any person 
who fails to comply with the provisions of this section shall forfeit no less than $100.00 nor more than 
$500.00 and also pay fees and disbursements incurred in the prosecution of such violations. Each and 
every day during which a violation continues shall constitute a separate offense. The city may also 
institute appropriate action or proceedings to enjoin violations of this section.  


(i) Severability: The provisions of this section are hereby declared to be severable. If any provision, 
clause, sentence, or paragraph of this section or the application thereof to any person, establishment, 
or circumstances shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions or application 
of this section.  


(Ord. No. 0-23-08, § 1, 10-14-2008)  


Secs. 10-137—10-160. - Reserved.  







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  February 10, 2017 


 


To:  Public Works Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: Ordinance Revisions 


 


The City of Stoughton operates under a DNR permit to discharge stormwater to water of the 


States.  In order to remain in compliance with our permit, we need to amend portions of our 


Erosion Control and Stormwater Ordinances, specifically as it relates to construction site 


pollution control and post construction stormwater management. 


 


The proposed revisions to the ordinances are provided for your recommendation to the Common 


Council 


 


 


 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 


 


Attachment: Draft Ordinance Amendment 
 


    



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





Public Works Committee
Tuesday, February 21, 2017 @ 6:00 PM
Hall of Fame Room – 381 E Main St


Members Present: Alderpersons Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Kathleen Johnson and Mayor
Olson


Absent/Excused: Sid Boersm


Staff: Director of Public Works Brett Hebert and Vickie Erdahl


Guests: Streets Supervisor John Halverson, Alderperson Paul Lawrence, Residents Travis
Needham, Tom & Gail Gomach, Sheri Evans-Piper and Elaine Brenz


Call to Order: Majewski called the meeting to order


1) Communications: Hebert reported:


 That he had reached out to Strand to find out how they communicate with other utilities
when the street projects are going to move forward. Strand does reach out to the utilities to
see if they want to be involved as costs / access are more favorable when roads are
completely opened.


 The migration of Stormwater, plus the Tree and Sign Inventories has been completed by
MSA for GIS mapping.


 The Emerald Ash Borer RFP’s were sent to 13 vendors and are to be submitted by
Thursday, March 2nd.


 Cummins was awarded a $15,000 grant for environmentally sound projects which they will
be giving to the City to use for boardwalks.


2) Reports: Hebert stated there has only been 13 openings so far this year which is quite
normal for the season and that yard waste permits were just printed and will be on sale at the
beginning of March with the site opening on April 2nd – weather permitting.


Old Business:


3) Tree Planting Ordinance 10-2(d) Revised: Hebert made more changes to the Ordinance
removing the costs involved as each year they have the potential of changing, so will be stated
on the permit form. Also the developers will now be allowed to plant their own trees provided
the plan is approved and the arborist has reviewed the tree selections. Currently the
Ordinance is being reviewed by the City Attorney.


4) Public Works Facility Update: The Public Works has requested to continue working with
Angus Young and is waiting for Council review/approval on February 28 to move forward with
the next phase.


The Hub will be publishing an article with information for the public.


New Business:


5) Approve January 17, 2017 Meeting Minutes: Motion by O’Connor seconded by Johnson
to approve minutes. Motion carried 4-0 (w/Mayor voting yes).







6) 2017 Street Construction Plans / Sidewalk Installation Policy: Scheel stated that an open
house was held for the residents to review the plans. The streets presented are a total
reconstruction with curb, gutter and installation of sidewalks if none are present or
replacement of bad sidewalk sections. Streets reviewed were: Division St (Washington to just
beyond Forton), Brickson St (Page to dead end), Manilla St (Forton to Brickson), Henry St
(Ridge to Main), Park St (Lynn to Academy) & S Harrison St (Main to Hamilton). Scheel
stated that there was an adjustment made on S Harrison to move the sidewalk closer to the
curb and only have a four foot terrace area to address concerns raised by the adjacent
property owners. The adjustment does impact some terrace trees. Multiple residents were
concerned about safety. One property owner had installed a number of arborvitae shrubs in
the right of way and expressed interest in transplanting them. They also constructed a
retaining wall that extends into the right-of-way but the impact will be minimized by relocating
the sidewalk closer to the curb and gutter. Alderperson Johnson had looked at the area and
had a safety concern for a property. Scheel reported the City’s policy is to install sidewalks on
both sides of all streets that are being reconstruction and if there is interest to deviate from this
policy, the Common Council would need to take specific action to do so.


The property owner (Gomach) at 209 S. Harrison stated that they had their property surveyed
to find their stakes for the property lines. In discussions with the Planning Department about
five years ago, the property owner reported he had located the property lines and their
landscaping and retaining wall would be on private property; not in the right-of-way. It appears
from the City’s engineering survey that the property owner had not located the correct property
iron.


Residents in this area would like to not have the sidewalk installed stating that there is little
foot traffic and there is a sidewalk on the other side. Mayor Olson stated she understands
losing the greenspace but also meetings that she has attended state that studies show that
people want “walkability”.


Also discussed in more detail was the Henry St reconstruction where a resident has
arborvitaes in the terrace area which are not acceptable tress for that space and with the
installation of sidewalk it would be behind the trees. There is also, a triangle of vision problem
with the trees. O’Connor stated he had a safety concern with the shrubs in the right-of-way.


Alderperson Johnson would like to review the areas again


.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by the Mayor to approve the Street Constructions Plans
as presented. Motion carried 3-1 (with the Mayor voting yes and Johnson voting no).


Scheel discussed the concept to allow angle parking on Hoel Avenue adjacent to the future
Nordic Ridge Park. The group discussion included:


 Hoel Avenue will be a heavily traveled street
 Angle Parking does create concern about safety
 Traffic calming measures for the park and Hoel Avenue should be incorporated into the


construction plans for this region
 This neighborhood is planned to have normal the standard City speed limit of 25 MPH
 Protection of as much green space as possible is important to the group


There was not a consensus whether to allow this type of street design or not and no action
was taken.







7) Construction and Post Construction Ordinance Changes: Scheel discussed the changes
made to this Ordinance in order for the City to be in compliance and keep its stormwater
permit. The changes meet the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and Dane County
standards. Currently the City Attorney is reviewing the changes.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by Johnson to recommend to the Common Council to
approve the changes to portions of the Erosion Control and Stormwater Management
Code Sec’s 10-122, 10-127, 10-129, 10-130 1ne 10-131. Motion carried 4-0 (with Mayor
voting yes)


8) Stormwater TMDL – Status Report: Scheel provided an up on the status of the stormwater
study that has been in process for several months. Currently, the DNR is reviewing the draft
version. The remaining draft schedule was discussed


9) Yahara Wins – Participation Report: Scheel provided a report that highlighted the national
attention this program is achieving as we work with other municipalities and agencies to
address stormwater quality improvements on a regional basis. Stoughton is an active member
of the Yahara Wins program.


10) Pollution Prevention Plan: Scheel discussed and reviewed the draft Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the Public Work Facility. This plan will replace the previous
version and provides more guidance on appropriate housekeeping and maintenance
requirements for the facility than the previous version. This updated plan is a necessary
component of the City’s stormwater discharge permit. Hebert stated that the staff will have
more training on the practices outlined in the document. This document will also be
incorporated into the City TMDL Study that is currently underway.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by Mayor Olson to recommend to the Common Council
replace the previous policy and adopt the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan.
Motion carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes).


11) Tiered structure for street opening repair: Hebert submitted a draft of the new street
opening permit in which a PASER rating will now be recorded on the permit and if the rating is
a seven (7) or higher there will be more criteria required when replacing the roadway which
are stated in the Special Provision section of the permit. The charges for the permits remains
unchanged.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by Johnson to approve the changes to the Street
Opening Permit. Motion carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes)


12) Bridge Inspection Report: Hebert provided the committee with the report from the State
from the 2016 inspections. Each bridge has some repair work that needs to be done and the
Jefferson St footbridge was recommended to be replaced. Alderman Majewski suggested that
the footbridge project be put into the CIP due to the cost of meeting the recommended
requirements and would also like to see some different options.


Item will be placed on March’s agenda.


13) Downtown Improvements (Crosswalks, Drinking Fountains, Flowers): Hebert presented
some information on costs for installing drinking fountains which he was directed to research
into at a previous meeting. The costs of a drinking fountain and installation would be







somewhere between $18,000 - $25,000 per fountain. At this time the committee feels the
costs are high and won’t pursue. Hebert also explored the costs to have stone planters
(downtown area) and costs for soil and plants. The issue still remains, once the planters were
filled who would pay for the products and also maintain them. The committee would like to
have more discussion on the subject and look into the possibilities of volunteers – such as
Garden Clubs, Chamber etc.


Item will be placed on March’s agenda.


Also the Lazzaros’s, who maintain the Memory Garden Park on S Page St have asked if there
is anyone who can volunteer to help with the park as they are elderly and it’s becoming harder
for them.


14) Discussion of Tree Pruning Procedures: Tabeled.


15) Stoughton Community Farmers Market: Hebert stated he received an email from Kevan
Bard a board member for the Stoughton Community Farmers Market requesting that the
farmers market be able to continue using Forrest St {Main to north alley} on Saturday
mornings from 8am-1pm for the period {May 27 – Oct 28, 2017}. Mr. Bard still needs to
submit a street closing form signed by the surrounding businesses that will be affected by the
closure and a valid insurance certificate of liability insurance as part of the process.


Motion by Mayor Donna Olson, seconded by Johnson to allow the closure of Forrest St
(Main to north alley) to accommodate the Stoughton Community Farmers Market on
Saturdays May 29 – October 28, 2017. Motion carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes)


16) Future Agenda Items: Bridge Inspections, Planters/Flowers, Annual Stormwater Report,
Pruning Policies


Moved by O’Connor seconded by Johnson to adjourn the meeting at 7:45 pm. Motion
carried 3-0. Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative Assistant – 2/22/17







t,Stafford Rosen ba u rrì Lrp
ÂT?orneys


From Matt Dregne and Vanessa Wishart 
9


Confidential Memorandum
Privileged Lawyer-Client Communication


To Rodney Scheel


Menber of LEGIIS International Network of Lau Fitns


4r4.982.2850


888.655.4752


Fax414982.2889


www.staffordlaw.com


Re


Date February 23,2017


Stormwater Ordinance Review


We were asked to review Stoughton's Erosion Control and Stormwater Management


Ordinance. The scope of our review was limited to the following issues: (l) V/hether


Stoughton's ordinance complies with the minimum requirements established by its MS4


p.rroit and Wis. Admin. Code chs. NR 216 and l5l; (2) Whether Stoughton's ordinance


complies with the minimum requirements of Dane County's stormwater ordinance; and


(3) to the extent that Stoughton's ordinance imposes standards that are more stringent


than statewide uniform standards, whether those standards are legally valid.


The scope of our review at this time did not include extensive revisions for clarity and


organizátional purposes. Stoughton's ordinance follows the organization of Dane


CJunty's ordinance. Dane County's ordinance does not always track the organization of
Wis. Admin. Code ch. NR 216 or DNR's statewide uniform standards established in NR


151 and, thus, neither does Stoughton's ordinance. In the future, Stoughton might


consider revising its ordinance to align more closely with the organization of NR 216 and


NR 151 and DNR's recently released model ordinance, because that will make it easier to


evaluate Stoughton's compliance with State law and its MS4 permit. Finally, Dane


County is developing revisions to its stormwater ordinance, so it is possible that


Stoughton may need to revise its ordinance to meet new minimum requirements


established by Dane County in the future.


LEGAL SUMMARY


In order to better understand our proposed revisions to Stoughton's ordinance, a brief


legal summary is necessary.
r-lDOCS\005 649\002 1 30\ì\4EMOS\3CC2624DOCX
0223l',n645


Madison Office Milwaukee Office


222 \íest \lashington Avenue


P.O. Box 1784


Madison, \üisconsin


5370t-r7U


608,256.0226


888.655.4752


Fax608.259.2600


wwv.staffordlaw.com


1200 North Mayfair Road


Suite 430


Milwaukee, Visconsin


,3226-)282







Stoughton is subject to an MS4 permit and must enact certain standards into its


stormwater ordinance, including requiring erosion control and stormwater management


plans and permits. The requirements in Stoughton's MS4 permit follow the requirements


outlined in Wis. Admin. Code chs. NR 216 and 151 including a requirement that


Stoughton must enact and enforce an ordinance requiring construction site and post


construction site erosion control and stormwater management.


The standards Stoughton imposes in its ordinance generally must strictly conform with
uniform statewide standards DNR has established in NR 151. However, Stoughton may


enact and enforce ordinances that are stricter than uniform statewide standards for
stormwater management if those provisions are necessary to control stormwater quantity


or flooding; comply with a federally approved Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL)
program; or if those provisions relate to "existing development or redevelopment." 


'Wis.


Stat. $ 281.33(6). Stoughton cannot enact standards in its ordinance that we more


restrictive with respect to water quality for new development.


In addition to the uniform statewide standards, Dane County has the legal authority to
require municipalities within Dane County to comply with more restrictive standards


permissible under Wis. Stat. $ 281.33(3m) which, again, relate to water quantity or


flooding, a TMDL, or existing or redevelopment. ,See Wis. Stat. $ 33.455.


SUMMARY OF PROPOSED REVISIONS


The summary below provides aî explanation of the changes we have made in
Stoughton's stormwater ordinance. Our changes are shown in a red-lined format.


Definitions.


Most of these revisions were to bring the ordinance in line with the definitions in NR
151.002. With respect to the defînition of "Redevelopment," the definition in the current


ordinance is significantly different than the definition found in NR 151.002(39), and it is
not clear to us whether the City intends to require stricter standards for redevelopment by
using this definition. The City should evaluate the basis for this definition or consider


replacing it with the definition in NR l5 1.002(39).


Section 10-125.


We changed the reference to oothe applicable local land ordinances" to align with the same


reference in the following section.


L:\DOCS\005649\002 i 30\À4EMOS\3CC2624.DOCX
022317 t644 2







We note that Stoughton is required to regulate construction sites with land disturbing
activities of one acre or more, or those thaf are part of a larger plan of development.
Stoughton appears to have chosen to regulate activities on sites of less than one acre,


which it has the authority to do.


Section 10-126.


(1m): We removed this section because NR 15l.l2l(2)(b) explicitly exempts agricultural
facilities and practices from stormwater management plan requirements. Those facilities
are instead subject to the performance standards of subch. II of NR 15 l.


Section 10-127.


(a): We added language here that tracks the exemption language NR 216.42. Although
Stoughton's permit already exempted agricultural and silviculture activities, this
additional language should provide clarity with respect to what constitutes agricultural
activities in line with the state regulations, as well as adding other applicable exemptions
form NR 216A2(2) - (11) that arc exempt from all ordinance requirements.


(b): We made changes here to reflect the additional exemptions relating specifically to
erosion control standards under NR 15 1 .1 1 . Some of the exemptions in NR 15 1. 1 1 repeat


the exemptions in NR 216.42, so we did not repeat those exemptions already expressed in
(a).


(c) We moved the exemptions for infiltration requirements to the section on infiltration
for purposes of clarity. We left here the exemptions that apply in whole to stormwater
management provisions, as enumerated in NR l5l.I2l(2).


Section 10-129.


(bX4) and (5): We added references to the applicable statutes as well as to the
requirements in the ordinance in order to clearly ensure compliance with NR 216 and the
performance standards in NR 15 1 with respect to erosion control and stormwater
management plans.


(b)(10): We added a requirement to manage solid waste as required by Section 2.4.1.6 of
the MS4 permit.


(eX3): Stoughton is required by its MS4 permit and NR 216.07 to enact erosion control
plan requirements equivalent to those in NR 216.46. This change is to insure that a


permittee is inspecting a site after a rainfall event and maintaining records of inspection
as required under NR 216.46(9).


L :\DOC S\005 649\002 I 30\N4EMOS\3 CC2624.DOCX
0223t',l1644 J







Section 10-130.


(a): Again, Stoughton is required by its MS4 permit and NR 216.07 to enact erosion


control plan requirements equivalent to those in NR 216.46. The easiest way to ensure


compliance is to reference NR 216.46 for the required plan materials.


(d)(a): Stoughton's engineers suggested this addition regarding topography within five
feet of any property line from Dane County's ordinance. As explained above,


Stoughton's ordinance cannot be more restrictive than state standards with respect to
water quality. However, we understand this requirement to relate only to property lines


and not to water quality issues. To the extent this is true, this section is legally valid.
Stoughton should, however, consider whether the purpose of this section is water quality.


(5): We suggest requiring compliance with the applicable state regulations rather than


copying all of those regulations into Stoughton's ordinance. Because Stoughton is not
requiring more stringent erosion control standards (and generally cannot due to state law
limitations), it is simpler to just reference state code.


Section 10-131.


(a)(10): This change is to ensure compliance with the maintenance plan requirements of
the MS4 permit in Section 2.5.1.6. and NR 216.07(6).


(bXl): We added this section in accordance with the requirement of NR 216.l2I(5)


(bX2): We changed the title of this section to reflect the current version of NR l5l.l22
for clarity. V/e also added sections on in-fill and maximum extent practicable in
accordance with this regulation. We agree with the engineer's recommendation to add the


section on ofÊsite drainage.


Note regardíng oil and grease control requirement: We see no regulation in the statewide


uniform standards for oil and grease control. To the extent this is an attempt to regulate


water quality more stringently than state code, it is not legally valid. We should discuss


Stoughton's basis for including this provision.


(3): We revised the title for consistency with NR l5l.l23. We should also note that there


are exemptions provided in NR 151.I23 that Stoughton does not include in its ordinance.


It may be that these exemptions are not applicable, but Stoughton should evaluate


whether they should be incorporated into the ordinance.


L :\DOCS\005649\002 I 3 0\MEMOS\3 CC2624.DOCX
022317 t644 4







(5): The section on infiltration is more stringent than state code requires. This is


allowable because this section relates to water quantity and flooding and not to water
quality. This section is in compliance with the more stringent requirements in Dane


County's ordinance as well. Stoughton should keep in mind that Dane County is
proposing a potential change to the infiltration requirements to require 100% infiltration
volume. We added a separation distance requirement referencing NR 812.08, which is


necessary to comply with NR 216.47(4)(b). As mentioned above, we moved the


exemptions for infiltration requirements to this section.


Note regarding thermal control:'We see no regulation in the statewide uniform standards


for temperature control. To the extent this is an attempt to regulate water quality more


stringently than state code, it is not legally valid. We should discuss Stoughton's basis for
including this provision.


(6) lVe agree with the engineer's recommendation to include the protective areas


performance standard as it is laid out in NR 151.125.


L:\DOCS\005649\002 I 30\ìr4EMOS\3CC2624DOCX
0223171644 5





		6a-O-3-2017-Stormwater Ordinance - VDW Edits.pdf

		6b-Construction & Post Construction Memo.pdf

		6c-PW MinFebruary 21, 2017.pdf

		6d-Stormwater Ord Memo_001.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN ST., STOUGHTON WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO EXERCISE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT
POWERS FOR 2017 STREET PROJECTS


Committee Action: Finance approved 4-0


Fiscal Impact:


File Number: R- 8-2017 Date Introduced: February 14, 2017


BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, that:


1. The City of Stoughton, by its Common Council, hereby declares its intention to exercise


its police power pursuant to Section 66.0703, Wisconsin Statutes, to levy special assessments against


some or all of the property described in Attachment A, for benefits accruing to such property by the


construction of Public Improvements, including curb and gutter, sidewalks, driveway aprons, carriage


walks, sanitary sewer, storm sewer and water system improvements. The special assessments may


include the direct and indirect cost of the Public Improvements, the resulting damages, the interest on


bonds or notes, charges for the administrative staff of the City, and the cost of any engineering and legal


services, and any other items of direct or indirect cost that may reasonably be attributed to the Public


Improvements.


2. Whether the assessments will be deferred or not and whether the assessments will be


payable in installments will be determined following the completion of a final special assessment report


and following the public hearing required under Wis. Stat. § 66.0703(7).


3. The Public Works Director is directed to prepare a report thereon consisting of:


a). Preliminary plans and specifications for said Public Improvements;


b). An estimate of the entire cost of the proposed Public Improvements;


c). A schedule of the proposed assessments;


d) A statement that the property against which the assessments are proposed is benefitted.


Upon completion of such report, the Public Works Director is directed to file copies thereof in


the office of the City Clerk for public inspection.


Adopted on roll call at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Stoughton held on
the 28th day of February, 2017.







Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







Attachment A


Henry Street – Main Street to Ridge Street
Park Street – Lynn Street to Academy Street
Manilla Street – Brickson Street to Forton Street
Brickson Street – Page Street to Yahara River
Harrison Street – Jackson Street to Main Street
Division Street – Washington Street to 233 N. Division Street







CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: February 8, 2017


To: Finance Committee


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Subject: Finance Committee Agenda Item


R- - 2017 – Special Assessments – 2017 Street Projects


This item provides the notice that the City plans to levy special assessments to benefitting
property owners as part of the 2017 street projects. Once the engineer’s report is prepared,
materials are made available to property owners and a public hearing is scheduled


If you have any questions, please contact me.


cc. Mayor Donna Olson


S:\City Clerk\KIM\Special Assessments\2017 Special Assessments - Street Projects\Finance Committee 2-8-2017-Special Assessments.docx





		7a-R-8-2017 Preliminary Special Assessments Resolution-draft.pdf

		7b-Finance Committee 2-8-2017-Special Assessments.pdf






0223171550


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton Approving the
Park Place Condominium Plat


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommends Council approval 5 – 0


Fiscal Impact: N/A


File Number: R-10-2017 Date Introduced: February 28, 2017


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:


RECITALS


A. A condominium plat titled “Park Place Condominium” (the “Plat”), a copy of which is
attached as Exhibit A was submitted by Ed Heckman (the “Owner”) to the City of
Stoughton (the “City”) on January 16, 2017.


B. The Plat was referred to the Plan Commission for public hearing, review and
recommendation to the City Council.


C. The Plan Commission has reviewed the Plat for consistency with the City of Stoughton
ordinances, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan and has recommended approving the Condominium Plat as
presented.


D. The Common Council has reviewed the Condominium Plat and the Plan Commission’s
recommendation, and has determined that the Plat is consistent with the City of
Stoughton ordinance, Chapter 236 of Wisconsin Statutes, and the City of Stoughton
Comprehensive Plan.







0223171550


RESOLUTION


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the Condominium Plat
named Park Place Condominium as presented.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Park Place Condo Resolution.docx







0223171550


Exhibit A







0223171550







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2017\2-13-17\Planning Info\Park Place Condo Council Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: February 15, 2017


To: Planning Commissioners


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the Common Council meeting of February 28, 2017.


Ed Heckman, Heckman Enterprises, LLC requests preliminary and final condominium plat
approval for property located at 160-170 Business Park Circle.
This request is to create a condominium plat to allow separate ownership of the buildings but
common ownership of the land. This is an alternative to splitting the lot by certified survey which
would not be allowed by zoning due to street frontage requirements. The condominium plat and
other pertinent information are provided. A public hearing was held at the Planning meeting of Feb
13, 2017 and recommendation to approve is provided. The condominium plat and related materials
are provided.







mstacey

Text Box

EXHIBIT  A











S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Plats\Heckman PP Notice for Planning.doc


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday February 13,
2017 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, at the Public Safety Building,
Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a proposed
preliminary plat for Park Place Condominium, 160 Business Park Circle. The preliminary plat was
submitted for review and approval on January 16, 2017. The land within this condominium
development is proposed for planned industrial uses.


For questions regarding this notice please contact Rodney Scheel, Director of Planning & Development
at 608-873-6619. A copy of the preliminary plat and a map of the area adjacent to the proposed plat
can be viewed at the Planning & Development Office, City Hall, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton,
Wisconsin or at www.cityofstoughton.com/planning


Rodney Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Published January 26, 2017 and February 2, 2017 Hub







UNIT 170


UNIT 160


LC
E 


- 1
60


LCE- 170


LCE- 170COMMON AREA


SIGN IS A
COMMON
ELEMENT


UTILITY BOXES
ARE COMMON
ELEMENTS


PR
EL


IM
IN


AR
Y 


PL
AT


PA
R


K
 P


LA
CE


 C
O


N
D


O
M


IN
IU


M


FN:  16-07-128


1 of 1


SCALE: 1"= 30'


Sheet Number:


LO
T


 2
1,


 S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
 B


U
SI


N
ES


S 
PA


R
K


 N
O


R
T


H
LO


CA
T


ED
 I


N
 T


H
E 


N
W


1/
4 


O
F 


T
H


E 
N


E1
/4


 O
F 


SE
CT


IO
N


 5
, T


5N
, R


11
E,


 C
IT


Y 
O


F 
ST


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
, D


AN
E 


CO
U


N
T


Y,
 W


IS
CO


N
SI


N







T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2017\Planning Minutes 2-13-17.docx


Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Monday, February 13, 2017 at 6:00 pm
Public Safety Building, Council Chambers, Second Floor, 321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton,
WI.


Members Present: Scott Truehl Vice-Chair; Michael Engelberger; Matt Hanna; Greg Jenson; and
Mike Maloney
Absent: Todd Krcma and Mayor Olson
Staff: Director of Planning & Development, Rodney Scheel; Zoning Administrator, Michael
Stacey
Press: Amber Levenhagen
Guests: Kevin Yeska; Dennis Steinkraus; Ryan Swanson; Sean Higgins; Lauren Downing; John
Bieno; Mark Seidl; Ed Heckman; Laura Trotter; Mike Maas; Denise Duranczyk; Roger Thompson;
Malisa Dielsch; Tom Matson; David Natter; Roger Springman; Jay Blackburn; Ron Klaas; Terry
Johnson; Lisa Reeves and Paul Lawrence


1. Call to order. Truehl called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.


2. Consider approval of the Planning Commission meeting minutes of January 9 and
January 19, 2017.
Motion by Hanna to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Engelberger. Motion carried 5
– 0.


3. Council Representative Report.
Scheel stated the CSM for North American Fur Auctions was approved by the Common
Council.


4. Status of Developments.
Scheel gave an overview of current development as outlined in the packet. There were no
questions.


5. Ed Heckman, Heckman Enterprises, LLC requests preliminary and final condominium
plat approval for property located at 160-170 Business Park Circle.
Scheel gave an overview of the request.


Truehl opened the public hearing.


Jay Blackburn registered in favor of the request.


Truehl closed the public hearing.


Ron Klaas stated he prepared the condominium plat and is available for questions.


Jenson stated the Business Park North Committee met and approved the condominium plat.


Engelberger questioned the front building orientation.



mstacey

Highlight

Ed Heckman, Heckman Enterprises, LLC requests preliminary and final condominium
plat approval for property located at 160-170 Business Park Circle.
Scheel gave an overview of the request.
Truehl opened the public hearing.
Jay Blackburn registered in favor of the request.
Truehl closed the public hearing.
Ron Klaas stated he prepared the condominium plat and is available for questions.
Jenson stated the Business Park North Committee met and approved the condominium plat.
Engelberger questioned the front building orientation.








Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
2/13/17
Page 2 of 7


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2017\Planning Minutes 2-13-17.docx


Scheel stated the front building is existing.


Motion by Hanna to recommend the Common Council approve the condominium plat as
presented, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 5 - 0.


6. John Bieno, TJK Design Build requests site plan approval for a building addition at 170
Business Park Circle.
Scheel gave an overview of the site plan.


Engelberger questioned if there were any issues. Scheel stated that staff recommends approval.


Motion by Engelberger to approve the resolution related to the site plan contingent on the staff
review letter, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 5 - 0.


7. Casey’s Marketing Company request to rezone the property at 1640 E. Main Street from
RH - Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business.
Scheel explained the request.


Truehl opened the public hearing.


David Natter spoke in favor of the request.


Scheel explained this request is to rezone the property from Rural Holding to Planned Business
which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map.


Ryan Swanson stated he is available for questions.


Engelberger questioned who will retain ownership. It was confirmed Casey’s will own the site.


Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning request as
presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 - 0.


8. Casey’s Marketing Company requests a conditional use permit for an in-vehicle sales and
service use including outdoor display incidental to indoor sales and service to
accommodate Casey’s General Store at 1640 E. Main Street.
Scheel explained the request.


Truehl opened the public hearing.


David Natter registered in favor.


Ryan Swanson gave an overview of the site plan.


Hanna questioned the type of plants planned for the retention pond.


Ryan Swanson stated the plants would be turf plantings.



mstacey

Highlight

Scheel stated the front building is existing.
Motion by Hanna to recommend the Common Council approve the condominium plat as
presented, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 5 - 0.






		8a-R-10-2017-Park Place Condo Resolution.pdf

		8b-Park Place Condo Plat.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to continue using the professional services of
Angus Young & Associates in 2017 and 2018 for engineering and architecture design, construction
document development, as well as construction oversight for the proposed Public Works Facility.


Committee Action: Public Works Committee voted 4-1 (with the Mayor voting yes and Boersma
voting No)
Finance Committee voted 4-0


Fiscal Impact: $ 359,000.00 CIP funds (a portion would be paid in 2017 and the balance in
2018)


File Number: R -9- 2017 Date Introduced February 28, 2017


WHEREAS, the Public Works Department has been working since 2013 with Angus Young and
Associates to study the space needs for the Public Works Department and provided conceptual plans for
construction of a new Public Works Facility;


WHEREAS, the Director of Public Works would like to continue working with Angus Young &
Associates for professional services associated with the proposed Public Works Facility;


WHEREAS, the Public Works Committee voted to allow the proper city official(s) to continue working
with Angus Young & Associates for engineering and architecture design, construction document
development, as well as construction oversight for the proposed Public Works Facility;


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) are
hereby approved to continue working with Angus Young & Associates for professional services associated
with the proposed Public Works Facility.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







S:\rjs\Resolutions\Public Works Resolution.docx







City of Stoughton
Mr. Brett Hebert, Director of Public Works


515 S. Fourth Street
Stoughton, WI  53589


Friday, January 6, 2017


Page 1 of 4New Public Works FacilityRe:


Dear Brett:


This project will construct a new public works facility for the City of Stoughton on recently annexed parcels of 
land located south and east of the intersection of CTH ‘A’ and Racetrack Road. There are several existing 
buildings on the parcels that will be demolished as part of the project, and the individual parcels will be 
consolidated by CSM to a single property. 


As part of the Civil design, public water and sewer will be extended to the site and on-site storm water 
management facilities will be provided to meet City and State requirements.


A new 58,200 S.F. public works facility will be constructed on the new site.  The new building will provide: 
administrative offices; employee welfare areas; vehicle maintenance and storage; and, departmental shops. The 
additional equipment provided in the email on 1/3/2017 will be allocated to spaces illustrated as 'Future' in the 
floor plan of the study.


In addition, a second 4,800 S.F. building will be constructed for salt storage with provisions for mixed sand/salt 
and salt as well as space for bulk materials under roof. A brine storage facility with containment will be included.


A fueling station, canopy and control system will also be included in the project.


Future space on the site will be planned for a cold storage building so that as the fleet grows, a less expensive 
alternative may be incorporated for seasonal equipment.


1.  Building A/E Fees (Including MEP) - $306,800
2.  Site Civil and Storm water Design - $35,000
3.  Public Water Main Extension Civil Design - $6,200
4.  ALTA Survey of Existing Conditions - $3,700
5.  Certified Survey Map for Combination of Properties - $3,100
6.  Soil Testing - $4,800


Project Scope:


Thank you for having Angus Young Associates provide you with this proposal for architectural and/or engineering 
services for your project. We hope that this proposal format provides you with the needed information to select our 
firm. Please let us know if you have any questions or require changes.


This engagement letter is for professional services for the project scope, professional disciplines and services  
described below. Should the project scope, disciplines included or services being provided need adjustment or 
change during the development of the project, we will be happy to revise the scope or services with an adjustment in 
the fees corresponding to the revisions. The risk allocation amount shall be the limit of our professional liability as 
defined in the 'Risk Allocation' section of this engagement letter.


555 South River Street, Janesville, Wisconsin 53548-4783 - Phone (608) 756-2326 - Fax (608) 756-0464 - www.angusyoung.com







Page 2 of 4New Public Works FacilityRe:


Expenses (Not included in Fee - Billed as Accrued):
State Approvals, Bidding, and Travel Expenses - $16,300


Professional Disciplines Included:


Professional services included with the proposed fee include:  architectural design services to define building 
layout, orientation, scope, finishes and color selection and construction; design of structural systems and 
components; HVAC system design including determining heating and cooling loads, determining system(s), 
components and operations; electrical power, lighting and communications systems design, equipment selection, 
layout and components; plumbing systems design, sizing, fixture selection and system layout; site design 
including buildings, parking, circulation, lighting, utilities and other improvements; landscaping design, layout, 
selection of materials, and details; interior design of furniture and equipment, materials, fabrics and color 
selections. May include interior plantings, artwork and decoration; design of site improvements, topography, 
storm water drainage systems, construction details and erosion control and storm water management plans.


Services included in this proposal provided by other consultants: ; site survey and prepare site plans with 
improvements, topography and landscaping; soils testing and engineering to determine soils conditions for 
design and construction.


Scope of Services Included:


Schematic Design: Working from the information you provide in the facility program, we will prepare building 
floor plans, site plan and exterior elevations. The plans will illustrate the spatial and functional relationships of 
the facility and site. The exterior elevations will illustrate the projected image and exterior materials. We shall 
also prepare a project schedule, construction cost estimate, and will discuss with you construction types, costs 
and alternatives you may want to consider.


Design Development: We will work with you to determine the next level of detail in the design of the project. 
Consideration for construction type, materials, finishes, features and final design considerations will be covered. 
If included: our engineers shall determine the structural, mechanical, electrical, and plumbing requirements of 
the building, mechanical system options and suggestions, then optimal locations and sizes for the systems. It is 
our goal, that by the conclusion of this phase, all aspects of the building design have been thoroughly reviewed 
with you and approved.


Detailed Bidding/Construction Documents: After systems have been selected and finishes approved, our team 
shall develop detailed drawings, specifications and project manual needed for bidding, approvals and 
construction. Project manual with specifications shall be developed for this project and shall include 
requirements for bidding, general conditions, and other general provisions as requested by the owner. Prepare 
documents shall provide a level of detail for competitive, comparable bidding of project.


Bidding/Contract Negotiation: During the bidding of the project, we shall answer questions, prepare addenda 
and assist in obtaining bids, award and preparation of the Standard AIA Owner-Contractor contracts.  The 
conclusion of this phase will result in an award and contracts for construction with a single prime General 
Contractor.


Construction Phase Services: We shall provide construction services which will include: reviewing shop 
drawings and payment requests, attend bi-weekly job meetings, review construction on-site, prepare 
clarifications, bulletins, request for proposals and answer questions as called upon. At notification by the 
contractor of substantial completion, we shall closely review the project with you and prepare a list of all items 
that the contractor must complete, repair or provide prior to final completion and payment. As part of the final 
completion of the project, we shall assist in gathering as-built documents, warrantees, instruction and operation 
manuals from the contractor, preparation of closing documents and paperwork required for reduction of 
retainage and final payment.


555 South River Street, Janesville, Wisconsin 53548-4783 - Phone (608) 756-2326 - Fax (608) 756-0464 - www.angusyoung.com







Page 3 of 4New Public Works FacilityRe:


Hourly Rates:


Terms: Contract form:
Angus Young Associates Risk Allocation: $2,000,000


We look forward to working with you on this project.


Sincerely, Accepted By:


Printed Name


Signature


Date
Jeffrey Hazekamp, President, AIA


Work will begin on the project after a signed copy of this engagement letter is received. If for any reason, work has 
begun without a signed engagement letter, contract or purchase order, we may terminate work on the project 
without notice. Receipt of a purchase order for this project will constitute agreement with the terms of this 
engagement letter. This agreement and the contract form defined under "Terms" above shall be the basis of our 
agreement. The contract form will be provided at your request.


Fixed fee plus reimbursible expenses (see last page for description), billed monthly 
based on the progress of completed work.


Type of Billing:


B101 Owner-Architect Abreviated Agreement, 2007


$359,600.00 $16,300.00            Estimated Expenses:Professional Fee:


Services Not Included:


Professional disciplines not included in this proposal: accounting; or, legal services. These may be available 
upon request with appropriate fee adjustments. Available services not included: descriptive program; feasibility 
study;  commissioning and post-construction services. These services are available upon request but have not 
been included in this proposal.


$120.00Principal $110.00Engineer
$100.00Design Professional $90.00Professional I
$75.00Professional II $65.00Professional III
$55.00Designer $45.00Technician I


555 South River Street, Janesville, Wisconsin 53548-4783 - Phone (608) 756-2326 - Fax (608) 756-0464 - www.angusyoung.com







Page 4 of 4New Public Works FacilityRe:


To provide the requested services, we may require information from you or others to provide the professional services requested. 
Depending on the scope of the project and services we will require you to provide: space needs or program statement; detailed site 
survey; soils engineering report; written design criteria and project requirements; and, existing building as-built drawings/ 
construction documents. We will rely on the content, accuracy and completeness of all information provided by you or others on 
your behalf. Please confirm the accuracy of all information provided.


INFORMATION REQUIRED FROM OWNER


SCOPE OF BASIC SERVICES


Services that we may provide for your project include: architectural, structural, electrical, plumbing, and mechanical engineering.  
These services are implied unless omitted because of project scope or limitation of requested professional services. Unless otherwise 
stated, scope of professional services and form of agreement between the Angus Young Associates, Inc. and the owner shall be 
defined by the AIA contract form referenced previously. This contract form is available upon request.


REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES


Reimbursable expenses shall be billed in addition to professional fees at cost plus fifteen percent. Expenses may include but not 
limited to: submittal and approval fees; printing, reproduction of drawings and specifications; mailing; advertising fees; and travel 
expenses. Where proposal is provided to include expenses, these fees are included in the profession fees listed.


SERVICES NOT INCLUDED


Angus-Young Associates shall not provide, coordinate nor be responsible for: soils, concrete, material and performance testing; site 
surveying services; pre-engineered metal building components; other professional services such as real estate, accounting, or legal 
services. Angus Young, except for it's own services, shall not specify construction procedures, manage or supervise construction, or 
impliment or be responsible for health and safety procedures, and shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for 
construction means, methods, technics, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs.


EXISTING FACILITY LIMITATIONS


We are informing you of risk you assume associated with our work as it relates to the existing building construction. Since we are 
unfamiliar and unable to verify without damaging the facility we shall assume that the existing building construction is: as indicated 
on drawings provided; meets all code requirements; and is consistent with the construction that is visible. Construction that is 
buried, covered or not readily visible will not be verified by our staff prior to construction demolition. Should demolition expose 
structural, code or other conditions inconsistent with the information provided or available; additional costs to remedy will be born 
by the Owner. Costs for investigation, recommendations, and/or design efforts by our staff will also be charged in addition to the 
fees previously established at our standard hourly rates.


LIMITATION OF LIABILITY


In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project to both the Client and the Consultant, the risks have been allocated 
such that the Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of the Consultant to the Client for any and all 
claims, losses, costs, damages of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses from any cause or causes, including attorney’s fees and 
costs and expert-witness fees and costs, so that the total aggregate liability of the Consultant to the Client shall not exceed the 
Consultant’s risk allocation amount indicated under 'Terms' in this proposal. It is intended that this limitation apply to any and all 
liability or cause of action however alleged or arising, unless otherwise permitted by law.


PAYMENT TERMS


Angus-Young Associates, Inc. (the Firm) shall bill monthly based on the progress of work completed. Payment shall be due within 
20 days of receipt of invoice. Interest of 1% per month on outstanding balances over 60 days from date of invoice will be charged in 
addition to professional service fees. If invoice has not been paid within 90 days of date of invoice, the Firm may, without waiving 
any claim or right against the Client, and without liability whatsoever to the Client, terminate the performance of service. If the 
Client fails to make payments when due and the Firm incurs any costs in order to collect overdue sums from the Client, the Client 
agrees that all such collection costs, including actual reasonable attorneys fees and time by Angus Young Associates, Inc. 
professionals at standard hourly rates incurred in addition to any fixed fee arrangement, shall immediately become due and payable 


INTENT TO LIEN


As required by Wisconsin Construction Lien Law, contractor hereby notifies owner that persons or companies furnishing labor or 
materials for the construction on Owner’s land may have lien rights on Owner’s land and buildings if not paid. Those entitled to lien 
rights, in addition to Angus Young Associates, Inc., or those who contract directly with the owner of who give the owner notice 
within 60 days after they first furnish labor or materials for the construction. Accordingly, owner will probably receive notices from 
those who furnish labor or materials for the construction, and should give a copy of each notice received to his mortgage lender, if 
any.  Angus Young Associates, Inc. agrees to co-operate with the owner and his lender, if any, to see that all potential lien claimants 
are duly paid.


This is to notify the owner that if not paid for any or all services provided, Angus-Young 
Associates, Inc. may exercise it’s right to place a lien on property.


555 South River Street, Janesville, Wisconsin 53548-4783 - Phone (608) 756-2326 - Fax (608) 756-0464 - www.angusyoung.com







 
 


 


999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201 


Madison, Wisconsin 53717 


(608) 826-0532 phone 


(608) 826-0530 FAX 


www.vierbicher.com 


vision to reality 
 


Reedsbur g (608 )524 -6468  | M adi son (608 )826 -0532  |  Mi l waukee M etro  (262 )875 -5000  |  P ra i r i e  du Chi en (6 08)326 -1051  


 


December 15, 2016 


 


Mr. Brad Werginz 


Angus-Young Associates, Inc. 


555 S River Street 


Janesville, WI 53548 


 


Re: Agreement to Provide Civil Engineering and Land Surveying Services 


 City of Stoughton Public Works Facility – CTH ‘A’ 


 


Dear Brad: 


 


Vierbicher Associates, Inc. (Consultant) is pleased to submit this Agreement to provide Civil Engineering 


and Land Surveying Services to Angus-Young Associates (Client). We have developed this proposal 


based on our discussions with City staff and your e-mail dated December 12, 2016.   


 


I. PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 


 


The City of Stoughton will construct a new public works facility on recently annexed parcels of 


land located south and east of the intersection of CTH ‘A’ and Racetrack Road. There are 


several existing buildings on the parcels that will be demolished as part of the project, and the 


individual parcels will be consolidated by CSM to a single property. Public water and sewer will 


be extended to the site and on-site stormwater management facilities will be required to meet 


City and State requirements. 


 


As discussed, we have included Site Survey, CSM, Design Development Plans, Construction 


Documents, Specifications, Review Agency submittals and Construction Administration phases in 


the scope of services.  


 


 


II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 


A. General 


 


As part of this project, Consultant shall provide an ALTA survey of the existing site 


conditions; complete a CSM to consolidate the individual parcels; coordinate with the 


design team to provide civil site design plans; assist with bidding and procurement 


phases by providing specifications and reviewing submittals for the project; create a 


grading, erosion control and stormwater management plan that meets City and State 


requirements for the site, and assist during construction with site visits and observation of 


the site and utility work.  Construction staking the proposed site improvements has not 


been included as part of this proposal but can be added as an additional service. Based 


on Consultants initial discussion with Stoughton Utilities, public sanitary sewer mains are 


not near the site, therefore sewer service will be provided by an on-site grinder pump 


station that will discharge to the southernmost sanitary sewer on Racetrack Road. 







December 15, 2016 


Page 2 of 6 


 


 


Public water mains will be extended along CTH A for the length of the site frontage per 


City land development policies. The cost for extension of the public water main along 


CTH A has been included as an Additional Service in this proposal. 


 


B. Specific Services Provided by Consultant 


 


1. ALTA Survey of Existing Conditions:  One (1) ALTA Survey shall be prepared over 


the project site depicting the existing site conditions.  The ALTA Survey will be 


prepared using the 2016 Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/ASCM Land Title 


Surveys (hereinafter referred to as ALTA standards). 


 


a. The following additional responsibilities from Table A of the ALTA Standards 


(attached hereto) will be included:  Items 1, 2, 3, 4, 8, 9, 11, and 21a (private 


utility location). 


b. Clarifications of Requirements:  Item 11(b) of Table A – The location of the 


underground utilities will be identified as they are marked by the Utilities 


and/or their representatives; or as shown on any maps provided to Consultant 


by the Utilities.  Therefore, locations are dependent on the Utility Company 


markings and maps.  Consultant shall not perform any excavations as a part of 


this survey to determine the location of underground facilities.  


c. A current title commitment with copies of all encumbering documents and 


adjacent deeds shall be provided as soon as possible by the Client as per 


ALTA/ACSM requirements. 


d. The standard ALTA certification shall be used.  The survey shall be certified to 


Owner, Lender (if necessary), and the Title Company issuing title insurance. 


 


The ALTA will depict recorded easements, existing topographic information for 


the site and be used to create the base engineering plans for the project.  


 


2. Certified Survey Map: Consultant shall prepare one Certified Survey Map (CSM) 


to combine the individual project parcels.  The CSM shall conform to the 


requirements of Chapter 236.34 of the Wisconsin Statutes and the City of 


Stoughton Subdivision Ordinances as they relate to CSMs.  This work shall include 


survey research; recovery and location of required public land corners; recovery 


of existing parcel corners; setting new lot corners; easements and depiction of 


other encumbrances as referenced in the title work provided by the Client. 


Materials shall be prepared and submitted for the City of Stoughton review and 


approval.  This includes submittal of final, signed and executed CSM to Dane 


County Register of Deeds for recording.  The deliverables for this portion of the 


proposal include one CSM, field staking of lot corners, preparation of the land 


division application, and required revisions to the map due to applicable 


conditions of approval. All fees for the CSM or any other governmental submittal 


or review shall be the responsibility of the Client. 


  


3. Design Development Documents: Work included within this item includes design 


and documentation necessary to submit plans for City review and approval.  


Consultant shall assist Client with application and approval of the documents for 


the project.  This work includes the following services:  


 


a. Plan Preparation for Submittal - Consultant shall prepare an Existing Conditions 


Plan, Demolition Plan, Site Plan, Grading Plan, Erosion Control Plan, and Utility 


Plan adequate for submittal to the City.  These plans will be delivered to the 


Client for inclusion in the overall submittal set to the City.  The grading and 


erosion control plan will include first floor elevations (with input from the 







December 15, 2016 


Page 3 of 6 


 


 


Client), site contours and spot grades, driveway grades and drainage swale 


locations. The Utility Plan will include sanitary sewer laterals, water main 


services, private storm sewer system (if required), and gas, electric and 


communications routes. Light pole locations will be shown on the plan as 


coordinated with the Client. A Photometric Plan will be completed by others. 


b. Grinder Pump Station for Sanitary Sewer Service – A grinder pump station will 


be designed to provide sanitary sewer service for the proposed building. The 


work included with this item includes wastewater flow estimates, wet well 


sizing and float evaluation, design of control components, piping system and 


force main route layout, pump selection and creation of a design report. 


Consultant will coordinate the electrical design with the Clients electrical 


designer. 


c. Stormwater Management Plan - Consultant will prepare a Stormwater 


Management Plan for submittal that meets City and State requirements.  This 


includes completion of draft stormwater exhibits, a maintenance agreement 


and supporting calculations.  Coordination of soil boring locations for 


stormwater management design is included with this work. 


d. Meetings - Consultant will attend two meetings in the City of Stoughton 


related to completion of this work.  


 


4. Construction Documents: Work included within this item includes finalizing plans 


and documents for bidding and construction. After completion of this work the 


project will be ready to issue for construction. Specific work includes the following: 


a. Finalize Plans for Construction – Based on approval of the initial plans, the 


plans will be revised to address City Staff comments.  Specific work within this 


item includes revision of the submitted plans and documentation to satisfy 


comments from City staff.  This includes completion of construction detail 


drawings. 


b. Finalize Grinder Pump Station – Consultant shall prepare final plans for the 


grinder pump station components including pumps, controls, structures and 


piping.  


c. Finalize Stormwater Management Plan - Consultant shall update the 


stormwater plan to resolve review agency comments, complete final 


stormwater exhibits, and prepare a maintenance agreement for the 


proposed facilities. 


d. Project Specifications - Specification sections pertaining to the Consultant’s 


scope of work will be provided for incorporation into a project manual by the 


Project Architect.  At completion of this work, plans for the first phase will be 


ready to issue for construction.   


e. Bidding Assistance – Consultant shall answer Contractor questions during the 


bidding period and assist the Client with issuing Addenda if necessary. 


 


5. Preparation of Permit Applications: Consultant shall prepare and submit permit 


applications for the project. All necessary supplemental calculations relating to 


submittal of said permit applications are included in this item.  Permit application 


fees are the responsibility of the Client or Owner. Permits from the following 


agencies are anticipated: 


a. Wisconsin DNR: Construction Site Erosion Control and Post Construction 


Stormwater Management  


b. Division of Safety and Professional Services: Site Plumbing Permits (sewer, 


water, storm water, grinder pump station). 


c. City of Stoughton: Erosion Control and Stormwater Management 


 







December 15, 2016 


Page 4 of 6 


 


 


6. Site Construction Administration: Consultant shall reply to questions, RFI’s, review 


shop drawings and assist with Change Orders at the request of the Client. Twelve 


(12) on-site visits / meetings are included with this item. (Pre-construction, 10 


progress meetings, final walk-through). We have assumed progress meetings are 


conducted bi-weekly and last approximately two hours. Additional meetings can 


be completed as requested by the Client on a time / expense basis. This work 


includes start-up of the grinder pump station, a pumping capacity test report and 


creation of record drawings for the on-site utilities. 


 


C. Additional Services if Requested by Client 


 


1. Public Water Main Extensions: Work included within this item includes creating plans 


for extension of public water main along CTH A for the frontage length of the site. 


Specific work includes the following: 


a. Utility Plan - Consultant will create plan & profile sheets of the proposed water 


main for construction. Consultant assumes these plans will be included for 


bidding with the Public Works Facility bid package. This includes specification 


sections pertaining to this item and answering Contractor questions during the 


bidding process.  


b. Project Specifications - Specification sections pertaining to the Consultant’s 


scope of work will be provided for incorporation into a project manual by the 


Project Architect.   


c. Preparation of Permit Applications - Consultant shall prepare and submit 


permit applications for public water extensions from the DNR. All necessary 


supplemental calculations relating to submittal of said permit applications are 


included in this item.   


d. Construction Services – Consultant shall provide services for construction of 


the public water main extension.  This work includes on-site observation of 


construction (40 hours of staff time), construction staking, and review of shop 


drawings and payment applications. For purposes of this proposal Consultant 


assumes the water main will be constructed over a 15 working day period.  


 


III. SERVICES NOT PROVIDED AS PART OF THIS PROJECT 


 


In addition to the “Services Not Provided as Part of This Contract” section indicated in the 


attached General Terms and Conditions; this proposal does not include structural retaining wall 


design, landscape architecture, or design of lift stations or pressurized sewer systems.  


 


 


IV. INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OTHERS 


 


In order to complete our scope of services, the following information shall be provided by others: 


 


A. Architectural site plan (AutoCAD format) 


B. 60 year title work for the properties to be combined 


C. Annexation map from Listol property (AutoCAD format)  


 


V. SCHEDULE 


 


Consultant is prepared to commence work upon authorization to proceed. A formal schedule 


for deliverables will be developed in conjunction with the Client and Owner. Consultant assumes 


the design work will be completed primarily in 2017 and that the project may not commence 


construction until 2018.   


 







December 15, 2016 


Page 5 of 6 


 


 


VI. SCHEDULE OF DELIVERABLES 


 


The following deliverables will be provided to the Client throughout the course of the project: 


 


A. ALTA survey of existing conditions (Electronic PDF and paper copies) 


B. CSM combining parcels (Electronic PDF and paper copies) 


C. Plans for Site Improvements (Electronic copes, PDF, AutoCAD file if requested) 


D. Specifications for Bidding (Electronic copies, Word or PDF) 


E. Plans for Public Utility Extensions (Electronic PDF) 


F. Permit Applications (Electronic PDF and paper copy) 


G. Field reports, RFI responses, change orders (Electronic PDF) 


 


 


VII. DESIGNATION OF RESPONSIBLE PARTIES 


 


The designated responsible parties representing the Client and Consultant, respectively, shall 


have authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and render decisions relative to the 


project on behalf of each respective party. 


 


Overall coordination and project supervision for Consultant is the responsibility of Tim Schleeper, 


Project Manager.  Tim, along with other personnel, will provide the services required for the 


various aspects of the project.  Please direct all communications that have a substantive impact 


on the project to Tim. 


 


The Client designates Brad Werginz as their project representative.  Consultant will direct all 


communications that have a substantive impact on the project to that individual, and that 


individual’s responses shall be binding on the Client. 


 


VIII. FEES 


 


 


A. The fixed fee to provide the scope of services described herein is: 


 


1. ALTA Survey of Existing Conditions ------------------------------------------------------------$3,700 


2. Certified Survey Map ------------------------------------------------------------------------------$3,100 


3. Design Development Documents ---------------------------------------------------------- $14,700 


4. Construction Documents-------------------------------------------------------------------------$7,800 


5. Preparation of Project Permits ------------------------------------------------------------------$3,000 


6. Site Construction Administration ---------------------------------------------------------------$9,500 


Total -------------------------------------------------------------------------------- $41,800 


 


Additional Services  


 


1. Public Water Main Extension --------------------------------------------------------------------$6,200 


 


 


B. These fees assume that the work will be completed within the time frame set forth herein.  


If significant delays to the project occur, which are not due to the negligence of the 


Consultant including, by way of example and not limitation, decisions of the Client, 


regulatory approvals, deferrals to the next construction season or calendar year, etc., 


the Consultant reserves the right to negotiate and adjust an appropriate change to the 


fees. 


 







December 15, 2016 


Page 6 of 6 


 


 


IX. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 


 


The General Terms and Conditions dated 7/1/14 and attached hereto are incorporated herein 


by reference. 


 


We appreciate the opportunity to work with you on this project.  If this Agreement is acceptable to you, 


please sign the Authorization below and return one copy to our Madison office.  Should you have any 


questions or require any additional information, please feel free to contact me. 


 


Sincerely, 


 


 


Timothy L. Schleeper, PE 


Project Manager 


 


Enclosure: General Terms and Conditions 


 


AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED 


 


In witness whereof, the parties have made and executed this Agreement as of the day and year written 


below. 


 


Client       Consultant 


 


              


            David M. Glusick, Principal 


Angus-Young Associates    Vierbicher Associates, Inc. 


555 S River Street     999 Fourier Drive, Suite 201 


Janesville, WI 53548     Madison, WI 53717 


 


        12/15/16     


Date       Date 


 


 


© 2016 Vierbicher Associates, Inc. 


 
M:\Stoughton, City of\Stoughton DPW Building 2016\Admin and Marketing\Proposal and Contracts\Stoughton DPW Building Proposal_2016-12-15.docx 


  







Rev. 7/1/14  


Page 1 of 3 
(General Terms and Conditions) 


W:\Standard Contracts\General Terms and Cond Rev 0714.docx 


VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES, INC. (CONSULTANT) 
 GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICES 


 
1. Services Not Provided as Part of This Contract 
 


Environmental studies, resident construction observation services, 
archaeological investigations, soil borings, flood plain analysis, 
wetland delineations, public hearing representation, easements, 
property descriptions or surveys, negotiations for property rights 
acquisitions, and other detailed studies or investigations, unless 
specifically identified in this Agreement for Services, are not 
included as part of this work.   


 
2. Hazardous Environmental Conditions 
 


Unless specifically identified in this Agreement for Services, it is 
acknowledged by both parties that Consultant’s scope of services 
does not include any services  related to the discovery, 
identification, presence, handling, removal, transportation, or 
remediation at the site, or the inspection and testing of hazardous 
materials, such as asbestos, mold, lead paint, PCBs, petroleum, 
hazardous waste, or radioactive materials.  Client acknowledges 
that Consultant is performing professional services for Client, and 
Consultant is not and shall not be required to become an “arranger,” 
“operator,” “generator” or “transporter” of hazardous substances as 
defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1990 (CERCLA).  If Client is the 
owner of the project site, Client shall defend, indemnify and hold 
Consultant harmless from and against any CERCLA-based claims. 


 
3. Additional Services 
 


The Scope of Services in this Agreement is intended to cover 
services normally required for this type of project.  However, 
occasionally events occur beyond the control of the Consultant or 
the Client that create a need for additional services beyond those 
required for a standard contract. 


 
The Consultant and/or Client shall promptly and in a timely manner 
bring to the attention of the other the potential need to change the 
Scope of Services set forth above, necessitated by a change in the 
Scope of Project, Scope of Services, or the Schedule.  When a 
change in the Scope of Services, Schedule, or Fees is agreed to by 
the Consultant and Client, it shall be initiated by written 
authorization of both parties. 


 
4. Client’s Responsibility  
 


A. Provide Consultant with all criteria and full information as to 
Client’s requirements for the project, including design 
objectives and constraints, capacity and performance 
requirements, flexibility, expandability, and any budgetary 
limitations; furnish previous plans, studies and other 
information relevant to the project; furnish copies of all design 
and construction standards which Client will require to be 
included in the drawings and specifications; and furnish copies 
of Client’s standard forms, and conditions, including insurance 
requirements and related documents for Consultant to include 
in the bidding documents, or otherwise when applicable. 


 
B. Furnish to Consultant any other information pertinent to the 


project including reports and data relative to previous designs, 
or investigations at or adjacent to the site, including hazardous 
environmental conditions and other data such as reports, 
investigations, actions or citations. 


 
C. Arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for 


Consultant to enter upon public and private property as 
required for Consultant to perform services under this 
Agreement. 


 
D. Examine all alternate solutions, studies, reports, sketches, 


drawings, specifications, proposals, and other documents 
presented by Consultant and render timely decisions 
pertaining thereto. 


 


E. For projects involving construction, attend any pre-bid 
conference, bid opening, pre-construction conferences, 
construction progress and other job related meetings, and 
substantial completion and final payment inspections. 


 
F. For projects involving construction, if more than one prime 


contract is to be awarded for the work designed or specified by 
Consultant, designate a person or entity to have authority and 
responsibility for coordinating the activities among the various 
prime contractors, and define and set forth in writing the 
duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such 
individual or entity and the relation thereof to the duties, 
responsibilities, and authority of Consultant.  


 
G. For projects involving construction, if Client designates a 


Construction Manager or an individual or entity other than, or 
in addition to, Consultant to represent Client at the site, the 
Client shall define and set forth in writing the duties, 
responsibilities, and limitations of authority of such other party 
and the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and 
authority of Consultant and make a part of this Agreement.   


 
H. Provide information relative to all concealed conditions, 


subsurface conditions, soil conditions, as-built information, and 
other site boundary conditions. Consultant shall be entitled to 
rely upon the accuracy and completeness of such information. 


 
5. General Considerations (for projects involving construction) 
 


A. Consultant shall not at any time supervise, direct, or have 
control over any contractor’s work, nor shall Consultant have 
authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, 
techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected 
or used by any contractor, for safety precautions and programs 
incident to a contractor’s work progress, nor for any failure of 
any contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable 
to contractor’s work. 


 
B. Consultant neither guarantees the performance of any 


contractor nor assumes responsibility for any contractor’s 
failure to furnish and perform its work in accordance with the 
contract between Owner and such contractor. 


 
C. Consultant shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of 


any contractor, subcontractor or supplier, or of any contractor’s 
agents or employees or any other persons (except 
Consultant’s own employees) at the project site or otherwise 
furnishing or performing any of construction work; or for any 
decision made on interpretations or clarifications of the 
construction contract given by Owner without consultation and 
advice of Consultant. 
 


6. Fees 
  


A. The fees set forth in this Agreement are based on the 
assumption that the work will be completed within the time 
frame set forth herein.  If significant delays to the project occur, 
which are not due to the negligence of the Consultant, e.g. 
decisions of the Client, regulatory approvals, deferrals to the 
next construction season or calendar year, etc., the Consultant 
reserves the right to negotiate and adjust an appropriate 
change to the fees. 


 
B. Consultant may submit invoices monthly for work completed to 


date.  Fixed fees will be submitted on the basis of percent of 
the Scope of Services completed.  Estimated fees will be 
submitted on the basis of time and expense incurred in 
accordance with Consultant’s fee schedule in effect at the time 
the costs are incurred. 


 
C. Invoices are due upon receipt.  For invoices not paid after 30 


days, interest will accrue at the rate of 1 ½% per month. 
Payments will be credited first to interest and then to principal.  
In the event any portion of the account remains unpaid after 90 







Rev. 7/1/14  


Page 2 of 3 
(General Terms and Conditions) 


W:\Standard Contracts\General Terms and Cond Rev 0714.docx 


days after the billing, Consultant may initiate collection action 
and the Client shall be responsible for all costs of collection, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees.  As a matter of business 
practice, Consultant would intend to file lien rights against the 
property if payment is not received before lien rights would 
expire.  Consultant shall have the right to suspend its services 
without any liability arising out of or related to such suspension 
in the event invoices are not paid within 30 days of receipt. 
 


D. When estimates of fees or expenses are quoted, they are 
simply that, estimates.  Actual costs invoiced may be higher or 
lower due to actual fees or expenses incurred.  When fees or 
expenses are anticipated to be higher or lower than estimated, 
Consultant will make every effort to inform you in a timely 
manner, even prior to incurring the costs, if possible. 


 
E. Consultant will bill additional services, if requested, in 


accordance with the fee schedule in effect at the time the work 
is performed or as otherwise negotiated.  


 
7. Dispute Resolution 
 


In the event a dispute shall develop between the Client and the 
Consultant arising out of or related to this Agreement, the Client and 
Consultant agree to use the following process to resolve the 
dispute: 


 
A. The Client and Consultant agree to first negotiate all disputes 


between them in good faith for a period of at least 30 days 
from notice first being served in writing to the Client or 
Consultant of the dispute. 


 
B. If the Client and Consultant are unable to resolve the dispute 


by negotiation as described above, the Client and Consultant 
agree to submit the dispute to non-binding mediation.  Such 
mediation shall be conducted in accordance with Construction 
Industry Dispute Resolution procedures of the American 
Arbitration Association. 


 
C. If the Client and Consultant are unable to resolve the dispute 


by negotiation or by mediation, they are free to utilize whatever 
other legal remedies are available to settle the dispute. 


 
8. Insurance 
 


A. Consultant 
 
Consultant maintains general liability and property insurance; 
vehicle liability; and workers’ compensation coverage meeting 
state and federal mandates.  Consultant also carries 
professional liability insurance.  Certificates of Insurance will 
be provided upon written request. 


 
B. Client 


 
The Client shall procure and maintain, at its expense, general 
liability, property insurance and, if appropriate, workers’ 
compensation and builders risk insurance. Client waives all 
claims against the Consultant arising out of losses or damages 
to the extent such losses or damages are covered by the 
foregoing insurance policies maintained by the Client.   


 
C. Contractor 


 
 The Consultant shall procure from the Contractor, as directed 


by the Client and/or as provided in the Scope of Services, 
Certificates of Insurance for the type and amounts as directed 
by the Client, and shall require the Contractor to name the 
Consultant as an additional insured under the Contractor’s 
general and auto liability policies.  


 
9. Limitations of Liability/Indemnity 
 


A. In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the 
project to both the Client and Consultant, the risks have been 
allocated such that the Client agrees that, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, the Consultant’s total aggregate liability to 
the Client for any and all injuries, damages, claims, losses or 


expenses arising out of this Agreement from any cause or 
causes, shall not exceed the net fee received by Consultant, 
not including reimbursable subconsultant fees and expenses.  
Such causes include, but are not limited to, Consultant’s 
negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract 
or breach of express or implied warranty. 
 


B. Client and Consultant each agree to indemnify and hold the 
other harmless, and their respective officers and employees 
from and against liability for losses, damages and expenses, 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees, to the extent they are 
caused by the indemnifying party’s negligent acts, errors or 
omissions.  In the event claims, losses, damages or expenses 
are caused by the joint or concurrent negligence of Client and 
Consultant, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to 
its negligence. 


 
C. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create, 


impose, or give rise to any duty owed by Client or Consultant 
to any contractor, subcontractor, supplier, other individual or 
entity, or to any surety for or employee or any of them.  
 
All duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this 
Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive benefit of Client 
and Consultant and not for the benefit of any other party. 
 


10. Use of Documents 
  


All documents prepared or furnished by consultant pursuant to this 
Agreement are instruments of Consultant’s professional service, 
and Consultant shall retain an ownership and property interest 
therein, including all copyrights.  Consultant grants Client a license 
to use instruments of Consultant’s professional service for the 
purpose of planning, constructing, occupying or maintaining the 
project or as otherwise intended.  Reuse or modification of any such 
documents by Client, without Consultant’s written permission and 
professional involvement in the applicable reuse or modification, 
shall be at Client’s sole risk, and Client agrees to waive all claims 
against and defend, indemnify and hold Consultant harmless from 
all claims, damages and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising 
out of such reuse by Client or by others acting through Client.  


 
11. Survey Stakes for Construction (for projects involving 


construction) 
 


Stakes placed by Consultant for use by the Contractor shall only be 
used for the specific purpose indicated.  Any use of stakes by the 
Client for purposes other than indicated and/or communicated by 
the Consultant, without Consultant’s written permission, shall be at 
Client’s sole risk, and Client agrees to indemnify and hold 
Consultant harmless for all claims, damages and expense, including 
attorneys’ fees, arising out of such unauthorized used by Client or 
others acting through Client. 


 
12. Use of Electronic Media 
 


Copies of documents that may be relied upon by Client are limited 
to the printed copies (also known as hard copies) that are signed or 
sealed by Consultant except for electronic copies of documents 
available for printing by Contractors during bidding and/or 
construction from QuestCDN.com or as specified in this Agreement 
for Services or as specifically indicated in writing by Consultant.  
Files in electronic formats, or other types of information furnished by 
Consultant to Client such as text, data or graphics, are only for 
convenience of Client.  Any conclusion or information obtained or 
derived from such electronic files will be at the user’s sole risk.  
When transferring documents in electronic formats, Consultant 
makes no representations as to long-term compatibility, usability, or 
readability of documents resulting from the use of software 
application packages, operating systems or computer hardware 
differing from those in use by Consultant at the beginning of the 
project. 


 
13. Opinions of Cost 
 


When included in Consultant’s scope of services, opinions or 
estimates of probable construction cost are prepared on the basis of 
Consultant’s experience and qualifications and represent 
Consultant’s judgment as a professional generally familiar with the 







Rev. 7/1/14  


Page 3 of 3 
(General Terms and Conditions) 


W:\Standard Contracts\General Terms and Cond Rev 0714.docx 


industry.  However, since Consultant has no control over the cost of 
labor, materials, equipment or services furnished by others, over 
contractor’s methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions,  Consultant cannot and does not 
guarantee that proposals, bids, or the actual construction cost will 
not vary from Consultant’s opinions or estimates of probable 
construction cost. 


 
14. Standard of Care 
 


The Standard of Care for all professional services performed or 
furnished by Consultant under this Agreement will be the skill and 
care used by members of Consultant’s profession practicing under 
similar circumstances or similar scope of services at the same time 
and in the same locality.  Consultant makes no warranties, express 
or implied, under this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with 
Consultant’s services. 


 
15. Termination  
   


The obligation to provide further services under this Agreement may 
be terminated: 


 
A. For Cause 


 
1. By either party upon 30 days written notice in the event of 


substantial failure by the other party to perform in 
accordance with the terms hereof, through no fault of the 
terminating party.  The failing party shall have the right, 
within 30 days, to correct or remedy the cited failures. 


 
2. By Consultant 
   


a. Upon seven days written notice if Consultant 
believes that he is being requested by Client to 
furnish or perform services contrary to Consultant’s 
responsibilities as a licensed professional.  
Consultant shall have no liability to Client on account 
of such termination. 


 
b. Upon seven days written notice if the Consultant’s 


services for the project are delayed or suspended for 
more than 90 days for reasons beyond Consultant’s 
control. 


 
c. Upon seven days written notice if the Client has 


failed to pay for previous services rendered and/or if 
his account is more than 60 days past due. 


 
B. To Discontinue Project 


 
By Client effective upon the receipt of notice by Consultant. 


 
C. Reimbursement for Services 


 
Consultant shall be reimbursed for all services and expenses 
rightfully incurred prior to termination.   


 
16. Force Majeure 
 


Neither party shall be deemed in default of this Agreement to the 
extent that any delay of failure in the performance of its obligations 
results from any cause beyond its reasonable control and without its 
negligence.  This shall include mass illness caused by a pandemic 
and potential government pronouncement of the pandemic. 


 
17. Successors Assigns and Beneficiaries 
 


A. Client and Consultant each is hereby bound and the partners, 
successors, executors, administrators and legal 
representatives of Client and Consultant are hereby bound to 
the other party by this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, executors administrators and legal 
representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in 
respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations of this 
Agreement.  


 
B. Neither Client nor Consultant may assign, sublet, or transfer 


any rights under or interest (including, but without limitation, 


moneys that are due or may become due) in this Agreement 
without the written consent of the other, except to the extent 
that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated or 
restricted by law.  Unless specifically stated to the contrary in 
any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will 
release or discharge the assignor from any duty of responsibility 
under this Agreement.  


 
18. Municipal Financial Advisor Services 
 


The Consultant is not registered with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission as a municipal advisor.  Consultant does not perform 
municipal advisory services (as covered under the Dodd-Frank Wall 
Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, signed into law on 
July 21, 2010, as it relates to financial products and services).  In 
the event Client desires such services, it is the Client’s responsibility 
to retain an independent registered advisor for that purpose. 


 
19. Controlling Laws 
 


This Agreement is to be governed by the laws of the state in which 
the project is located. 







Fee Estimate New Public Works Facility


Architectural


Structural


Mechanical


Electrical


Plumbing


Civil


Landscape


ID Finishes


ID FFE


Outline Program


Full Program


Feasability Study


Schematic Design


Design Development


Construction Documents


Bidding/Negotiations


Minimum Constr Obs


Tranditional Constr Obs


$161,871.50


$32,374.30


$48,561.45


$35,611.73


$22,662.01


$16,187.15


$9,712.29


$6,474.86


$0.00


FeeScope 0


Services Disciplines


$349,642.29Total Fee


1,349


270


405


297


189


135


81


54


0


2,780


Hours


Principal 1.00


Engineer 1.09


Architect 1.20


Professional I 1.33


Professional II 1.60


Professional III 1.85


Designer 2.18


Technician I 2.66


Technician II 3.42


Position Multiplier


Fee Breakdown


Site $16,187.00 135


Description


Discipline Program Study
Schematic


Design
Design


Development
Construction


Documents
Bidding  /


Negotiation
Construction
Observation Totals


0 0 24,281 32,374 72,842 4,856 27,518Architecture 161,872


0 0 4,856 6,475 14,568 971 5,504Structural 32,374


0 0 7,284 9,712 21,853 1,457 8,255Mechanical 48,561


0 0 3,399 4,532 10,198 680 3,853Plumbing 22,662


0 0 5,342 7,122 16,025 1,068 6,054Electrical 35,612


0 0 707 943 2,121 141 801Landscape Desig 4,712


0 0 3,178 4,237 9,534 636 3,602Civil Engineering 21,187


0 0 971 1,295 2,914 194 1,101Interior Design 6,475


0 0 0 0 0 0 0IDFFE 0


0 0 3,928 5,237 11,784 786 4,452Site 26,187


Totals 0 0 53,946 71,929 161,839 10,789 61,139 359,642


Project Scope


Area Description Area Cost / UnitDifficulty Type Total Cost


Demolition 15,800 $3.29 $51,982.000 Simple


Site Improvements 14 $51,408.00 $719,712.00New Construction Moderate


Fueling Island 2,000 $100.00 $200,000.00New Construction Difficult


New Salt Storage 4,800 $41.00 $196,800.00New Construction Simple


New Public Works Facility 58,200 $80.00 $4,656,000.00New Construction Moderate


$5,824,494.00Totals 80,814 $72.07


Tuesday, January 10, 2017 Page 1 of 1



bradw

Rectangle



bradw

Text Box

2017



bradw

Rectangle



bradw

Text Box

2018



bradw

Rectangle



bradw

Text Box

2013





		9a-R-9-2017-2017 Resolution - Authorization - Angus Young & Associates (1).pdf

		9a-R-9-2017-2017 Resolution - Authorization - Angus Young & Associates (1).pdf

		Vierbicher Stoughton DPW Building Proposal_2016-12-15 Final TC.pdf

		Stoughton DPW Building Proposal_2016-12-15 Final.pdf

		General Terms and Cond Rev 0714





		9a-R-9-2017-2017 Resolution - Authorization - Angus Young & Associates (2).pdf



